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Janice K. Brewer Scott A. Smith

Governor 2 Director
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR
100 NORTH FIFTEENTH AVENUE i ROOM 401
PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85007
(602) 542-1500
March 4, 2011

The Honorable Janice K. Brewer,

Governor of the State of Arizong;

Members of the Legidature;

Rebecca White Berch, Chief Justice of the Supreme Court;
and Citizens and Taxpayers of the State of Arizona

Ladies and Gentlemen:

|tisour pleasure to transmit to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the State of Arizona for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2010. Responsibility for the accuracy of data, aswell as the completeness and fairness of presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with the State's management. The data presented in thisreport, to the best of our knowledge and belief, is accurate
in all material respects and is reported in a manner which fairly presents the financial position and results of operations of the major
and non-major funds of the State. All disclosures needed for the reader to gain a reasonable understanding of the State's financial
activities have been included.

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) require that management provides a narrative introduction, overview, and
anaysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This
letter of tranamittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The State’'s MD&A can be
found immediately following the Independent Auditors Report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Stateis responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the State
are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adeguate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of
financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management. In the opinion of management, the State's internal controls are adequate to provide reasonable assurance that these
objectives are met.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

In compliance with State statute, an annual financial audit of the State Entity is completed each year by the State of Arizona, Office
of the Auditor General in conjunction with other audit firms. Their audit was conducted in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards and the standards applicable to financia audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Their report on the basic financial statements has been included in the financial section of
thisreport. In addition, ARS 841-1279.03 requires at least abiennial single audit by the Office of the Auditor General. The Single
Audit will beissued as a separate report at alater date.



PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

The State of Arizona was admitted to the Union as the 48" state in 1912. Arizona is the sixth largest state, with 113,998 square
miles. Arizonais known for the Grand Canyon, one of the Seven Wonders of the World, and its cacti and other desert landscape. A
number of nationa forests, four national parks, eighteen national monuments, and over 20 million acres of Native American
reservations and tribal communities are located in Arizona.

The State has three branches of government: Executive, Legidative, and Judicial. The Executive branch is headed by a governor
elected for a four-year term. Arizona s Legidative branch is bicameral, consisting of a thirty-member Senate and a sixty-member
House of Representatives. Legidators are elected for two-year terms. The Judicial branch consists of the Arizona Supreme Court,
Court of Appeals (with two divisions), superior courts, justice of the peace courts, and municipa courts. The superior courts,
justice of the peace courts, and municipal courts are excluded from the State' s reporting entity. The Supreme Court is the highest
court in the State and is comprised of five justices. Article 6, Section 5 of the Arizona State Consgtitution describes the types of cases
and matters handled by the Supreme Court.

The services provided by the State are administered through various agencies, departments, boards, commissions, councils,
adminigrations, offices, and ingtitutions of higher learning. These services include: (1) General Government, (2) Health and
Welfare, (3) Inspection and Regulation, (4) Education, (5) Protection and Safety, (6) Transportation, and (7) Natural Resources.

FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The accompanying CAFR includes al funds of the State of Arizona (primary government), aswell as its component units. Blended
component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance, part of a government’s operations. Therefore, data from these
units is combined with data of the primary government. Discretely presented component units are shown separately to emphasize
that they are legally separate from the primary government and to differentiate their financial position and results of operations from
those of the primary government. Discretely presented component units prepared in accordance with the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) are reported in separate columns in the government-wide financial statements. Discretely presented
component units prepared in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board are presented as separate financial
statements immediately following the government-wide financial satements to emphasize that they are prepared in accordance with
accounting standards other than those promulgated by the GASB.

The criteria for inclusion in the reporting entity and presentation are defined by the Codification of Governmental Accounting and
Financial Reporting Standards, issued by the GASB, (Section 2100). Note 1 of the Notes to the Financial Statements explains which
component units are included in the Financial Reporting Entity of the State.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS

Budgetary control is maintained through legidative appropriation and the executive branch allotment process. The Governor is
required to submit an annual budget to the Legidature. The budget is legally required to be adopted through passage of
appropriation bills by the Legislature and approval by the Governor. The appropriated funds are controlled by the executive branch
through an allotment process. This process generally allocates the appropriation into quarterly allotments by legal appropriation
level. The State also maintains an encumbrance accounting system to further enhance budgetary control. Encumbered amounts
generally lapse as of the end of the fiscal year, with the exception of capital outlay and other continuing appropriations. These
appropriations and their encumbrances continue from year to year. The State's budgetary policies are explained in detail in the
Required Supplementary Information.



GENERAL FUND BALANCE

Graph 1 summarizes the General Fund revenues and expenditures for the lagt five fiscal years. This graph does not include transfer
amounts relating to other fund types and other financing sources (uses), which affect the ending fund balance.

Graph 1
General Fund Revenues and Expenditures

for last 5 fiscal years
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The General Fund ended the June 30, 2010 fiscal year with a deficit of $825.081 million in unreserved fund balance and a $70.350
million reserved fund balance for a total fund balance deficit of $754.731 million. This compares to the previous year’s total fund
balance deficit of $978.278 million.

Graph 2 summarizes the Genera Fund Balance (Deficit) for the last five fiscal years:

Graph 2
General Fund Balance (Deficit) for last 5 fiscal years
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ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The following economic summary is excerpted from the Arizona Department of Commerce 3 Arizona 3 Workforce, released on
October 7, 2010.

The Arizona Department of Commerce, Research Adminigtration’s (RA) updated forecast revises Arizona s nonfarm job losses in
2010 to 25,700, or 1.1%, compared to 50,400, or 2.1%, forecasted earlier. Factorsthat contributed to the reduced losses include: (i)
Federal government economic stimulus program spending that began in 2009, (ii) continued employment gains in the Educational
and Health Services sector, (iii) improved job growth in: Professional and Business Services, Trade, Transportation, and Utilities;
Leisure and Hospitality; and Natural Resources and Mining sectors, and (iv) stronger than originally anticipated economic growth in
therest of the world.

However, for 2011, Arizona s nonfarm job growth has been revised downward to 16,500, or 0.7%, from 23,100, or 1.0%, forecasted
earlier. Although the decline in spending from federal government economic stimulus programs was expected, reasons for this
revision include but are not limited to: (i) the lackluster growth in the private sector as observed by the two indicators of business
and consumer spending, (i) large state and local government budget deficits, (iii) slowdown in population growth, and (iv) limited
consumer and small business lending by banks. These factors will limit nonfarm job growth in the overall economy. The current set
of problems inhibiting growth in the economy is expected to continue through 2011. These problems include high levels of
unemployment, large debt loads, reduced income and wealth, weak housing and commercial real estate markets, rising health care
costs, and budget deficits in state and local governments. Also, recent U.S. Gross Domestic Product (GDP) figures in 2010 have
shown a dowing trend of economic growth and Arizona s personal income figures have demonstrated near historic lows in over-the-
year growth.

In the national economy, the ending of specific federal stimulus programs caused further slowing of economic growth. For example,
recent expiration of federal tax credits for home purchases contributed to a large reduction in home sales across the country. In
2009, the end of the “cash for clunkers’ new automobile incentive purchase program resulted in a reduction in motor vehicle sales
and production.

In 2010, job losses in Professional and Business Services are forecast to total 1,100, or 0.3%, as a result of the overall weaknessin
the Arizona economy. However, employment growth is projected to return in 2011 with an increase of 9,600 jobs, or 2.8%. In 2010,
the forecast number of job gains in Educational and Health Services is 8,400, or 2.6%. These projected gains are less in 2011
(6,100, or 1.8%).

In 2010, projected job gainsin Trade, Transportation, and Utilities are 2,700, or 0.6%. These gains increase to 3,100 jobs, or 0.6%,
in 2011. In 2010, the Construction sector is expected to lose 15,200 jobs, or 11.8%. However, in 2011 Construction is expected to
gain 2,100 jobs, or 1.8%. In 2010, forecast growth in employment for the Leisure and Hospitality sector is 1,100 jobs, or 0.4%.
These job gains are projected to increase to 2,100, or 0.8%, for 2011. Manufacturing employment levels are forecast to have a
decrease of 4,600 jobs, or 3.0%, in 2010. However, employment gains are projected for Manufacturing in 2011 with an increase of
1,900 jobs, or 1.3%, because of expansion of economic activity in the State, nation, and therest of the world.

In 2010, projected job losses in Other Services sector total 2,000, or 2.1%, and in 2011, a gain of 1,800 jobs, or 2.0%, is expected.
In 2010, the forecast growth in Natural Resources and Mining employment is an increase of 200 jobs, or 1.8%. These projected
gains increase to 1,400 jobs, or 12.3%, for 2011. In 2010, job losses in Financial Activities sector are forecast to total 5,300, or
3.2%. These projected reductions in employment decline for 2011 to 2,600 jobs, or 1.6%. In 2010, forecast reductions in
Government employment are 7,500 jobs, or 1.8%. These projected losses will increase in 2011 to 7,900 jobs, or 1.9%. In 2010,
employment reductions in the Information sector are projected to number 2,500 jobs, or 6.4%. These forecast job |osses decrease to
1,100, or 2.9%, in 2011.

Educational and Health Services is the sector with the largest projected job gains for the 2009 to 2011 forecast time period (14,500
jobs, 4.4%). During the most recent economic downturn, Educational and Health Services is one of the few sectors in the Arizona
economy with employment growth. Fewer employment opportunities during a recession persuade many people to return to school
to upgrade skills and enhance their knowledge to be better prepared for greater employment opportunities that become available
when the economy begins to recover. As part of the economic stimulus program, the federal government has provided more
resources to support Educational and Health Services. An increasing elderly population continues to bolster demand for health care
services in the State of Arizona. In addition, high levels of unemployment have created greater demand for social assistance
services. The subsectors with most rapid pace of projected job growth are health care and social assistance followed by private
educational services.

Projected increases in employment for Professional and Business Services from 2009 to 2011 are 8,500 jobs, or 2.5%. These gains
are a consequence of an observed and anticipated overall improvement in the economy. Businesses are motivated to hire contingent
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labor during the beginning, uncertain stages of an economic recovery as a cost savings measure. The subsectors with the largest
forecast gains include: professional and technical services, employment services, and services to buildings and dwellings.
Subsectors with projected job |osses are management of companies and enterprises and business support services.

Job gains of 5,800, or 1.2%, are forecast in Trade, Transportation, and Utilities from 2009 to 2011. Wholesale and retail trade are
the subsectors with the largest projected increase in employment. The largest forecast employment increasesin retail trade are in the
discount outlet and supergtore subsectors. Though we are observing a start of an employment increase in retail, ow growth in
consumer spending continues to persist. High levels of unemployment, large debt loads, and reduced wealth and income have
caused the forecast job growth in retail trade to be limited. Because of a weaker economy and future uncertainty, consumers are
reducing debt and increasing persona savings. However, debt reduction and increased savings are limiting economic growth
because less money is available for the purchase of goods and services. Job losses are projected in the subsectors of transportation,
warehousing, and utilities. Energy conservation and generation projects through the federal government stimulus programs are
bol stering employment in the utilities subsectors.

In the Leisure and Hospitality sector, growth of 3,100 jobs, or 1.2%, is forecast during the 2009 to 2011 time frame. Besides
improvements in the overall nationa and state economies, economic growth in the rest of the world is projected to increase foreign
travel and tourism spending in the State of Arizona. Food services and drinking places is the subsector with the largest amount of
projected job gains. However, job losses are forecast in the subsectors of art, entertainment and recreation, and accommodation.

Growth of 1,600 jobs, or 14.3%, in the Natural Resources and Mining sector is forecasted during 2009 to 2011. A majority of these
projected job gains are in the subsector of metal ore mining because of the expansion of economic activity and indugtrial output in
the U.S. and therest of the world increasing the demand for metallic minera ores such as copper and molybdenum that are mined in
the State of Arizona. The forecast rate of growth is high despite the relatively small number of projected job gains because of the
comparatively small base of employment in this sector, 11,100 jobs in 2009.

Government is the sector with the largest forecast job losses at 15,400, or 3.6%, during the 2009 to 2011 projections time frame.
Employment reductions in the federal government are forecast as a result of the layoffs of temporary Census 2010 workers. State
and local government projected reductions in employment are the result of the ongoing budget deficit criss. These reductions at the
state and local level are forecast to increase in 2011 as aresult of reduced spending expected from the federal government economic
stimulus programs. In contrast, we might observe lower losses if the federal government appropriates additional fundsto assist state
and local governments with their programs. However, the level of potential additional federal support after the end of the stimulus
programs remains uncertain. The negative impacts of layoffs and spending reductions of state and local governments on their
economies are less ambiguous.

In the Construction sector, job losses of 13,100, or 10.2%, are forecast for 2009 to 2011. These losses are forecast across all
subsectors and are the result of continued problems in the housing and commercial real estate markets. Indicators of problemsin
these real estate markets include high rates of mortgage foreclosures and delinquency, low home prices, large amounts of unsold
home inventories, abandoned commercia projects, bank failures, high vacancy rates for commercial properties, declining
commercial property rents, low volume of home sales, and low levels of new construction permits. Employment reductions in
Construction for 2010 are projected to number 15,200 jobs, or 11.8%.

Despite indicators of weakness in the overall Construction industry, signs of improvement are beginning to appear in real estate
markets with reductions in mortgage forecl osure rates, declines in the amount of unsold home inventories, and stabilization in home
prices. In addition, infrastructure expanson and improvement projects with a high proportion of support from the federal
government are forecast to dightly boost Construction employment in 2011 across all subsectors. Examples of these infrastructure
projects include roads, highways, bridges, and public mass transit. In 2011, projected gains in Congtruction employment are 2,100
jobs, or 1.8%.

The Financial Activities sector is forecast to have job losses totaling 8,000, or 4.8%, from 2009 to 2011. Constrained spending,
increased savings, and debt reduction by consumers and businesses in a weak economy are projected to result in employment
reductions for most subsectors in Financial Activities. Continued problems in housing and commercial real estate markets also are
anticipated to provide no assistance to job growth in the Financia Activities sector. Securities, commodity contracts, and
investmentsis the only subsector to have projected employment increases.

Employment levels in the Information sector are forecast to have a decrease of 3,600 jobs, or 9.1%, during the 2009 to 2011 time
period. Job losses persist as a result of continued consolidation, technological changes, shifts in consumer preferences, and
constrained growth in consumer and business spending. An example of all of these factors working together and resulting in
employment losses is the shift of consumer video rentals from local area brick and mortar retail outlets to vending machines, mail
order and return, and internet websites.



Job reductions in Manufacturing are forecast to total 2,600 jobs, or 1.7%, from 2009 to 2011. The Manufacturing subsectors
forecast to have the largest job losses are directly involved with construction such as fabricated metals. Because of proposed
reductions in federal military spending, the subsector of aerospace products and parts is also projected to have reductions in
employment.

Rapid pace of economic growth is not expected to result in fast rates of employment expansion in manufacturing. We continue to
observe relatively large proportions of unused production capacity in terms of production lines and machines within factories. Also,
increasingly, a higher level of labor productivity is expected. In other words, most manufacturing firms are expected to increase
output without hiring many additional workers. Existing employees can start up idle production lines and other equipment while
working at a faster pace.

Job losses in Other Services are projected to be the smallest of all sectors in the Arizona economy from 2009 to 2011 with a decrease
of 100 jobs, or 0.1%. Projected employment reductions are small as a result of a gradually improving economy and increased
demand for repair and refurbishment services in contrast to the purchase of new items as a cost savings measure.

Impetus provided by the federal government economic stimulus programs and improved private sector employment observed
domestically helped reduce projected losses in Arizona’s nonfarm employment in 2010 to 25,700 jobs, or 1.1%, compared to the
previous forecast of 50,400 jobs, or 2.1%. In contrast, in 2011, the anticipated winding down of the federal government economic
stimulus programs, lackluster growth in consumer and business spending currently observed within the private sector, low population
growth, limited consumer and small business lending by banks, and deficits in the state and local budgets have decreased the amount
of projected gains in Arizona’s nonfarm employment. As a result, projected gains are 16,500 jobs, or 0.7%, compared to 23,100
jobs, or 1.0%, forecasted previously.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

Continued deterioration in Arizona’s economic conditions during fiscal year 2010 has resulted in a further downward trend in the
State of Arizona’s General Fund tax revenue collections. To address the General Fund fiscal year 2010 budget impact created by
these revenue shortfalls, the State Legislature enacted laws that included measures such as deep reductions in State agencies’ General
Fund spending authority, transfer of amounts from other funds, and increased temporary suspension of cash payments to the
Universities and K-12 education. Additionally, the State Legislature authorized sale-leaseback transactions of certain property
through the issuance of COPs and the issuance of State Lottery Revenue Bonds, the proceeds of which were deposited in the State’s
General Fund to pay appropriated expenditures. Furthermore, the State used federal stimulus funds received through The American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 to help balance the fiscal year 2010 budget.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the State of Arizona for its CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This was the sixth
consecutive year that the State has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report must satisfy both GAAP and applicable
legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR continues to meet the
Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate.

We wish to express our sincere appreciation to the many individuals whose dedicated efforts have made this report possible. The
preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the professionalism and dedication demonstrated by the
financial and management personnel of each State agency, board, commission, council, administration, office, institution of higher
education, and all other organizations within the reporting entity.

D. Clark Partridge
Director State Comptroller
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STATE OF ARIZONA

DEBRA K. DAVENPORT, CPA OFFICE OF THE MELANIE M. CHESNEY
AUDITOR GENERAL DEPUTY AUDITOR GENERAL

AUDITOR GENERAL

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable Janice K. Brewer, Governor
State of Arizona

The Honorable Russell Pearce, President
Arizona State Senate

The Honorable Kirk Adams, Speaker
Arizona House of Representatives

The Honorable Rebecca White Berch, Chief Justice
Arizona Supreme Court

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and aggregate remaining
fund information of the State of Arizona as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively
comprise the State’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the State’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of certain
departments, the State’s retirement plans, and the discretely presented component units, which account
for the following percentages of the assets and revenues, additions, and other financing sources, as
applicable, of the opinion units affected:

Revenues/Additions/
Other Financing
Opinion Unit/Department Assets Sources
Government-wide Statements
Governmental activities:
Arizona Health Care Cost Containment
System 2.89% 22.12%
Department of Transportation 67.00% 11.50%
Business-type activities:
Lottery Department 0.96% 9.61%
Arizona Health Care Cost Containment
System 0.15% 0.83%
Department of Transportation 1.24% 0.12%
Aggregate discretely presented component units:
Component Units 100.00% 100.00%
Universities—Affiliated Component Units 100.00% 100.00%
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Revenues/Additions/
Other Financing
Opinion Unit/Department Assets Sources

Fund Statements
Major Governmental Funds:
General Fund—Arizona Health Care Cost
Containment System 37.13% 23.79%
Transportation and Aviation Planning,
Highway Maintenance and Safety Fund—

Department of Transportation 100.00% 100.00%
Major Enterprise Fund:
Lottery Fund—Lottery Department 100.00% 100.00%

Aggregate Remaining Fund Information:
Arizona Health Care Cost Containment

System 0.07% 1.95%
Department of Transportation 0.89% 3.46%
Arizona State Retirement System 61.90% 52.77%
Public Safety Personnel Retirement System 11.74% 10.48%
Corrections Officer Retirement Plan 2.85% 2.60%
Elected Officials’ Retirement Plan 0.72% 0.64%

Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to
us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for those departments, retirement
plans, and component units, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The
financial statements of the Rio Nuevo Multipurpose Facilities District, Greater Arizona Development
Authority, Arizona Power Authority, University Medical Center, and the universities—affiliated component
units, which were reported as discretely presented component units, were not audited by the other
auditors in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of the
other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
business-type activities, aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and
aggregate remaining fund information of the State of Arizona as of June 30, 2010, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

The financial statements of the Healthcare Group of Arizona, a nonmajor enterprise fund, are included as
part of the State’s business-type activities and aggregate remaining fund information. As discussed in
Note 9, the Healthcare Group of Arizona had incurred significant operating losses in the past years and
had a fund deficit of $9.01 million at June 30, 2010, that raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue
operations. Management'’s plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 9. The financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.



The financial statements of the Rio Nuevo Multipurpose Facilities District (Rio Nuevo) were audited by
other auditors who issued a qualified opinion on capital assets, accumulated depreciation, and
depreciation expense for Rio Nuevo as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010. As described in the other
auditors’ report, this opinion qualification was the result of inadequate accounting records. Rio Nuevo is a
discretely presented component unit of the State and is included in the discretely presented component
units (governmental activities column) on the government-wide financial statements. This had no effect on
our opinion for the aggregate discretely presented component units as of and for the year ended June 30,
2010.

As described in Note 1, the State implemented the provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement Nos. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets, and 53, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, for the year ended June 30, 2010, which represent
changes in accounting principles.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 21 through 33, the Budgetary Comparison
Schedules on pages 133 through 162, the Infrastructure Assets information on pages 163 through 166,
and the Schedule of Agent Benefit Plans’ Funding Progress on page 167 are not required parts of the
basic financial statements, but are supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. We and the other auditors have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. However, we and the other auditors did not audit the information and
express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the State’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining financial statements
and schedules, and statistical section listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements. The combining financial
statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other
auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit and the
reports of the other auditors, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on them.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue our report on our consideration of
the State’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters at a future date. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Debbie Davenport
Auditor General

March 4, 2011
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following is a discussion and anaysis of the State of Arizona’s (the State’s) financial performance, providing an
overview of the activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal
letter at the front of this report and with the State’s financia statements, which follow this section. The completeness
and fairness of the following information isthe responsibility of the State’s officials and management.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Government-wide:

i Theassets of the State exceeded liabilities at the close of thefiscal year by $18.7 billion (reported as net assets). Of
this amount, a deficit of $3.6 billion exists for unrestricted net assets, $5.2 hillion is restricted for specific purposes
(restricted net assets), and $17.1 hillion isinvested in capital assets, net of related debt.

i The State’stotal net assets decreased in fiscal year 2010 by $181.409 million. Net assets of governmentd activities
increased by $130.370 million, while net assets of the business-type activities decreased by $311.779 million.

Fund Level:

i Asof the close of the fiscal year, the State’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $3.8
billion, an increase of $143.675 million from the beginning of the year. Less than 1% of the combined fund
balances, or $5.451 million, is available to meet the State’s current and future needs (unreserved fund balance).

i Asof the close of thefiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the Genera Fund had a deficit of $825.081 million,
which is approximately 4% of total General Fund expenditures.

i The Land Endowments Fund reported fund balance at year end of $2.7 billion, an increase of $478.820 million
during the year. The Land Endowments Fund is used to help finance public education within the State as required
by the federal government and the State’s Constitution.

i Theenterprise funds reported net assets at year end of $2.5 hillion, a decrease of $325.068 million during the year.

Long-term Debt:

i The State’s total long-term primary government debt increased during the fiscal year to $9.9 hillion, an increase of
$1.8 hillion (or 22%). Changes during the year included the addition of revenue bonds, certificates of participation,
and capital leases of $930.530 million, $999.000 million, and $199.879 million, respectively. Also, the State
retired $206.355 million of revenue bonds, $109.855 million of certificates of participation, and $27.090 million of
capital leases.

More detailed information regarding the government-wide financial statements, fund level financia statements, and
long-term debt activity can be found beginning on page 24.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and anaysis is an introduction to the State’s basic financial statements, which are comprised of three
components. (1) government-wide financia statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financia
statements. Required Supplementary Information and other supplementary information are included in addition to the
basic financial statements.

Government-wide Statements (Reporting the State as a Whole)

The government-wide financial statements provide a broad overview of the State of Arizona’s finances in a manner
similar to private sector business. The financial statementsreport information about the State, as a whole, and about its
activities that should help answer this question: Is the State, as a whole, better or worse off as a result of this year’s
activities? These statements include all non-fiduciary assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting. The
current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardiess of when cash is received or paid. The
government-wide financial statementsinclude the following:

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Financial Position (pages 38-40) present all of the State’s assets

and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases and decreases in net
assets measure whether the State’s financia position isimproving or deteriorating.

-21-



The Statements of Activities (pages 42-44) present information showing how the State’s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changesin net assets are reported as soon as the underlying events giving rise to the change
occur, regardless of thetiming of related cash flows. Therefore, revenues and expenses are reported in these statements
for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned, but unused
vacation leave). Additionally, long-term assets and liabilities are reported regardless of when these assets are expected
to be converted to cash, or when the liability is expected to be liquidated (e.g., capital assets and long-term debt).

Government-wide statements report three activities:

i Governmental Activities — Most of the State’s basic services are reported under this category. Taxes and
intergovernmenta revenues generally fund these services. The Legidature, the Judiciary, and the general
operations of the Executive departmentsfall within the governmental activities.

i Business-type Activities — The State charges fees to customers to help it cover all or most of the cost of certain
services it provides. Lottery tickets, the State’s unemployment compensation services, the Industrial Commission
Specia Fund, and the State’s three universities are examples of business-type activities.

i  Discretely Presented Component Units — Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected
officials of the State are financially accountable. The Rio Nuevo Multipurpose Facilities Didtrict, the Greater
Arizona Development Authority, the University Medical Center, the Arizona Power Authority, and the Water
Infrastructure Finance Authority are discretely presented component units reported by the State. Based on GASB
Statement No. 39, the State has added University Foundations and financing authorities whose financial statements
are prepared in conformity with U.S. generaly accepted accounting principles, as adopted by the Financia
Accounting Standards Board. These organizations include the ASU Foundation, the Arizona Capital Facilities
Finance Corporation, the U of A Foundation, and other non-major foundations and financing authorities. Financial
statements for these organizations are presented immediately following the government-wide statements to
emphasize that they are prepared in accordance with accounting standards other than those promulgated by GASB,
and indude a statement of financial position (page 40) and a statement of activities (page 44). See pages 67-70
and 116-128 for more information on discretely presented component units.

Fund Financial Statements (Reporting the State’s Major Funds)

The fund financia statements begin on page 45 and provide detailed information about the major individual funds. A
fund is a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts that the State uses to keep track of specific
sources of funding and spending for a particular purpose. In addition to the major funds, page 172 begins the individual
fund data for the non-major funds. The State’s funds are divided into three categories — governmental, proprietary, and
fiduciary — each category uses different accounting approaches.

i Governmental funds — Most of the State’s basic services are reported in the governmental funds, which focus on
how money flowsinto and out of those funds and the balances | eft at year end that are available for future spending.
The governmenta fund financial statements provide a detailed short-term view of the State’s general government
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are
more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the State’s programs. These funds
are reported using modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily
be converted to cash. Governmental funds include the general, special revenue, capital projects, debt service, and
permanent funds. Because the focus of governmental fundsis narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmenta funds with similar information
presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial satements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. This report includes two
schedules (pages 46 and 48-49) that reconcile the amounts reported on the governmental fund financial statements
(modified accrua accounting) with governmental activities (accrua accounting) reported on the appropriate
government-wide statement.

Governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 45 and 47 of this report.
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i Proprietary funds — When the State charges customers for the services it provides, whether to outside customers or
to other agencies within the State, these services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds
(enterprise and interna service) utilize accrual accounting; the same method used by private sector businesses.
Enterprise funds report activities that provide supplies and services to the general public — such asthe State Lottery
and Univerdties. Internal service funds report activities that provide supplies and services for the State’s other
programs and activities — such as the State’s Risk Management Fund. Internal service fund operations primarily
benefit governmental funds and are reported as governmental activities on the government-wide statements. The
reconciliation between the government-wide financial statements for business-type activities and the proprietary
fund financial statementsis presented at the end of the proprietary fund financial statements on pages 52-55.

Proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 50-59 of this report.

i Fiduciary funds — The State acts as a trustee or fiduciary for its employee pension plans. It is also responsible for
other assets that, because of a trust arrangement, can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. The State’s fiduciary
activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets and Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
beginning on page 60. These funds are reported using accrual accounting and include pension and other employee
benefit trugt, investment trust, and agency funds. The government-wide statements exclude fiduciary fund
activities and balances because these assets are restricted in purpose and do not represent discretionary assets of the
State to finance its operations.

Fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 60-61 of this report.
Notes to the Financial Statements

The Notes to the Financia Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

The notes can be found beginning on page 67 of this report.
Required Supplementary Information

Following the basic financiad statements is additional Required Supplementary Information that further explains and
supports the information in the financial satements. The Required Supplementary Information includes budgetary
expenditure comparison schedules for the General Fund and each major special revenue fund and a reconciliation of the
schedules of statutory and U.S. GAAP expenditures for the fiscal year. This section also includes schedules of
condition and maintenance data regarding certain portions of the State’s infrastructure and agent benefit plans’ funding
progress schedules.

Required supplementary information begins on page 133 of this report.

Other Supplementary Information

Other supplementary information includes combining financial statements for non-major governmental, non-major
enterprise, al internal service funds, all fiduciary funds, and non-major universities — affiliated component units. These
funds are added together, by fund type, and presented in single columns in the basic financia statements, but are not
reported individually, as are mgjor funds on the governmental funds and proprietary funds financial statements.
Budgetary expenditure comparison schedules for the non-major special revenue funds and the land endowment funds
are also included.

Other supplementary information begins on page 172 of this report.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The State’s overall financial position and operations for the past year for the primary government are summarized, as
follows, based on theinformation included in the government-wide financial statements.

State of Arizona-Primary Government
Net Assets as of June 30, 2010 and 2009
(expressed in thousands)

Governmenta Activities Business-type Activities Primary Government Totd
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Current assets $ 4236816 $ 2833059 $ 1314515 $ 1685745 $ 5551331 $ 4518804
Capita assets 19,125,514 17,859,557 3,530,141 3,404,613 22,655,655 21,264,170
Other non-current assets 4,440,342 4,946,384 1,425,621 1,076,150 5,865,963 6,022,534
Total Assets 27,802,672 25,639,000 6,270,277 6,166,508 34,072,949 31,805,508
Current liabilities 4,242,317 3,551,427 637,055 654,971 4,879,372 4,206,398
Non-current liabilities 7,329,300 5,986,888 3,154,036 2,720,572 10,483,336 8,707,460
Tota Liabilities 11,571,617 9,538,315 3,791,091 3,375,543 15,362,708 12,913,858
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 15,738,121 15,094,719 1,352,658 1,328,658 17,090,779 16,423,377
Restricted net assets 4,648,280 3,990,594 550,102 1,085,399 5,198,382 5,075,993
Unrestricted net assets (4,155,346) (2,984,628) 576,426 376,908 (3,578,920) (2,607,720)
Total Net Assets $ 16,231,055 $ 16100685 $ 2,479,186 $ 2,790,965 $ 18,710,241 $ 18,891,650

For the year ended June 30, 2010, the State’s combined net assets totaled $18.7 hillion, reflecting a decrease of
$181.409 million during the current fiscal year.

The largest portion of the State’s net assets (91%) represents capital assets, net of related debt of $17.1 hillion.
Additions to roads and bridges provided the majority of the governmental activities increase of $643.402 million. The
State uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens, consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the State’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of accumulated depreciation and related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt are planned to be provided from other sources, since
the capital assets themselves are not typically used to liquidate these liahilities.

The State’s net assets also included $5.2 hillion (28%) of resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they
may be used. The restriction by the State’s Congtitution for basic education funded by the earnings of the Land
Endowments Fund provided the mgjority of the governmental activities increase of $657.686 million. The business-
type activities decrease of $535.297 million in restricted net assets was primarily caused by the net decrease in the
Unemployment Compensation Fund.

After accounting for the above net asset restrictions, the State has a remaining deficit of $3.6 billion (19%) reported as
unrestricted net assets. An increase in long-term debt, due to the State issuing certificates of participation and revenue
bonds which provided monies to deposit in the State’s General Fund to pay appropriated expenditures, primarily caused
the decrease of $1.2 billion in the unrestricted net assets of the governmental activities.

-24-



Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and
contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues:
Sales taxes
Income taxes
Tobacco taxes
Property taxes
Motor vehicle and fuel taxes
Other taxes
Unrestricted investment earnings
Unrestricted grants and
contributions
Gain (loss) on sale of trust land
Miscellaneous revenue
Total Revenues

Expenses:
General government
Health and welfare
Inspection and regulation
Education
Protection and safety
Transportation
Natural resources
Intergovernmental revenue
sharing
Interest on long-term debt
Universities
Unemployment Compensation
Industrial Commission Special
Fund
Lottery
Other business-type activities
Total Expenses

Excess (deficiency) before
contributions, special item,
extraordinary item, and transfers

Contributions to permanent
endowments

Special item:
Intergovernmental transfer of

Sundome Center for the
Performing Arts

Extraordinary item:

Insurance recovery, net of
impairment loss

Transfers

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets- July 1

Net Assets - June 30

State of Arizona-Primary Government
Changes in Net Assets for Fiscal Years June 30, 2010 and 2009
(expressed in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

Primary Government Total

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
877513 $ 806,833 $ 2492801 $ 2196190 $ 35370314 $ 3,003,023
13,735,263 10,620,642 2,260,071 1,243,697 15,995,334 11,864,339
576,027 553,198 12,563 14,710 588,590 567,908
5,029,050 5,442,563 52,318 58,528 5,081,368 5,501,091
2,809,995 3,126,076 - - 2,809,995 3,126,076
332,893 370,073 - - 332,893 370,073
31,417 32,564 - - 31,417 32,564
1,583,790 1,643,276 - - 1,583,790 1,643,276
535,435 574,030 - - 535,435 574,030
37,665 92,957 70,766 22,450 108,431 115,407
13,213 12,440 - - 13,213 12,440
64,005 (165,696) - - 64,005 (165,696)
204,295 222,712 52,072 45,786 256,367 268,498
25,830,561 23,331,668 4,940,591 3,581,361 30,771,152 26,913,029
941,813 928,485 - - 941,813 928,485
13,090,357 12,055,439 - - 13,090,357 12,055,439
157,786 176,354 - - 157,786 176,354
5,706,667 6,084,342 - - 5,706,667 6,084,342
1,451,571 1,514,282 - - 1,451,571 1,514,282
511,397 695,070 - - 511,397 695,070
183,535 228,430 - - 183,535 228,430
2,585,683 2,755,710 - - 2,585,683 2,755,710
261,518 222,851 - - 261,518 222,851

- - 3,343,377 3,290,033 3,343,377 3,290,033

- - 2,103,028 1,086,330 2,103,028 1,086,330

- - 67,750 30,055 67,750 30,055

- - 432,150 395,950 432,150 395,950

- - 126,029 142,229 126,029 142,229
24,890,327 24,660,963 6,072,334 4,944,597 30,962,661 29,605,560
940,234 (1,329,295) (1,131,743) (1,363,236) (191,509) (2,692,531)

- - 3,020 4,014 3,020 4,014

- - - 7,240 - 7,240

- - 7,080 2,720 7,080 2,720
(809,864) (983,006) 809,864 983,006 - -
130,370 (2,312,301) (311,779) (366,256) (181,409) (2,678,557)
16,100,685 18,412,986 2,790,965 3,157,221 18,891,650 21,570,207
16,231,055 $ 16,100,685 $ 2479186 $ 2790965 $ 18,710,241 $ 18,891,650

-25-



Change in Net Assets

Governmental Activities — During the prior fiscal year, expenses were higher than revenues, resulting in a decrease in
net assets of $2.3 billion. However, during the current fiscal year, program revenues increased and several expenses
were decreased by |egislative cuts to result in a positive change in net assets of $130.370 million. Operating grant and
contribution revenues increased $3.1 billion, or 29%, as compared to fiscal year 2009. These revenues partialy
consisted of federal stimulus funds received through the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA).
Reported income tax and sales tax revenues decreased by $316.081 million, or 10%, and $413.513 million, or 8%, as
compared to fiscal year 2009, respectively. The costs of the State’s health and welfare increased $1.0 billion, or 9%, as
compared to fiscal year 2009, primarily due to the spending of ARRA funds. However, expenses were reduced, from
the prior year, by a combined total of $687.522 million for inspection and regulation, education, protection and safety,
transportation, and natural resources.

A comparison of the net cost (income) of services by function for the State’s governmental activitiesis shown below for
fiscal years 2010 and 2009. Net cost (income) is the total cost less revenues generated by the activities and shows the
financial burden placed upon the State’s taxpayers by each of these functions.

Governmental Activities
(expressed in thousands)

Total Cost of Services Net Cost (Income) of Services

2010 2009 2010 2009
Functions/Programs:

Genera government $ 941,813 $ 928485 $ 458,954 $ 594,087
Health and welfare 13,090,357 12,055,439 2,147,391 2,654,326
Inspection and regulation 157,786 176,354 (5,925) 4577
Education 5,706,667 6,084,342 3,410,225 5,128,458
Protection and safety 1,451,571 1,514,282 1,102,866 1,277,463
Transportation 511,397 695,070 (334,359) (86,556)
Natural resources 183,535 228,430 75,171 129,374
Intergovernmental revenue sharing 2,585,683 2,755,710 2,585,683 2,755,710
Interest on long-term debt 261,518 222,851 261,518 222,851

Total Governmental Activities $ 24,890,327 $ 24,660,963 $ 9,701,524 $ 12,680,290
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Expenses and Program Revenues
Governmental Activities for Fiscal Year 2010
(in millions of dollars)

$13,000

$12,000

$11,000

$10,000

O Expenses
$6,000 B Program Revenues

Business-type Activities — The net assets decreased by $311.779 million, or 11%. This decrease was primarily caused
by the net decrease in the Unemployment Compensation Fund of $550.848 million and partially offset with the net
increase in the Universities Fund of $234.069 million. The Unemployment Compensation Fund had an increase in costs
of sales and benefits of $1.0 billion, which was mostly offset by increases in unemployment assessments and
intergovernmental revenue of $88.238 million and $858.030 million, respectively. However, operating expenses still
exceeded operating revenues by $554.948 million for the current year. Arizona’s unemployment rate increased from
9.3% at June 30, 2009, to 9.6% at June 30, 2010. On average, there were 299 thousand individuals who were
unemployed during fiscal year 2010 compared with 233 thousand individua s who were unemployed during fiscal year
2009. The Universities Fund net increase was primarily attributed to increased tuition and fee rates and enrollment.
Federal Fiscal Stabilization Fundsreceived from ARRA were used to help offset reductionsin State appropriations.

A comparison of the net cost (income) of services by function for the State’s business-type activities is shown on the

next page for fiscal years 2009 and 2010. Net cost (income) is the total cost |ess revenues generated by the activities
and shows the financia burden placed upon the State’s taxpayers by each of these functions.
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Business-type Activities
(expressed in thousands)

Total Cost of Services Net Cost (Income) of Services

2010 2009 2010 2009

Functions/Programs:
Universities $ 3,343,377 $ 3,290,033 $ 837,324 $ 1,129,521
Unemployment Compensation 2,103,028 1,086,330 546,269 445,737
Industrial Commission

Special Fund 67,750 30,055 50,170 5,135
Lottery 432,150 395,950 (119,342) (88,536)
Other 126,029 142,229 (7,522) (1,857)
Total Business-type Activities $ 6,072,334 $ 4,944,597 $ 1,306,899 $ 1,490,000

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE’S FUNDS
The State uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds — The general government functions are contained in the general, special revenue, debt service,
capital projects, and permanent funds. The focus of the State’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the State’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

General Fund

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the State. At June 30, 2010, unreserved fund balance of the General
Fund had a deficit of $825.081 million, while total fund balance closed the year at a deficit of $754.731 million. Asa
measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund
balance to total fund expenditures and other financing uses. Unreserved fund balance represents a negative 4% of total
expenditures and other financing uses, while total fund balance represents a negative 3% of the same amount.

The fund balance of the State’s General Fund increased $223.547 million during the fiscal year. The primary reason for
the increase in fund balance during the fiscal year is the State issued $425.420 million of revenue bonds and $998.795
million of certificates of participation. Otherwise, the fund balance of the State’s General Fund would have decreased
during the fiscal year, as expenditures were $21.9 billion and revenues were $21.0 billion. Although intergovernmental
revenues increased $2.2 hillion (21%) from the prior fiscal year, sales tax revenues decreased $298.994 million (6%0)
and income tax revenues decreased $332.376 million (11%). In particular, sdes taxes paid by retail stores and
construction contractors decreased by 7% and 37%, respectively, when compared to fiscal year 2009 sales tax receipts.
In addition, income tax collections decreased from the previous fiscal year as a result of the, on average, 299 thousand
individuals that were unemployed during fiscal year 2010 compared with 233 thousand individuals who were
unemployed during fiscal year 2009 and a decrease in the amount of corporate income taxes collected during the fiscal
year.

Health and welfare expenditures and intergovernmenta revenue (including federal grants and county funding) increased
by $1.1 hillion, or 9%, and $2.2 hillion, or 21%, as compared to fiscal year 2009, respectively. The increase in
expendituresin fiscal year 2010 can be attributed to increased enrollment in the Arizona Health Care Cost Containment
System’s (AHCCCS) programs. During the fina six months of fiscal year 2010, the AHCCCS enrollment growth
began to dow following the most significant period of enrollment increase since the Proposition 204 expansion in
calendar years 2001 to 2003. From February 2007 to December 2009, AHCCCS enrollment increased in 31 out of 34
months for a total increase of 342,500 members, or an increase of 33.4%. The total enrollment decreased by 14,239
from December 2009 to August 2010, primarily driven by the January 1, 2010 enrollment cap in the KidsCare program
and decreases to the Federal Emergency Services (FES) undocumented population. Excluding the KidsCare and FES
populations, the Title X1X full services membership populations increased by 31,700, or 2.6%, from December 2009 to
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August 2010. The intergovernmental revenue increase was partially due to the receipt of federal stimulus funds from
ARRA.

Education expenditures decreased by $173.061 million, or 3%, compared to fiscal year 2009. The decrease can be
primarily attributed to a decrease in State assistance for kindergarten through twelfth grade (K-12) and University
operating expenditures to address budget shortfalls. In addition, the Arizona Department of Education’s spending was
reduced by $250.000 million due to the restoration of the State Equalization Tax Rate in fiscal year 2010. This was
expected to generate a corresponding amount in new local property tax funds.

Transportation and Aviation Planning, Highway Maintenance and Safety Fund

The Transportation and Aviation Planning, Highway Maintenance and Safety Fund is responsible for the repair and
maintenance of existing roads, paying the debt service for roads that are built from the issuance of revenue bonds and
grant anticipation notes, and providing technical assistance with road construction provided by contractors hired by the
Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT). Total fund balance increased $54.753 million during fiscal year 2010.
The fund balance increase was due, in part, to a decrease in the distributions to Arizona counties and cities during fiscal
year 2010, as collections for the Transportation and Aviation Planning, Highway Maintenance and Safety Fund
decreased. In addition, the Transportation and Aviation Planning, Highway Maintenance and Safety Fund transfers to
the General Fund and other State agencies decreased in fiscal year 2010 because the amount stipulated by the State
Legidature decreased.

Land Endowments Fund

The fund was established when the federal government granted Arizona statehood. Both the State’s Constitution and
the federal government require that the land grants given to the State be maintained indefinitely, and the earnings from
the land grants should be used for public education, primarily K-12. The Land Endowments Fund total fund balance
increased $478.820 million during fiscal year 2010. Endowment investments increased $477.338 million, at fiscal year
end, due to receipts from land sales of $78.564 million and a net increase in the fair value of investments of $374.553
million.

Proprietary funds

The business-type activities discussion for the fund level financial statements of the State’s enterprise funds provide the
same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements analysis on page 27.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

During the fiscal year, the original budget was amended by various supplemental appropriations and appropriation
revisons. Budgetary Comparison Schedules for the major governmental funds are in the Required Supplementary
Information section beginning on page 133. Differences between the origina budget of $15.2 billion and the fina
amended budget of $16.3 billion resulted in a $1.1 hillion net increase in appropriations for the General Fund, before
adjustments. Some of the significant changesin the General Fund appropriations were:

1. $218.235 million increase due to prior fiscal year obligations that were paid in the current fiscal year per ARS
§35-191

2. $2.5 hillion increase for the Department of Education’s Basic State Aid Entitlement and Additional State Aid
to Schools, which usually are included in the original budget, but were vetoed and made later under
supplemental appropriations

3. $874.834 million decrease to the AHCCCS was primarily due to the expected Genera Fund savings that are
associated with the enhanced Federal Medical Assistance Percentage (FMAP) and the Medicare Clawback
payments implemented by ARRA

4. $350.875 million decrease to the Department of Economic Security was primarily due to agency budget
reductions and the expected General Fund savings that are associated with the enhanced FMAP and the
Medicare Clawback payments implemented by ARRA

5. $200.000 million decrease for the deferral of appropriationsto the Universities Fund
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6. $71.750 million decrease to the Universities Fund due to the expected General Fund savings that are associated
with ARRA

7. $47.333 million decrease for reductions to the Universities Fund appropriations

8. $34.462 million increase to the Universities Fund to make debt service payments associated with the financing
of research infrastructure projects

9. $20.000 million increase for the Parks Board “Growing Smarter” transfer to the Land Conservation Fund per
ARS 841-511.23 to provide grants to purchase State trust land for conservation purposes

The actual expenditures were |ess than the final budget by $698.532 million, after adjustments. Of this amount, $55.354
million will continue as legidative multiple fiscal year spending authority for fiscal years 2011 and beyond, depending
upon the budgetary guidelines of the Legislature. The remaining $643.178 million represents the unused portion of the
State’s legidatively authorized annua operating budget.

Additional budgetary information can be found on pages 160-162 of this report.
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets:
The State’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2010 totaled
$22.7 hillion, net of accumulated depreciation. The total primary government increase in capital assets for the current
period was 7%, with a 7% increase in capital assets used for governmental activities and a 4% increase for business-
type activities. Depreciation charges of the governmenta and business-type activities for the fiscal year totaled
$342.884 million.
Major capital asset activity during the current fiscal year incduded the following:

i The Universities’ additions to capital assets totaled $354.428 million and included increased investments in
instruction, research, sudent housing, athletic facilities, and other capital projects.

i The ADOT started or completed roads and bridges totaling $1.4 billion during the fiscal year.
For the government-wide financia statement presentation, all depreciable assets were depreciated from the acquisition
date to the end of the current fiscal year. Capital asset purchases of the governmenta funds are reported in the fund-

level financial satements as expenditures.

Capitd assets for the governmenta and business-type activities as of June 30, 2010 are presented below (expressed in
thousands):

Governmenta Activities Business-type Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Land $ 2602541 $ 2488112 $ 185292 $ 181,400 $ 2,787,833 $ 2,669,512
Buildings 1,895,998 1,754,959 3,982,408 3,877,636 5,878,406 5,632,595
Improvements other than

buildings 151,356 135,097 4,811 4,811 156,167 139,908
Equipment 728,811 713,524 1,413,422 1,345,615 2,142,233 2,059,139
Software and other intangibles 130,988 61,223 - - 130,988 61,223
Collections (non-depreciable) - - 17,749 17,882 17,749 17,882
Infrastructure 11,058,408 10,647,110 383,883 367,408 11,442,291 11,014,518
Construction in progress 3,823,110 3,199,253 255,196 131,054 4,078,306 3,330,307
Devel opment in progress 84,277 83,069 - - 84,277 83,069
Less: accumulated depreciation  (1,349,975) (1,222,790) (2,712,620) (2,521,193) (4,062,595) (3,743,983)
Total $19,125514 $17,859,557 $ 3530,141 $ 3,404,613 $22655655 $21,264,170

The governmental activities capital asset ending balances for the year ended June 30, 2009 have been reclassified due to
the implementation of GASB Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets.

-30-



As provided by GASB Statement No. 34, the State has elected to record its infrastructure assets, that the ADOT is
responsible for maintaining, using the modified approach as described in Note 1H. Assets accounted for under the
modified approach include 6,789 center lane miles (18,771 travel lane miles) and 4,700 bridges.

The State manages its roads using the Present Serviceability Rating (PSR), which measures the condition of the
pavement and its ability to serve the traveling public. The PSR uses a five-point scale (5 excellent, 0 impassable) to
characterize the condition of the roadway. The State’s serviceability rating goa is 3.23 for the overall system. The
most recent assessment indicated that an overall rating of 3.71 was achieved for fiscal year 2010.

The State manages its bridges using the Arizona Bridge Information and Storage System. The State determines the
condition rating based on standards devel oped by the Federal Highway Administration and additional interna criteria.
It isthe policy of the State to maintain a Condition Rating Index (CRI) of 92.5% or better. In fiscal year 2010, a CRI of
93.2% was obtained.

In addition to many smaller projects, each of the following major highway construction projects in excess of $10.000
million were started during fiscal year 2010 (expressed in thousands):

Contract Contract Current Year
Project Description Start Date Amount Expenditures *

Mg or widening of Interstate 10 from Sarival Avenue to Dysart Road in

Maricopa County. 9/18/09 $ 30,936 $ 15,244
Maor widening of Interstate 10 from Verrado Way to Sarival Avenuein

Maricopa County. 7/17/09 21,800 11,825
Capacity additions and reconstruction of State Route 260 in Little Green

Valley in Gila County. 7/17/09 19,699 5,395
Maor widening of US 60 from State Route Loop 303 to 99th Avenuein

Maricopa County. 11/20/09 17,970 5,022
Construction of atraffic interchange on State Route Loop 101 a

Beardd ey Road and Union Hills Drive in Maricopa County. 10/16/09 14,771 5,741
Major widening of Interstate 10 at the Picacho Peak traffic interchange

in Pina County. 7/17/09 13,133 8,954
Maor widening of State Route 87 from Four Peaks Road to Dos S Ranch

Road in Maricopa County. 2/10/10 10,777 -

! Construction expenditures are strictly those costs paid to the primary contractor for each project shown.

In addition to many smaller projects, the following major highway construction projects had expenditures in excess of
$15.000 million in fiscal year 2010 (expressed in thousands):

Project

Project Description Expenditures 2

State Route Loop 202 from the Interstate 10 and State Route 51 interchange to State Route Loop 101 in
Maricopa County. $ 145804
State Route Loop 303 from Happy Valley Parkway to Lake Pleasant Parkway in Maricopa County. 54,746
Interstate 17 from Jomax Road to Carefree Highway in Maricopa County. 47,732
State Route Loop 303 from Lake Pleasant Parkway to Interstate 17 in Maricopa County. 44,276
State Route Loop 303 and Interstate 10 traffic interchange in Mari copa County. 43,823
Interstate 10 and Twin Peaks traffic interchange in Pima County. 40,131
US Highway 93 a Hoover Dam in Mohave County. 38,922
Interstate 10 from Prince Road to 29th Street in Pima County. 17,467
State Route Loop 202 from State Route Loop 101 to Gilbert Road in Maricopa County. 16,914
State Route Loop 303 traffic interchanges at Bell, Waddell, and Cactus Roads in Maricopa County. 16,881
Interstate 10 from Sarival Avenue to State Route Loop 101 in Maricopa County. 16,655
Interstate 10 from Sarival Avenue to Dysart Road in Maricopa County. 15,781

State Route 24 (Williams Gateway Airport) from State Route Loop 202 to Ellsworth Road in Maricopa
County. 15,400

2Project expendituresinclude not only construction costs, but aso engineering and design work, payroll (if applicable), and any other
project related costs.

More detailed information regarding capital assets is on pages 90 and 91.
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Long-term debt:

The State issues no general obligation debt instruments. The Arizona Constitution, under Article 9, Section 5, provides
that the State may contract debts not to exceed $350 thousand. This provision has been interpreted to restrict the State
from pledging its credit as a sole payment for debts incurred for the operation of the State government. Asaresult, the
State pledges either dedicated revenue streams or the constructed building or equipment acquired as security for the
repayment of long-term debt instruments.

Major long-term debt activity during the current fiscal year included the following:

i The State issued revenue bonds totaling $425.420 million to provide monies to deposit in the State’s General Fund
to pay appropriated expenditures of the State and to pay the costs of issuing the bonds.

i The Universities issued revenue bonds for $505.110 million to fund the acquisition, construction, or renovation of
capital facilities and infrastructure, and refund obligations from certain previously issued bonds.

i The Stateissued $998.795 million of certificates of participation to finance the acquisition of certain property from
the State by the Trustee and to pay the costs of the issuances. The net proceeds received by the Trustee were
immediately transferred from the Proceeds Fund to the State’s General Fund to pay appropriated expenditures of
the State.

State of Arizona-Primary Government
Outstanding Mg or Long-Term Debt as of June 30, 2010
(expressed in thousands)

Governmenta Activities Business-type Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Revenue bonds $ 3522605 $ 3251580 $ 1692825 $ 1239675 $ 5215430 $ 4,491,255
Capitd leases 412,919 236,125 171,448 175,453 584,367 411,578
Certificates of participation 2,571,125 1,649,870 840,719 872,829 3,411,844 2,522,699
Total $ 6506649 $ 5137575 $ 2704992 $ 2287957 $ 9211641 $ 7,425532

More detailed information regarding long-term debt begins on page 97.
ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Arizona’s economy, along with the rest of the nation, continued to contract in fiscal year 2010, as problems in the
financial and housing markets continued, along with continued decline in labor markets. The current set of elements
inhibiting growth in the economy include high levels of unemployment, large debt loads, reduced income and wealth,
weak housing and commercial real estate markets, risng health care costs, and budget deficits in state and local
governments. In addition, Arizona’s persona income figures have demonstrated near historic lows in over-the-year
growth.

According to the Arizona Department of Commerce, Research Administration (RA), impetus provided by the federal
government economic stimulus programs and improved private sector employment observed domestically helped
reduce projected losses in Arizona’s nonfarm employment in 2010 to 25,700. In contrast, in 2011, the anticipated
winding down of the federal government economic stimulus programs, lackluster growth in consumer and business
spending currently observed within the private sector, low population growth, limited consumer and small business
lending by banks, and deficits in the State and local budgets have decreased the amount of projected gains by the RA in
Arizona’s nonfarm employment to 16,500.

The State is experiencing its worst economic recession since World War Il.  As reported in the State’s financial
statements over the period of fiscal year end 2007 through fiscal year end 2010, the sales tax and income tax revenuesin
the State’s General Fund decreased by $1.3 hillion, or 23%, and $1.8 hillion, or 39%, respectively. Due to the
continued economic downturn and an on-going structural deficit, the State’s General Fund was projected with a fiscal
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year 2010 ending balance shortfall. The State Legidature enacted a series of laws that eliminated the shortfall and made
progress towards correcting the State’s structural deficit. Significant measures include deep cuts to State agencies’
General Fund spending authority, transfer of amounts from other funds, and increased temporary suspension of cash
payments to the Universities and K-12 education. Furthermore, the State Legidature authorized sale-leaseback
transactions of certain property through the issuance of COPs and the issuance of State Lottery Revenue Bonds, the
proceeds of which were deposited in the State’s General Fund to pay appropriated expenditures.

The State will continue to use ARRA federal stimulus funds as part of the measuresto balance the budget. The Stateis
scheduled to receive ARRA funding through fiscal year 2011 which is a direct help to the General Fund, to be used
largely for education and for health/welfare programs. For the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, the State recorded
$1.7 hillion and $768.530 million in ARRA revenue, respectively. Additionaly, a temporary 1-cent increase in the
transaction privilege tax referred to the voters by the State Legidlature was approved in the special election held on May
18, 2010. The increase is effective June 1, 2010 and expires May 31, 2013. The temporary sales tax is estimated to
generate an additional $846 million to the General Fund in fiscal year 2011.

Further, the decline in tax revenues created problems in the management of the State’s cash flow needs. As a result,
throughout most of fiscal year 2010, the State Treasurer issued Treasurer’s Warrant Notes (TWNS) in lieu of immediate
payment of warrants presented to the State Treasurer for authorized General Fund expenditures. No TWNs were
outstanding at June 30, 2010, and cash flow projections indicate that TWNs will not be needed in fiscal year 2011.

Despite imposing the largest spending reductionsin State history, eliminating State services and programs, and reducing
the State workforce by approximately 10%, the General Fund is projected with a fiscal year 2011 ending balance
shortfall of approximately $764 million. In development of the fiscal year 2012 budget, the State will be addressing
most of the remaining structural deficit of approximately $1.5 billion, or 16% of the continuing budget. The Medicaid
program, which has federal and voter mandated funding, is a major cost component creating the structural deficit.
There has been tremendous growth in Medicaid spending, which over the last four years, has increased by
approximately 65% and now accounts for 29% of the State’s budget. The State can no longer afford the Medicaid
program as it currently exists and discussion of potentia reform of this program is being considered to control these
costs. The State continues to work towards creating a permanent budget restructuring that realigns the State’s revenues
and expenditures so that the State’s structural deficit can be eliminated.

CONTACTING THE STATE COMPTROLLER’S OFFICE

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a general
overview of the State’s finances and to demonstrate the State’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have any
guestions about this report or need additional financia information, contact the Arizona Department of Administration,
General Accounting Office, Financial Reporting Section at (602) 542-5405. Y ou may also access and print this report
at http://www.gao.az.gov/financialy.

The State’s component units issue their own separately issued audited financial statements. These statements may be
obtained by directly contacting the component unit. Contact information regarding the component units begins on page
68.
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STATE OF ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2010

(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Cash with U.S. Treasury
Cash and pooled investments with
State Treasurer
Restricted cash and pooled investments with
State Treasurer
Cash held by trustee
Collateral investment pool
Short-term investments
Restricted investments held by trustee
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxes
Interest
Loans and notes
Patient accounts receivable
Other
Internal balances
Due from U.S. Government
Due from local governments
Due from others
Inventories, at cost
Other current assets
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash
Cash and pooled investments with
State Treasurer
Cash held by trustee
Investments
Investments held by trustee
Receivables, net of allowances:
Loans and notes
Other
Securities held in escheat
Investments
Endowment investments
Deferred outflow - interest rate swap
Other noncurrent assets
Capital assets:
Infrastructure, land, and other non-depreciable
Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable,
net of accumulated depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

COMPONENT UNITS

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOTAL GREATER AZ
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE PRIMARY DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENT  RIO NUEVO AUTHORITY ACTIVITIES
$ 5774 $ 479,888 $ 485,662 $ 9380 $ - $ 1,214
- 16,690 16,690 - - -
1,671,434 76,457 1,747,891 - 2,018 71,827
- 66,819 66,819 - - -
- - - - - 4,703
714,163 44,180 758,343 - - 3,636
- 105,865 105,865 - - 124,297
- - - - - 15,819
598,706 86,661 685,367 2,092 - -
240,686 3,397 244,083 7 - 12,779
28,906 7,863 36,769 - - -
- - - - - 77,503
129,574 158,176 287,750 - - 57,469
(149,905) 149,905 - - - R
901,555 87,902 989,457 - - -
26,784 - 26,784 - - -
60 - 60 - - -
13,120 26,450 39,570 - - 12,300
55,959 4,262 60,221 40 - 5,624
4,236,816 1,314,515 5,551,331 11,519 2,018 387,171
66 17,851 17,917 - - -
1,038,242 - 1,038,242 - 10,465 -
40,107 348,951 389,058 18,439 - -
2,517 10,248 12,765 - - -
- 233,202 233,202 - - 49,785
581,925 34,147 616,072 - - 1,158,137
- 7,473 7,473 6,367 - -
51,204 - 51,204 - - -
- 488,518 488,518 - - 105,257
2,713,668 254,052 2,967,720 - - -
- 11,126 11,126 - - -
12,613 20,053 32,666 1,944 - 48,998
17,546,716 458,237 18,004,953 42,761 - 27,485
1,578,798 3,071,904 4,650,702 28,493 - 285,774
23,565,856 4,955,762 28,521,618 98,004 10,465 1,675,436
27,802,672 6,270,277 34,072,949 109,523 12,483 2,062,607
(Continued)



STATE OF ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2010

(Expressed in Thousands)

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT COMPONENT UNITS

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

TOTAL GREATER AZ
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE PRIMARY DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENT  RIONUEVO AUTHORITY ACTIVITIES
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 508,751 $ 135,803 $ 644,554 $ 4204 $ - $ 58,997
Payable for securities purchased - 4,567 4,567 - - -
Accrued liabilities 921,352 88,646 1,009,998 261 - 48,534
Obligations under securities loan agreements 714,163 44,180 758,343 - - 3,636
Dueto U.S. Government 5,301 7,650 12,951 - - -
Due to local governments 1,207,082 31 1,207,113 - - -
Dueto others 178,433 103,573 282,006 - - -
Unearned deferred revenue 81,871 117,405 199,276 - - -
Current portion of accrued insurance losses 53,764 24,088 77,852 - - 5,568
Current portion of long-term debt 400,716 95,640 496,356 8,196 - 45,510
Current portion of other long-term liabilities 170,884 15,472 186,356 - - 9,182
Total Current Liabilities 4,242,317 637,055 4,879,372 12,661 - 171,427
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Unearned deferred revenue 81,956 15,170 97,126 - - 2,412
Contracts payable - 12,450 12,450 908 - -
Accrued insurance losses 319,953 391,196 711,149 - - 8,845
Funds held for others - 30,244 30,244 - - -
Long-term debt 6,801,550 2,639,360 9,440,910 94,770 - 1,186,124
Derivative instrument - interest rate swap - 11,126 11,126 - - -
Other long-term liabilities 125,841 54,490 180,331 - - 8,887
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 7,329,300 3,154,036 10,483,336 95,678 - 1,206,268
Total Liabilities 11,571,617 3,791,091 15,362,708 108,339 - 1,377,695
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 15,738,121 1,352,658 17,090,779 36,293 - 47,457
Restricted for:
Federal grants 47,463 - 47,463 - - -
Capital projects 565,534 2,819 568,353 - - -
Unemployment Compensation - 68,155 68,155 - - -
Debt service 25,262 34,393 59,655 12,920 10,465 -
Permanent fund and Universities fund:
Expendable 181,728 202,691 384,419 - - -
Nonexpendable 3,330,361 166,399 3,496,760 - - -
Loans and other financial assstance:
Expendable - 75,619 75,619 - - 379,482
Other purposes 497,932 26 497,958 - - 22,127
Unrestricted (deficit) (4,155,346) 576,426 (3,578,920) (48,029) 2,018 235,846
Total Net Assets $ 16,231,055 $ 2,479,186 $ 18,710,241 $ 1,184 $ 12,483 $ 684,912

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
UNIVERSITIES - AFFILIATED COMPONENT UNITS
JUNE 30, 2010

(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalent investments $ 69,068
Recelvables:
Pledgesreceivable 151,092
Other receivables 21,360
Total receivables 172,452
Investments:
Investmentsin securities 981,522
Investments held in trust for Universities 35,334
Other investments 49,259
Total invesments 1,066,115
Net direct financing leases 121,342
Property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation 417,242
Licenses 4,530
Other assts 41,325
Total Assets 1,892,074
LIABILITIES
Liability under Universities endowment
trust agreements 101,901
Bonds payable 653,219
Unearned revenue 30,889
Other liabilities 74,987
Total Liabilities 860,996
NET ASSETS
Permanently restricted 699,171
Temporarily restricted 336,414
Unrestricted (4,507)
Total Net Assets $ 1,031,078

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

(Expressed in Thousands)

PROGRAM REVENUES

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
Governmental Activities:
General government
Health and welfare
Inspection and regulation
Education
Protection and safety
Transportation
Natural resources
Intergovernmental revenue sharing
Interest on long-term debt
Total Governmental Activities

Businesstype Activities:
Universities
Unempl oyment Compensation
Industrial Commission Special Fund
Lottery
Other
Total Businesstype Activities

Total Primary Government

COMPONENT UNITS:
Governmental Activities
Rio Nuevo

Greater Arizona Development Authority

Total Governmental Activities

Businesstype Activities:

Water Infragtructure Finance Authority

University Medical Center
Arizona Power Authority
Total Businesstype Activities

OPERATING CAPITAL

CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND
EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS  CONTRIBUTIONS
$ 941,813 $ 208,316 $ 274543  $ -
13,090,357 109,405 10,833,561 -
157,786 143,329 20,382 -
5,706,667 66,911 2,229,531 -
1,451,571 158,867 189,838 -
511,397 123,372 146,936 575,448
183,535 67,313 40,472 579
2,585,683 - - -
261,518 - - -
24,890,327 877,513 13,735,263 576,027
3,343,377 1,432,055 1,061,435 12,563
2,103,028 358,865 1,197,894 -
67,750 17,580 - -
432,150 551,492 - -
126,029 132,809 742 -
6,072,334 2,492,801 2,260,071 12,563
$ 30,962,661 $ 3,370,314 $ 15,995,334 588,590
$ 9,602 $ 3733 $ - 3 -
2,228 - - -
$ 11,830 $ 3,733 $ - $ -
$ 79,530 $ 36,137 $ 72,203 $ -
550,982 567,639 - 1,475
30,850 30,927 - -
$ 661,362 $ 634,703 $ 72,203 $ 1,475

General Revenues:
Taxes
Sales
Income
Tobacco
Property
Motor vehicle and fuel
Other
Unregtricted investment earnings
Unregtricted grants and contributions
Gain on sale of trust land
Miscellaneous
Contributions to permanent endowments
Extraordinary Items:
Insurance recovery, net of impairment loss
Tranders
Total General Revenues, Contributions, Extraordinary Items,
and Transfers
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

The Notesto the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

COMPONENT UNITS

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

TOTAL GREATER AZ
GOVERNMENTAL  BUSINESS-TYPE PRIMARY DEVELOPMENT  BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENT RIO NUEVO AUTHORITY ACTIVITIES
$ (458,954) $ (458,954)
(2,147,391) (2,147,391)
5,925 5,925
(3,410,225) (3,410,225)
(1,102,866) (1,102,866)
334,359 334,359
(75,171) (75,171)
(2,585,683) (2,585,683)
(261,518) (261,518)
(9,701,524) (9,701,524)
(837,324) (837,324)
(546,269) (546,269)
(50,170) (50,170)
119,342 119,342
7,522 7,522
(1,306,899) (1,306,899)
(9,701,524) (1,306,899) (11,008,423)
$ (5,869) $
(2,228)
$ (5.869) $ (2,228)
$ 28,810
18,132
77
47,019
5,029,050 52,318 5,081,368 9,322 - -
2,809,995 - 2,809,995 - - -
332,893 - 332,893 - - -
31,417 - 31,417 - - -
1,583,790 - 1,583,790 - - -
535,435 - 535,435 - - -
37,665 70,766 108,431 204 459 10,000
13,213 - 13,213 - - -
64,005 - 64,005 - - -
204,295 52,072 256,367 - - -
- 3,020 3,020 - - -
- 7,080 7,080 - - -
(809,864) 809,364 - - - -
9,831,894 995,120 10,827,014 9,526 459 10,000
130,370 (311,779) (181,409) 3,657 (1,769) 57,019
16,100,685 2,790,965 18,891,650 (2,473) 14,252 627,893
$ 16,231,055 $ 2,479,186 $ 18710241 $ 1,184 $ 12483 $ 684,912
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STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
UNIVERSITIES - AFFILIATED COMPONENT UNITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

(Expressed in Thousands)

REVENUES
Contributions
Rental revenue
Salesand services
Net investment income
Net assats released from restrictions
Licensing revenue
Other revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENSES

Program services:
Paymentsto Universities
Leasing related expenses
Payments on behalf of Universities
Other program services

Personal services, operations, and

administrative expenses

Fundraising expenses

Interest

Depreciation and amortization

Other expenses

Total Expenses
Increasein Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning
Transfers

Net Assets - Ending

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.

TEMPORARILY ~ PERMANENTLY
UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED RESTRICTED TOTAL

$ 9851 $ 82642 $ 15358 $ 107,851

48,598 - - 48,598

39,400 85 - 39,485

24,613 28,233 25714 78,560

118,990 (111,442) (7,548) -

2,434 - - 2,434

29,299 4,290 156 33,745

273,185 3,808 33,680 310,673

92,186 - - 92,186

8,651 - - 8,651

18,440 - - 18,440

10,782 - - 10,782

67,191 - - 67,191

8,250 - - 8,250

27,590 - - 27,590

20,937 - - 20,937

9,201 7 6 9,214

263,228 7 6 263,241

9,957 3,801 33,674 47,432

(14,890) 332,829 665,707 983,646

426 (216) (210) -

$ (4507) $ 336414 $ 699,171 $ 1,031,078




STATE OF ARIZONA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2010

(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Cash
Cash and pooled investments with
State Treasurer
Collateral investment pool
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxes
Interest
Loans and notes
Other
Due from U.S. Government
Duefrom local governments
Due from others
Due from other Funds
Inventories, at cost
Restricted assets:
Cash
Cash and pooled investments with
State Treasurer
Cash held by trustee
Investments
Securities held in escheat
Endowment investments
Other

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and other
current liabilities

Accrued liabilities

Obligations under securities|oan
agreements

Dueto U.S. Government

Dueto local governments

Dueto others

Dueto other Funds

Unavailable deferred revenue

Unearned deferred revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Highway construction
Other congtruction
School facilitiesimprovements
Permanent funds
Continuing appropriations
Debt service
Other fund balance reservations
Unreserved
Unreserved reported in:
Non-major special revenue funds
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilitiesand Fund Balances

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.

TRANSPORTATION &
AVIATION PLANNING,

HIGHWAY LAND OTHER
GENERAL MAINTENANCE&  ENDOWMENTS GOVERNMENTAL
FUND SAFETY FUND FUND FUNDS TOTAL
$ 1405 $ - % 28 $ 4,341 5,774
520,494 35,072 43,663 904,854 1,504,083
42,018 15,266 631,827 25,052 714,163
476,876 60,649 - 61,181 598,706
25 - 240,661 - 240,686
- 8,461 602,370 - 610,831
79,743 7,661 10,422 23,004 121,730
785,757 110,329 - - 896,086
26,784 - - - 26,784
- - - 60 60
33,783 - - 19,251 53,034
2,025 8,404 - 66 10,495
66 - - - 66
51,339 706,631 - 280,272 1,038,242
12,983 - - 27,124 40,107
2,517 - - - 2,517
51,204 - - - 51,204
- - 2,713,668 - 2,713,668
10,883 40,051 - 1 50,935
$ 2,097,902 $ 992524 $ 4242639 $ 1,346,106 8,679,171
$ 233944 $ 150,625 $ 40 $ 38,701 423,310
445,695 11,659 485 22,228 480,067
42,018 15,266 631,827 25,052 714,163
5,301 - - - 5,301
1,035,043 110,291 - 61,748 1,207,082
178,162 - 1 270 178,433
211,995 7,937 1,655 15,994 237,581
634,150 8,461 837,136 940 1,480,687
66,325 - 96,542 960 163,827
2,852,633 304,239 1,567,686 165,893 4,890,451
- 554,180 - 255,317 809,497
- - - 45,403 45,403
14,764 - - - 14,764
- - 2,674,953 - 2,674,953
55,354 87,653 - 28,697 171,704
- - - 26,389 26,389
232 40,327 - - 40,559
(825,081) 6,125 - - (818,956)
. - - 824,407 824,407
(754,731) 688,285 2,674,953 1,180,213 3,788,720
$ 2,097,902 $ 992524 $ 4242639 $ 1,346,106 8,679,171
-45-



STATE OF ARIZONA
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2010

(Expressed in Thousands)

Total fund balances - governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activitiesin the Statement of Net Assets are different
because:

Capital assets used in governmental activitiesare not financial resources and, therefore, are
not reported in the governmental funds.

Certain recelvablesrelated to reimbursements are not available at year end and, therefore, are
not reported in the governmental funds.

Certain recelvables are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, are
deferred in the governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activitiesto
individual funds. The assetsand liabilities of theinternal service fundsareincluded in
governmental activitiesin the Statement of Net Assets.

The allocation of theinternal service fund accumulated net loss resultsin an amount due from
busi ness-type activities, which is not reported in the governmental funds.

Deferred issue costs are reported as current expendituresin the governmental funds. However,
deferred issue costs are amortized over thelife of the bonds and are included in the governmental
activitiesin the Statement of Net Assets.

Long-term debt is not due and payable from current financial resources and, therefore, is
not reported in the governmental funds. These amounts consist of:

Revenue bonds

Grant anticipation notes
Certificates of participation
Capital leases

Installment purchase contracts
Notes payable

Premium on debt

Deferred amount on refundings

Accrued liabilitiesfor AHCCCS programmatic costs and reimbursements are not due and

payable from current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Accrued interest on long-term obligationsis not due and payable from current financial
resources and, therefore, is not reported in the governmental funds.

Other long-term liabilities are not due and payable from current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. Those liabilities consst of:

Compensated absences
Pollution remediation obligations

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. Those assets consist of:

Other non-current assets

Net assets of governmental activities

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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(3,522,605)
(304,480)
(2,571,125)
(412,919)

(901)
(60,712)

(334,721)

5,197

(163,098)
(21,190)

$ 3,788,720

19,063,763

1,769

1,480,687

(322,972)

32,904

12,613

(7,202,266)

(414,409)

(25,468)

(184,288)

2

$ 16,231,055




STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 TRANSPORTATION &
(Expressed in Thousands) AVIATION PLANNING,
HIGHWAY LAND OTHER
GENERAL MAINTENANCE & ENDOWMENTS GOVERNMENTAL
FUND SAFETY FUND FUND FUNDS TOTAL
REVENUES
Taxes:
Sales $ 4370699 $ 199,672 $ - $ 447,606 $ 5,017,977
Income 2,805,338 - - 88 2,805,426
Tobacco 67,815 - - 265,078 332,893
Property 21,890 9,527 - - 31,417
Motor vehicle and fuel - 1,585,919 - - 1,585,919
Other 451,407 - - 84,028 535,435
I ntergovernmental 12,794,911 722,937 - 44,699 13,562,547
Licenses, fees, and permits 91,565 109,025 600 224,336 425,526
Earnings on investments 10,766 6,769 385,393 19,636 422,564
Salesand charges for services 98,552 866 71,060 41,828 212,306
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties 38,355 - - 185,645 224,000
Gaming 5,417 - - 72,137 77,554
Tobacco settlement 105,394 - - - 105,394
Proceeds from sale of trust land - - 78,564 - 78,564
Other 169,478 10,588 2,084 48,073 230,223
Total Revenues 21,031,587 2,645,303 537,701 1,433,154 25,647,745
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 790,719 - - 140,531 931,250
Health and welfare 12,789,086 - 6,496 258,890 13,054,472
Inspection and regulation 45,194 - - 112,267 157,461
Education 5,192,311 - 16,985 493,667 5,702,963
Protection and safety 1,274,928 - 2,669 139,831 1,417,428
Trangportation 58 550,303 - 34,002 584,363
Natural resources 55,754 - 7,795 112,019 175,568
Intergovernmental revenue sharing 1,527,963 1,046,576 - - 2,574,539
Debt service:
Principal 57,283 17,607 - 213,282 288,172
Interest and other fiscal charges 89,831 878 - 195,318 286,027
Capital outlay 73,199 511,135 210 706,797 1,291,341
Total Expenditures 21,896,326 2,126,499 34,155 2,406,604 26,463,584
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Expenditures (864,739) 518,804 503,546 (973,450) (815,839)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfersin 621,254 1,879 28 483,089 1,106,250
Transfers out (1,037,393) (501,646) (24,754) (308,419) (1,872,212)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - 3,088 - - 3,088
Capital lease and installment purchase contracts 2,501 - - 185,335 187,836
Proceeds from notes and loans - 32,628 - - 32,628
Bondsissued 425,420 - - - 425,420
Certificates of participation issued 998,795 - - - 998,795
Premium on debt issued 77,709 - - - 77,709
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,088,286 (464,051) (24,726) 360,005 959,514
Net Changein Fund Balances 223,547 54,753 478,820 (613,445) 143,675
Fund Balances - Beginning (978,278) 633,532 2,196,133 1,793,658 3,645,045
Fund Balances - Ending $ (754,731) $ 688,285 $ 2,674,953 $ 1,180,213 $ 3,788,720

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

(Expressed in Thousands)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 143,675

Amounts reported for governmental activitiesin the Statement of Activities are different
because:

Capital outlays are reported as expendituresin governmental funds. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of assetsis allocated over their estimated useful lives
and reported as depreciation expense. Also, infrastructure was adjusted to reflect post-
GASB 34 costs charged to projects which, at the time of GASB 34 implementation,
had been considered to be complete. Thisisthe amount by which capital outlays
and infrastructure adjustments exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Capital outlay 1,291,341
Infrastructure adjustment 92,252
Depreciation expense (106,923) 1,276,670

The net expense of internal service fundsisincluded with governmental activitiesin the
Statement of Activities. (9,604)

Some revenues reported in the Statement of Activitiesare not currently available at year-
end and are not reported as revenue in the governmental funds.

Salestaxes 11,073
Income taxes 4,569
Accrued interest on land sales contracts 86,223
Operating grants 88,933
Right-of-way lease revenue 2,200 192,998

Certain revenuesthat are reported as resources in the funds, but were earned in prior
fiscal years, are not reported in the Statement of Activities.

Tobacco settlement (5,034)
Other revenue (310) (5,344)

Trust land sales are financed with long-term mortgages. In the Statement of Activities,
the gain on sale of trust land isreported, whereasin the governmental funds, the
proceeds from the collection of mortgage payments are reported. InFY 2010, mortgage
payments exceeded gains resulting from current year land sales. Additionally, an increase
in the allowance for doubtful accounts does not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, is not reported in the governmental funds.

Excess of mortgage receipts over gain on sale of land (8,666)
Increase in allowance for doubtful accounts (5,893) (14,559)
The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement. (Continued)
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STATE OF ARIZONA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
(Expressed in Thousands)

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expendituresin the governmental

funds.

AHCCCS accrued programmatic costs
Other expenses

Certain expenditures that are reported in the governmental fundsin the current year, but
wereincurred in prior fiscal years, are not reported in the Statement of Activities.

Compensated absences
Pollution remediation obligations
Interest on long-term obligations

Bond proceeds provide current financial resourcesto the governmental funds, however,

issuing debt increaseslong-term liabilitiesin the Statement of Net Assets. In the current

period, proceeds were received from:

Bondsissued

Certificates of participation issued
Proceeds from notes and loans
Premium on debt issued

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds, but the

repayment reduces noncurrent liabilitiesin the Statement of Net Assets. In the current

year, these amounts consi st of:

Debt service principal

Debt premium/discount amortization
Amortization of bond issuance costs
Amortization of deferred amount

Some capital asset additions were financed through capital leases and installment purchase
contracts. Such financing arrangements are reported as an other financing sourcein the
governmental funds, however, these amounts are reported asliabilitiesin the Statement

of Net Assts.

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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(33,594)
(15,433)

3,644
1,623
966

(425,420)
(998,795)
(32,628)
(77,709)

288,172
28,601
(1,083)
(3,974)

(49,027)

6,233

(1,534,552)

311,716

(187,836)

130,370




STATE OF ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2010

(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Cash with U.S. Treasury
Cash and pooled investments with State Treasurer
Restricted cash and pooled investments with
State Treasurer
Collateral investment pool
Short-term investments
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxes
Interest
Loans and notes
Other
Due from U.S. Government
Due from other Funds
Inventories, at cost
Other current assets
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Redtricted assets:
Cash
Cash held by trustee
Investments
Investments held by trustee
Receivables, net of allowances:
Loans and notes
Other
Investments
Endowment investments
Deferred outflow - interest rate swap
Other noncurrent assets
Capital assets
Land and other non-depreciable
Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable,
net of accumulated depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

INDUSTRIAL
UNEMPLOYMENT ~ COMMISSION
UNIVERSITIES COMPENSATION  SPECIAL FUND LOTTERY OTHER
438231 $ -8 38,149 - 3,508
- 16,690 - - -
22,669 - 2,800 36,194 14,794
- - - - 66,819
- - 44,180 - -
105,761 - - - 104
- 82,736 3,925 - -
794 - 2,570 - 33
3,373 - - - 4,490
89,511 49,582 2,552 7,090 9,441
82,822 4538 - - 542
200,000 - - - 104
16,508 - - 3,027 6,015
3,371 - - - 891
963,040 153,546 94,176 47,211 106,741
17,851 - - - -
348,951 - - - -
10,248 - - - -
233,202 - - - -
29,833 - - - 4,314
7473 - - - -
182,490 - 304,500 1,528 -
254,052 - - - -
11,126 - - - -
11,849 - - 8,204 -
452,066 - 2,997 1,021 2,153
3,034,753 - 15,639 2,458 19,054
7,593,894 - 323,136 13,211 25,521
5,556,034 153,546 717,312 60,422 132,262

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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GOVERNMENTAL

TOTAL
ENTERPRISE
FUNDS

ACTIVITIES-
INTERNAL
SERVICE FUNDS

479,888 $
16,690
76,457

66,819
44,180
105,865

86,661
3,397
7,863

158,176

87,902

200,104

26,450

4,262

167,351

7,844
3,700
3,115
2,627
5,024

1,364,714

189,661

17,851
348,951
10,248
233,202

34,147
7,473
488,518
254,052
11,126
20,053

458,237

3,071,904

165

61,586

4,955,762

61,751

6,320,476

251,412

(Continued)
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STATE OF ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2010

(Expressed in Thousands) BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
INDUSTRIAL
UNEMPLOYMENT  COMMISSION
UNIVERSITIES COMPENSATION  SPECIAL FUND LOTTERY OTHER
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 122532 % - 8 6,573 $ 4364 $ 2,334
Payable for securities purchased - - 4,567 - -
Accrued liabilities 66,448 20,161 - - 2,037
Obligations under securities|oan agreements - - 44,180 - -
Dueto U.S. Government - 7,650 - - -
Dueto local governments - - - - 31
Dueto others 19,568 57,357 - 26,648 -
Dueto other Funds - 223 - 17,071 1
Unearned deferred revenue 109,257 - - - 8,148
Current portion of accrued insurance losses - - 24,088 - -
Current portion of long-term debt 95,544 - - - 96
Current portion of other long-term liabilities 14,179 - - 329 964
Total Current Liabilities 427,528 85,391 79,408 48,412 13,611
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Unearned deferred revenue 15,170 - - - -
Contracts payable - - - - 12,450
Accrued insurance | osses - - 391,196 - -
Funds held for others 30,244 - - - -
Long-term debt 2,639,227 - - - 133
Derivative instrument - interest rate swap 11,126 - - - -
Other long-term liabilities 54,411 - - - 79
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 2,750,178 - 391,196 - 12,662
Total Liabilities 3,177,706 85,391 470,604 48,412 26,273
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,309,565 - 18,636 3,479 20,978
Restricted for:
Capital projects 2,819 - - - -
Unemployment Compensation - 68,155 - - -
Debt service 34,393 - - - -
Universties fund:
Expendable 202,691 - - - -
Nonexpendable 166,399 - - - -
Loansand other financial assistance:
Expendable - - - - 75,619
Other - - - - 26
Unrestricted (deficit) 663,361 - (71,928) 8,531 9,366
Total Net Assets $ 2,379,228 $ 68,155 $ (53,292) $ 12,010 $ 105,989

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds.

Net assets of business-type activities

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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GOVERNMENTAL

TOTAL ACTIVITIES-
ENTERPRISE INTERNAL
FUNDS SERVICE FUNDS
$ 135803 $ 85,445
4,567 -
88,646 1,408
44,180 -
7,650 -
31 -
103,573 -
17,295 1,377
117,405 -
24,088 53,764
95,640 -
15,472 10,062
654,350 152,056
15,170 -
12,450 -
391,196 319,953
30,244 -
2,639,360 -
11,126 -
54,490 102,375
3,154,036 422,328
3,308,386 574,384
1,352,658 61,751
2,819 -
68,155 -
34,393 -
202,691 -
166,399 -
75,619 -
26 -
609,330 (384,723)
$ 2512,00 $ (322,972)
(32,904)

$ 2,479,186
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STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

(Expressed in Thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES
Salesand charges for services
Student tuition and fees, net of
scholarship allowances of $331,218
Auxiliary enterprises, net of
scholarship allowances of $19,355
Educational department
Lottery
Other
Unemployment assessments
Workers compensation assessments
Intergovernmental
Nongovernmental grants and contracts
Licenses, fees, and permits
Earnings on investments
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties
Settlement income
Other
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cogt of salesand benefits
Scholarships and fellowships
Personal services
Contractual services
Depreciation and amortization
Insurance
Other

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (L 0ss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Share of State salestax revenues
Intergovernmental
Giftsand donations
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets
Investment income
Endowment earnings on investments
Other non-operating revenue
Digtributionsto local governments
Interest expense
Other non-operating expense

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Income (L oss) Before Contributions,
Extraordinary Items, and Transfers

Capital grantsand contributions
Contributions to permanent endowments
Extraordinary Items:

Insurance recovery, net of impairment loss
Trandfersin
Transfers out

Change in Net Assets
Total Net Assets- Beginning

Total Net Assets- Ending

Change in net assets of enterprise funds

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

INDUSTRIAL
UNEMPLOYMENT ~ COMMISSION
UNIVERSITIES ~ COMPENSATION  SPECIAL FUND LOTTERY OTHER
1,022,319 $ -8 - % - -
343,238 - - - -
66,498 - - - -
- - - 551,492 -
- - - - 131,482
- 357,047 - - -
- - 14,664 . .
532,007 1,188,130 - - 742
115,679 - - - -
- - - - 761
- - - - 566
- 1,818 - - -
- - 2,916 - -
30,223 1,085 - 322 1,893
2,109,964 1,548,080 17,580 551,814 135,444
804,164 2,103,028 63,284 385,620 84,040
195,840 - - - -
2,025,816 - - 6,078 25,813
- - - 14,791 7,432
218,577 - 1,339 353 2,106
- - - 57 448
- - - 3,172 6,068
3,244,397 2,103,028 64,623 410,071 125,907
(1,134,433) (554,948) (47,043) 141,743 9,537
52,318 - - - -
245,075 - - - -
159,377 - - - -
(817) - - - -
29,773 9,764 38,951 1,735 307
9,297 - - - -
17,050 - 1,788 - 528
- - - (22,079) -
(102,267) - - - (38)
(10,002) - (3,127) - (84)
399,804 9,764 37,612 (20,344) 713
(734,629) (545,184) (9,431) 121,399 10,250
12,563 - - - -
3,020 - - - -
7,080 - - - -
946,035 - 2,000 - 81
- (5.664) - (119,780) (12,808)
234,069 (550,848) (7,431) 1,619 (2,477)
2,145,159 619,003 (45,861) 10,391 108,466
2379228 $ 68,155 $ (53,292) $ 12,010 105,989

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds.

Change in net assets of businesstype activities

The Notesto the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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GOVERNMENTAL

TOTAL ACTIVITIES-
ENTERPRISE INTERNAL
FUNDS SERVICE FUNDS
$ 1,022,319 $ -
343,238 -
66,498 -
551,492 -
131,482 904,701
357,047 -
14,664 -
1,720,879 -
115,679 -
761 -
566 -
1,818 -
2,916 -
33,523 149
4,362,382 904,350
3,440,136 720,885
195,840 -
2,057,707 20,722
22,223 31,408
222,375 13,586
505 55,388
9,240 9,702
5,948,026 860,691
(1,585,144) 44,159
52,318 -
245,075 -
159,377 -
(817) 189
80,530 27
9,297 -
19,366 98
(22,079) -
(102,305) @)
(13,213) (271)
427,549 42
(1,157,595) 44,201
12,563 3,386
3,020 -
7,080 -
948,116 6,038
(138,252) (49,940)
(325,068) 3,685
2,837,158 (326,657)
$ 2,512,000 $ (322,972)
$ (325,068)
13,289
$ (311,779)

-55-



STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
(Expressed in Thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers

Receipts from assessments

Receipts from student tuition and fees

Receiptsfrom salesand services of auxiliary
enterprises

Receipts from sales and services of educational
departments

Receiptsfrominterfund services/ premiums

Receipts from grants and contracts

Receipts from student loans collected

Receipts from repayment of loansto local
governments

Receipts from settlement income

Paymentsto suppliers prize winners, claimants
insurance companies, or beneficiaries

Paymentsto employees

Paymentsto retirees

Paymentsfor scholarshipsand fellowships

Paymentsfor sudent loansissued

Paymentsfor loansto local governments

Other receipts (payments)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cugtodial fundsreceived
Office rental receipts
Share of State salestax receipts
Grantsand contributions received
Transfers from other Funds
Custodial fundsdisbursed
Grantsand contributions disbursed
Didributionsto local governments
Transfersto other Funds
Other receipts (payments)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capital
Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of capital asets
Proceeds from capital debt, ingtallment purchase
contracts, and capital leases
Capital grantsand contributions received
Transfersfrom other funds
Acquidtion and congtruction of capital asets
Interest paid on capital debt, ingallment purchase
contracts, and capital leases
Principal paid on capital debt, ingtalIment
purchase contracts, and capital leases
Other receipts (payments)
Net Cash (Used) by Capital and
Related Financing Activities

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

INDUSTRIAL
UNEMPLOYMENT ~ COMMISSION
UNIVERSITIES COMPENSATION ~ SPECIAL FUND LOTTERY OTHER
$ - % - $ -8 263,951 131,869
- 339,745 13,539 - -
989,823 - - - -
342,775 - - - -
62,036 - - - -
625,100 1,183,591 - - 435
4,938 - - - -
- - - - 15,270
- - 2,915 - -
(798,531) (2,123,766) (23,292) (134,621) (100,370)
(2,006,789) - - (6,024) (25,823)
(189,830) - - - -
(6,478) - - - -
- - - - (23)
23111 10,413 - 10,691 (1,025)
(953,845) (590,017) (6,838) 133,997 20,333
358,276 - - - -
- - 450 - -
52,284 - - - -
1,097,315 - - - -
969,267 - 2,000 - 81
(373,066) - - - -
(683,362) - - - -
- - - (22,079) -
- (5,648) - (111,354) (12,808)
11,915 - (1,680) - (15)
1,432,629 (5,648) 770 (133,433) (12,742)
465 - - - -
504,726 - - - -
9,060 - - - -
34,625 - - - -
(351,646) - (678) (44) (770)
(102,763) - - - (37
(105,147) - - - (80)
- - (172) - (503)
(10,680) - (850) (44) (1,390)

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare anintegral part of this Satement.
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GOVERNMENTAL

TOTAL ACTIVITIES-
ENTERPRISE INTERNAL
FUNDS SERVICE FUNDS
395,820 $ -
353,284 -
989,823 -
342,775 -
62,036 -
- 911,024
1,809,126 -
4,938 -
15,270 -
2,915 -
(3,180,580) (785,723)
(2,038,636) (29,948)
- (10,942)
(189,830) -
(6,478) -
(23) -
43,190 220
(1,396,370) 84,631
358,276 -
450 -
52,284 -
1,097,315 -
971,348 6,038
(373,066) -
(683,362) -
(22,079) -
(129,810) (49,940)
10,220 (266)
1,281,576 (44,168)
465 1,096
504,726 -
9,060 -
34,625 -
(353,138) (3,475)
(102,800) -
(105,227) -
(675) 92
(12,964) (2,287)
(Continued)
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STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

(Expressed in Thousands) INDUSTRIAL
UNEMPLOYMENT  COMMISSION
UNIVERSITIES COMPENSATION  SPECIAL FUND LOTTERY OTHER
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of invesments 278,670 - 187,421 - -
Interest and dividends from investments 19,307 9,765 13,842 136 488
Change in cash collateral received from securities
lending transactions - - (556) - (2,691)
Purchase of invesments (326,475) - (204,071) - 2
Other (payments) - - (1,247) - (33)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (28,498) 9,765 (4,611) 136 (2,238)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 439,606 (585,900) (11,529) 656 3,963
Cash and Cash Equivalents- Beginning 388,096 602,590 96,658 35,538 81,158
Cash and Cash Equivalents- Ending $ 827,702 $ 16,690 $ 85129 $ 36,194 85,121
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss) $ (1,134,433) $ (554,948) $ (47,043) $ 141,743 9,537
Adjustmentsto reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 218,577 - 1,339 353 2,106
Net changesin asetsand ligbilities
(Increase) decrease in receivables net of
alowances (24,671) (49,441) (689) (1,236) 15,599
(Increase) in due from U.S. Government - (4,538) - - (306)
(Increase) decrease in due from other Funds - - - - (11
(Increase) decreasein inventories at cost 2,691 - - (1,560) 95
(Increase) decrease in other asets (180) - - 126 (5398)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (7,710) - 2,759 (147) (3,454)
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 1,871 (303) - (5,282) (1,685)
Increase in due to U.S. Government - 7,649 - - -
Increase in due to others - 11,564 - - -
Increase in due to other Funds - - - - -
(Decrease) in deferred revenue (9,990) - - - (1,022)
Increase in accrued insurance |osses - - 36,764 - -
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities - - 32 - 12
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (953,845) $ (590,017) $ (6,838) $ 133,997 20,333
SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL
AND NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Assets acquired under capital leases $ 10,000 $ - % - $ - -
Capital |ease obligations assumed by other Funds - - - - -
Contribution of capital asetsfrom other Funds - - - - -
Giftsand conveyances of capital asets 1,165 - - - -
(Loss) ondigposal of capital assets, net (2,276) - - - -
Changeinfair vaue of investments 8,466 - 24,655 - -
Amortization of bond discount and issuance costs (2,346) - - - -
Amortization of bond premium 1,728 - - - -
Amortization of deferred rent 4,900 - - - -
Amortization of deferred cogts of refundings 1,497 - - - -
Total Noncash Investing, Capital and Non-capital
Financing Activities $ 23134 $ - $ 24,655 $ - -

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare anintegral part of this Satement.
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GOVERNMENTAL

TOTAL ACTIVITIES-
ENTERPRISE INTERNAL

FUNDS SERVICE FUNDS

466,001 -

43538 26

(3,247) -

(530,548) -

(1,280) -

(25,446) 26

(153,204) 38,202

1,204,040 129,149

$ 1,050,836 $ 167,351

$ (1,585,144) $ 44,159

222,375 13,586

(60,438) 7,050

(4,844) (1,500)

(11) 841

1,226 122

(592) 2,319

(8,552) 5,249

(5,399) (32)

7,649 -

11,564 -

- 214

(11,012) -

36,764 13,904

44 (1,281)

$ (1,396,370) $ 84,631

$ 10,000 $ -

- 3,082

- 305

1,165 -

(2,276) -

33,121 -

(2,346) -

1728 -

4,900 -

1,497 -

$ 47789 $ 3,387
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STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2010
(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Cash
Cash and pooled invesments with
State Treasurer
Short-term investments
Receivables, net of alowances
Accrued interest and dividends
Securitiessold
Forward contractsreceivable
Contributions
Court fees
Due from other Funds
Miscellaneous receivables
Total receivables

Due from others

Investments, at fair value:
Temporary invesments
U.S. Government securities
Corporate bonds
Corporate notes
Corporate socks
Redl etate
Private equity
Opportunigtic invetments
Collatera investment pool
Repurchase agreements
Money market mutual funds
Other investments

Total invesments

Cugtodial securitiesin safekeeping

Other assets

Property and eguipment, net of
accumulated depreciation

Total Assts

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and other current
liabilities

Payable for securities purchased

Management fee payable

Obligation under securities
loan agreements

Forward contracts payable

Dueto loca governments

Dueto others

Due to other Funds

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Held intrugt for:
Penson benefits
Other pogt-employment benefits
Pool participants

Total Net Assets

PENSION AND OTHER
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT INVESTMENT AGENCY
TRUST FUNDS TRUST FUNDS FUNDS

$ 74,066 $ - % 36,578

- - 192,731

- - 3,552

71,907 10,854 1

261,720 - -

711,480 - -

61,811 - -

872 - -

7,543 - .

15,971 - -

1,131,304 10,854 1

- - 82,351

1,320,643 - .

3,445,520 1,569,759 -

3,206,843 13,057 -

- 717,222 -

17,682,177 - -

1,307,212 - -

948,789 - -

882,306 - -

3,005,171 117,442 -

- 1,817,796 -

- 1,025 -

665,489 8,725 -

32,464,150 4,245,026 -

- - 3,628,892

- - 5,125

4,767 - -

33,674,287 4,255,880 3,949,230

41,054 - -

553,901 - -

- 214 -

3,005,171 117,442 .

695,488 - -

- 306 129,466

. - 3,819,764

7,543 - .

4,303,157 117,962 3,949,230

28,125,156 - -

1,245,974 - -

- 4,137,918 -

$ 29371130 $ 4137918 $ -

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare anintegral part of this Satement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

(Expressed in Thousands)

ADDITIONS:
Member contributions
Employer contributions
Member purchase of service credit
Court fees

Investment income:
Net increasein fair value
of investments
Interest income
Dividends
Other investment income
Securities lending income
Total investment income

Lessinvestment expenses:
Investment activity expenses
Securities lending expenses

Net investment income

Capital share and individual account
transactions:
Shares sold
Reinvested interest income
Shares redeemed
Net capital share and individual
account transactions

Other additions
Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS:

Retirement, disability, and
survivor benefits

Refunds to withdrawing members,
including interest

Adminigtrative expense

Dividendsto investors

Other deductions

Total Deductions

Changein net assets held in trust for:
Pension benefits
Other post-employment benefits
Pool participants

Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

PENSION AND OTHER

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT INVESTMENT
TRUST FUNDS TRUST FUNDS

$ 1,006,081 $ -

1,207,510 -

83,251 -

9,538 -

3,110,723 8,841

258,565 14,256

338,532 -

158,770 -

18,741 193

3,885,331 23,290

137,990 2,508

2,197 114

3,745,144 20,668

- 5,400,670

- 19,679

- (5,542,087)

- (121,738)

4,204 -

6,055,818 (101,070)

2,785,129 -

184,020 -

38,415 -

- 19,122

12,628 -

3,020,192 19,122

2,909,653 -

125,973 -

- (120,192)

26,335,504 4,258,110

$ 29371130 $ 4,137,918

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
COMPONENT UNITS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2010

(Expressed in Thousands) WATER
INFRASTRUCTURE UNIVERSITY ARIZONA
FINANCE MEDICAL POWER
AUTHORITY CENTER AUTHORITY TOTAL
ASSETS
Current Assts:
Cash $ - 8 1214 % - 1,214
Cash and pooled investments with State Treasurer 66,324 - 5,503 71,827
Cash held by trustee 4,703 - - 4,703
Collateral investment pool 3,636 - - 3,636
Short-term investments - 124,297 - 124,297
Redtricted investments held by trustee - 11,773 4,046 15,819
Receivables, net of allowances:
Interest 12,762 17 - 12,779
Patient accounts receivable - 77,503 - 77,503
Other 6,195 47,886 3,388 57,469
Inventories, at cost - 12,300 - 12,300
Other current assets - 3,917 1,707 5,624
Total Current Assets 93,620 278,907 14,644 387,171
Noncurrent Assts:
Redtricted investmentsheld by trustee - 43,234 6,551 49,785
Loans and notesreceivable, net of allowances 1,158,137 - - 1,158,137
Investments 105,257 - - 105,257
Other noncurrent assets 4,996 14,802 29,200 48,998
Capital assets:
Land and other non-depreciable - 27,485 - 27,485
Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable 101 548,929 1,322 550,352
Less accumulated depreciation (101) (263,295) (1,182) (264,578)
Total Noncurrent Assets 1,268,390 371,155 35,891 1,675,436
Total Assets 1,362,010 650,062 50,535 2,062,607
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities - 55,353 3,644 58,997
Accrued liabilities 10,235 37,757 542 48,534
Obligations under securities|oan agreements 3,636 - - 3,636
Current portion of accrued insurance losses - 5,568 - 5,568
Current portion of long-term debt 36,995 4,295 4,220 45,510
Current portion of other long-term liabilities 85 9,036 61 9,182
Total Current Liabilities 50,951 112,009 8,467 171,427
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Unearned deferred revenue 2,412 - - 2,412
Accrued insurance losses - 8,845 - 8,845
Long-term debt 872,607 275,617 37,900 1,186,124
Other long-term liabilities - 8,887 - 8,887
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 875,019 293,349 37,900 1,206,268
Total Liabilities 925,970 405,358 46,367 1,377,695
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - 47,317 140 47,457
Redtricted for:
Loansand other financial assistance 379,482 - - 379,482
Other - 22,127 - 22,127
Unregtricted 56,558 175,260 4,028 235,846
Total Net Assets $ 436,040 $ 244704 % 4,168 $ 684,912

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

COMPONENT UNITS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

(Expressed in Thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES
Salesand charges for services
Intergovernmental
Licenses, fees, and permits
Earnings on investments

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of sales and benefits
Interest on program loans
Personal services
Contractual services
Aidto local governments
Depreciation and amortization
Other

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income
Interest expense
Other non-operating expense
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Income Before Contributions

Capital grantsand contributions

Changein Net Assets
Total Net Assets- Beginning

Total Net Assets - Ending

WATER
INFRASTRUCTURE ~ UNIVERSITY ARIZONA
FINANCE MEDICAL POWER

AUTHORITY CENTER AUTHORITY TOTAL

$ -8 567,639 30,927 598,566

72,203 - - 72,203

13,248 - - 13,248

22,889 - - 22,889

108,340 567,639 30,927 706,906

- 124,812 28,621 153,433

37,769 - - 37,769

1,348 252,252 - 253,600

1,240 102,276 - 103,516

31,477 - - 31,477

- 26,487 31 26,518

7,696 32,163 2,190 42,049

79,530 537,990 30,842 648,362

28,810 29,649 85 58,544

6,066 3,908 26 10,000

- (11,783) (8) (11,791)

- (1,209) - (1,209)

6,066 (9,084) 18 (3,000)

34,376 20,565 103 55,544

- 1,475 - 1,475

34,876 22,040 103 57,019

401,164 222,664 4,065 627,893

$ 436,040 $ 244,704 4,168 684,912

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

UNIVERSITIES - AFFILIATED COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30, 2010
(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalent investments

Receivables.
Pledgesreceivable
Other receivables

Total receivables

Investments:
Investmentsin securities
Investments held in trust for Universities
Other investments
Total investments

Net direct financing leases

Property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation

Licenses

Other assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Liability under Universities endowment
trust agreements
Bonds payable
Unearned revenue
Other liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Permanently restricted
Temporarily restricted
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total Net Assets

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.

ARIZONA CAPITAL

ARIZONA STATE  UNIVERSITY FACILITIES OTHER
UNIVERSITY OF ARIZONA FINANCE COMPONENT
FOUNDATION  FOUNDATION CORPORATION UNITS TOTAL
$ 9619 $ 37173 $ 2054 $ 20,222 69,068
92,581 14,068 - 44,443 151,092
3,168 - 933 17,259 21,360
95,749 14,068 933 61,702 172,452
495,102 346,558 25,423 114,439 981,522
- 30,525 - 4,809 35,334
39,146 6,606 620 2,887 49,259
534,248 383,689 26,043 122,135 1,066,115
26,975 - 46,592 47,775 121,342
18,756 13113 233,141 152,232 417,242
. i - 4,530 4,530
14,799 2,960 5,768 17,798 41,325
700,146 451,003 314,531 426,394 1,892,074
80,344 16,134 - 5423 101,901
79,554 - 346,488 227,177 653,219
3,961 - - 26,928 30,889
33,589 4,500 14,658 22,240 74,987
197,448 20,634 361,146 281,768 860,996
345,464 311,411 - 42,296 699,171
170,164 106,147 - 60,103 336,414
(12,930) 12,811 (46,615) 42,227 (4,507)
$ 502,698 $ 430,369 $ (46,615) $ 144,626 1,031,078




STATE OF ARIZONA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
UNIVERSITIES - AFFILIATED COMPONENT UNITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
(Expressed in Thousands)
ARIZONA CAPITAL

ARIZONA STATE UNIVERSITY FACILITIES OTHER
UNIVERSITY OF ARIZONA FINANCE COMPONENT
FOUNDATION FOUNDATION CORPORATION UNITS TOTAL
REVENUES
Contributions $ 42,034 $ 50,893 $ - 14924  $ 107,851
Rental revenue 1,151 - 16,349 31,098 48,598
Salesand services 22,855 - 8,466 8,164 39,485
Net investment income 34,231 33,650 166 10,513 78,560
Licensing revenue - - - 2,434 2,434
Other revenues 4,120 9,899 4,771 14,955 33,745
Total Revenues 104,391 94,442 29,752 82,088 310,673
EXPENSES
Program services:
Paymentsto Universities 41,971 41,672 511 8,032 92,186
Leasing related expenses - - - 8,651 8,651
Payments on behalf of Universities - 13,194 - 5,246 18,440
Other program services 5,770 - - 5,012 10,782
Personal services, operations, and
administrative expenses 25,394 4,117 10,413 27,267 67,191
Fundraising expenses - 5,593 - 2,657 8,250
Interest 2,199 - 14,071 11,320 27,590
Depreciation and amortization 2,415 - 11,285 7,237 20,937
Other expenses 7,173 - 457 1,584 9,214
Total Expenses 84,922 64,576 36,737 77,006 263,241
Increase (decrease) in net assets 19,469 29,866 (6,985) 5,082 47,432
Net Assets - Beginning 483,229 400,503 (39,630) 139,544 983,646
Net Assets - Ending $ 502,698 $ 430,369 $ (46,615) 144,626 $ 1,031,078

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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INOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the State of Arizona (the State) conform to U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (U.S.
GAAP) applicable to governmenta units adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The State is a general purpose government. The accompanying financia statements present the activities of the State (the
primary government) and its component units. Component Units’ footnote disclosures are presented in Note 16 — Discretely
Presented Component Unit Disclosures.

Component Units

Component units are legally separate entities for which the State is considered to be financially accountable, or organizations that
raise and hold economic resources for the direct benefit of the State. Blended component units, although legally separate entities,
are in substance, part of a government’s operations. Therefore, data from these units is combined with data of the primary
government. Discretely presented component units of the State, except for component units affiliated with the State's
Universities, arereported in separate columns in the government-wide financia statements to emphasize they are legally separate
from the State. Because the component units affiliated with the Universities follow Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) statements, these financial statements have been reported on separate pages foll owing the respective counterpart financial
statements of the State. For financial reporting purposes, only the statement of financial position and the statement of activities
for component units affiliated with the Universities are included in the State's financial statements, as required by the GASB.

GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial
accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and (1) the ability of the
State to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or
impose specific financia burdens on, the State.

In addition, GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units (GASB 39) requires
that legally separate, tax-exempt entities that meet all of the following criteria should be discretel y presented as component units:
(1) The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are entirely or aimost entirely for the direct benefit of
the primary government, its component units, or its constituents, (2) The primary government, or its component units, is entitled
to, or hasthe ahility to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the separate organization, and
(3) The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the specific primary government, or its
component units, is entitled to, or hasthe ability to otherwise access, are significant to that primary government.

The State reports the following blended component units:

The Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS) is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, pension plan that benefits employees of the
State and participating political subdivisions and school digricts. The ASRS is administered in accordance with provisions of
Arizona Revised Statutes (ARS) Title 38, Chapter 5, Articles2 and 2.1. The ASRS is governed by a nine-member board that is
appointed by the Governor and approved by the Senate to serve three-year terms.

The Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) is an agent, multi-employer public employee retirement system that
benefits public safety employees of certain State and local governments. The PSPRS is jointly administered by the Board of
Trustees (formerly Fund Manager) and 225 local boards according to the provisions of ARS Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 4. The
Board of Trustees is a seven-member board appointed by the Governor and approved by the Senate to serve a fixed five-year
term. Each eligible group participating in the system has a five-member local board. In genera, all members serve a fixed four-
year term.

The Elected Officials’ Retirement Plan (EORP) is a cost-sharing, multi-employer public employee retirement plan that benefits

elected officials and judges of certain State, county, and local governments. The Board of Trustees (formerly Fund Manager) of
the PSPRS administers the EORP plan according to the provisions of ARS Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 3.
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The Corrections Officer Retirement Plan (CORP) is an agent, multi-employer public employee retirement plan that benefits
prison and jail employees of certain State, county, and local governments. The Board of Trustees (formerly Fund Manager) of the
PSPRS and 24 local boards administer the CORP plan according to the provisions of ARS Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 6.

Each plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes its financial statements and required supplementary
information. A report may be obtained from the applicable plan’s office or website at:

Arizona State Retirement System
P.O. Box 33910
Phoenix, Arizona 85067-3910
(602) 240-2000 or (800) 621-3778
WWW.azasrs.gov

Public Safety Personnel Retirement System, Elected Officials’ Retirement Plan, or the Corrections Officer Retirement Plan
3010 Eagt Camelback Road, Suite 200
Phoenix, Arizona 85016
(602) 255-5575
WWW.pSprs.com

The State reports the following discretely presented component units:
Governmental Funds:

Greater Arizona Development Authority (GADA) — The purpose of the GADA is to provide cost-effective access to capital for
local communities, certain special districts, and tribal governments for public infrastructure projects. The GADA was created by
an Act of the Arizona Legidature in 1997 and is a body, corporate and palitic, of the State. The GADA is governed by a nine
member Board of Directors consisting of four State of Arizona agency heads and five members, one of which shall be a
representative of atribal nation in Arizona, appointed by the Governor of the State. Members appointed by the Governor serve
staggered five year terms. The GADA fund was originaly capitalized with General Fund appropriations and requests for
additional capitalization of the GADA must be approved by the Arizona Legislature. Complete financia statements may be
obtained from the GADA’s adminidstrative office at 1700 West Washington Street, Executive Tower, Suite 600, Phoenix AZ
85007, (602) 771-1100.

Rio Nuevo Multipurpose Facilities Digtrict (Rio Nuevo) — The Rio Nuevo was established in 1999 with the passage of
Proposition 400 by the voters in the Cities of Tucson and South Tucson. Under applicable ARS, the Didtrict can utilize tax
incremental financing to help devel op multipurpose facilities in the downtown Tucson area. The Rio Nuevo is governed by a
nine member board of directors, with five members appointed by the Governor, two members appointed by the President of the
Senate, and the remaining two members appointed by the Speaker of the House of Representatives. Complete financial
statements may be obtained from Beach Fleischman & Co. PC, ¢/o Jim Lovelace, 1985 E. River Rd. #201, Tucson, AZ 85718-
7176, (520) 321-4600.

Proprietary Funds:

University Medical Center (UMC) — The UMC isthe primary teaching hospital for the Colleges of Medicine, Nursing, Pharmacy,
and Public Hesalth, and the School of Health-Related Professions of the University of Arizona (U of A). The UMC was created in
1984 when the State Legidature passed a hill that alowed the Arizona Board of Regents (ABOR) to convey the UMC to a
private, not-for-profit, tax-exempt corporation. Although an autonomous entity was created, the teaching missions and research
alliances with the U of A and the State remained. The ABOR confirms al members of the UMC’s Board of Directors, and must
approve all amendments to the UMC’s articles of incorporation and bylaws. Complete financial statements may be obtained from
the UMC’s administrative offices or website at 1501 N. Campbell Ave., Tucson, Arizona 85724, (520) 694-6501,
Www.azumc.com.

Arizona Power Authority (APA) — The APA purchases the State’s allocation of power produced at the federally owned Boulder
Canyon Project hydropower plant and resells it to Arizona entities that are eligible purchasers under federal and state laws. The
APA is governed by a commission of five members appointed by the Governor and approved by the Senate. The term of office
of each member is six years and the members select a chairman and vice-chairman from among their membership for aterm of
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two years. All revenue bonds issued by the APA must be approved by the State Certification Board. Complete financial
statements may be obtained from the APA’s adminigrative offices at 1810 West Adams Street, Phoenix, Arizona 85007, (602)
368-4265.

Water Infrastructure Finance Authority (WIFA) — The WIFA is authorized to administer the Clean Water Revolving Fund. The
Clean Water Revolving Fund was created pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, which required the State to
establish the Clean Water Revolving Fund to accept federal capitalization grants for publicly owned wastewater treatment
projects. The WIFA has also entered into an agreement with the Environmental Protection Agency to administer the Drinking
Water Revolving Fund pursuant to the Safe Drinking Water Act. The WIFA is governed by a twelve-member board of directors.
The ten Governor appointed directors serve staggered terms of five years and serve at the pleasure of the Governor. Complete
financial statements may be obtained from the WIFA’s administrative offices at 1100 West Washington Street, Suite 290,
Phoenix, Arizona 85007, (602) 364-1324.

Component units of the State affiliated with the Universities are legally separate, tax-exempt organizations controlled by separate
boards of directors that meet the criteria established in GASB 39, with the exception of the Collegiate Golf Foundation,
University Public Schoals, Inc., and Campus Research Corporation (CRC). The Collegiate Golf Foundation and University
Public Schools, Inc. are included because each is a legally separate organization that the State believes would be misleading to
exclude due to its financial relationship or close affiliation to the State. The CRC is included because the U of A approves the
budget; thus fiscal dependency exists.

The following discretely presented component units affiliated with the Universities are reported as major component units of the
State:

Arizona State University Foundation (ASU Foundation) — The ASU Foundation's resources are disbursed at the discretion of the
Foundation's independent board of directors, in accordance with donor directions and Foundation policy.

Arizona Capital Facilities Finance Corporation (ACFFC) — The ACFFC provides facilities for either use by students of ASU or
ASU itsdf.

University of Arizona Foundation (U of A Foundation) — The U of A Foundation supports the U of A through various fund-
raising activities and contributes fundsto the U of A in support of various programs.

The following discretely presented component units affiliated with the Universities are reported as non-major component units of
the State:

Arizona State University Alumni Association, Sun Angel Foundation, and Sun Angel Endowment — These three foundations
receive funds primarily through donations, dues, and/or affinity partners and contribute funds to ASU for support of various
programs.

Arizona State University Research Park, Inc. (ASU Research Park) — ASU Research Park manages a research park to promote
and support research activities in coordination with ASU.

Mesa Student Housing, LLC and Downtown Phoenix Student Housing, LLC — These foundations provide facilities for use by
students of ASU.

Collegiate Golf Foundation — This foundation operates an ASU-owned golf course.

University Public Schoals, Inc. (UPSI) — The UPSI operates two public schools designed to be on the forefront of education
innovation and improvement, with the goal of developing educational models that can be scaled across the State and nation to
improve the academic achievement of children.

University of Arizona Alumni Association (U of A Alumni Association) — The U of A Alumni Association was established to

servethe U of A and its graduates, former students, and friends by attracting, organizing, and encouraging them to advance the U
of A's missions - teaching, research, and public service.
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University of ArizonaLaw College Association (Law Association) — The Law Association was established to provide support and
financial assistance to the College of Law at the U of A. The Law Association funds provide support to the College on many
levels, from endowed student scholarships to named faculty professorships.

University of Arizona Campus Research Corporation (CRC) — The CRC was established to assist the U of A in the acquisition,
improvement, and operation of the U of A Science and Technology Park (Park) and related properties. The CRC currently leases
from the U of A the remaining 67.00% of building space of the Park not leased to the Arizona Research Park Authority. The
CRC is responsible for assisting in the development of the presently undeveloped portions of the Park and for subleasing
unoccupied space, newly developed space, and space now occupied by IBM or its subtenants once the current subleases expire.
The U of A isresponsible for payment of operational expenses associated with the space occupied by the U of A departments,
offices, and programs.

Northern Arizona University Foundation, Inc. (NAU Foundation) — The NAU Foundation receives gifts and bequests, administers
and invests securities and property, and disburses payments to and on behalf of NAU for advancement of its mission.

Northern Arizona Capital Facilities Finance Corporation (NACFFC) — The NACFFC was established for the purpose of
acquiring, devel oping, constructing, maintaining, and operating student housing and other capital facilities and equipment for the
use and benefit of NAU's students.

Complete financial statements for each of the aforementioned component units, except for the U of A Foundation, may be
obtained at the following addresses:

ASU Foundation, ACFFC, ASU Alumni Association, Sun Angel Foundation, Sun Angel Endowment, ASU Research Park,
Collegiate Golf Foundation, Mesa Student Housing, LLC, Downtown Phoenix Student Housing, LLC, and the UPSl — Arizona
State University, Financia Services, P.O. Box 875812, Tempe, Arizona 85287-5812 or (480) 965-3601

U of A Alumni Association — Alumni Association, The University of Arizona, P.O. Box 210109, Tucson, Arizona 85721-0109
Law Association — Law College Association, The University of Arizona, P.O. Box 210176, Tucson, Arizona 85721-0176

CRC - The University of Arizona Science and Technology Park, 9030 South Rita Road, Suite 302, Tucson, Arizona 85747
NAU Foundation and NACFFC — Northern Arizona University, Comptroller's Office, P.O. Box 4069, Flagstaff, Arizona 86011

The financial statements of the U of A Foundation are not publicly available. For information regarding the U of A Foundation's
financial statements, contact the U of A Comptroller at the following address: University of Arizona, Financial Services, P.O.
Box 3310, Tucson, Arizona 85722-3310.

Related Organizations

Related organizations are legally separate entities for which the State is not considered to be financially accountable, and that do
not meet the criteria established by GASB 39. The State’s accountability for these organizations does not extend beyond making
the appointments, nor are the economic resources accessible to the State. As a result, financial activity for the organizations
described below is not included in the State’s financial statements.

Arizona Health Facilities Authority (the Authority) — ARS 836-482 established the Authority to issue tax-exempt bonds and oans
for the purpose of improving health care for Arizona residents by providing less expensive financing for health care facilities.
Proceeds from bond issues are loaned to various qualifying nonprofit health care organizations. The health care organizations
reimburse the Authority for expenses for issuance of the bonds, pay fees of the Authority, and make payments under the loans for
the benefit of the holders of the bonds. The Authority is governed by a seven-member board of directors that is appointed by the
Governor and approved by the Senate. The directors serve staggered terms of seven years, and can be removed for cause or at
will by the Governor with the consent of the Senate. The State cannot abrogate the rights of the Authority until al bonds,
together with the interest thereon, are fully paid and discharged and all agreements are fully performed.

Arizona International Development Authority (the Authority) — ARS 841-4502 established the Authority to facilitate the
development of international trade or commerce between Arizona and other countries. The Authority is governed by a seven-
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member board of directors appointed by the Governor and approved by the Senate for five-year terms, and can be removed only
for cause.

Arizona Sports and Tourism Authority (the Authority) — ARS 85-802 established the Authority to construct, finance, furnish,
maintain, improve, operate, market, and promote the use of a multipurpose facility and do all things necessary or convenient to
accomplish those purposes. The Authority may issue revenue bonds in such principal amounts to accomplish the above stated
purposes. The Authority is governed by a nine-member board of directors of which five are appointed by the Governor and
approved by the Senate and two members each by the President of the Senate and the Speaker of the House. The directors serve
terms of five years, may be re-appointed for one full subsequent term, and can be removed only for cause.

Arizona Housing Finance Authority (the Authority) — ARS 841-3902 established the Authority to issue bonds for residential
dwelling units and multifamily residential rental projects in rural areas. The Authority may also establish mortgage credit
certificate programs to finance residential dwelling unitsin rural areas. The Authority is required to notify and obtain written
consent from the governing bodies of any city, town, county, tribal government, or existing corporation for any multifamily
residential rental projects planned for their jurisdiction. The Authority is governed by a seven-member board of directors that is
appointed by the Governor and approved by the Senate. The directors serve terms of seven years, and can be removed only for
cause.

State Compensation Fund — ARS §23-981 established the State Compensation Fund to provide insurance to employers for
workers’ compensation, occupational disease compensation, and medical, surgical, and hospital benefits. The State
Compensation Fund is governed by a board of directors that consists of five members appointed by the Governor for staggered
terms of five years. Annually, the Governor appoints a chairman from among the board members.

Joint Ventures

Asdescribed in Note 10, the U of A participatesin ajoint venture. In accordance with U.S. GAAP, the financial activities of this
joint venture are not included in the State’s financial statements.

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The basic financial statements include both government-wide statements and fund financial statements. The government-wide
statements focus on the State as a whole, while the fund financia statements focus on major funds. Each presentation provides
valuable information that can be analyzed and compared between years and between governments to enhance the usefulness of
the information.

Government-wide statements provide information about the primary government and its component units. The statements
include a statement of net assets and a statement of activities. These statements report the financial activities of the overall
government, except for fiduciary activities. They also distinguish between the governmenta and business-type activities of the
State and between the State and its discretely presented component units. Governmental activities generally are financed through
taxes and intergovernmental revenues. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external
parties.

The Statement of Net Assets presents the State’s non-fiduciary assets and liabilities, with the difference reported as net assets.
Net assets arereported in three categories:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by
outstanding balances for bonds, notes, and other debt that are attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those assets.

Restricted net assets result when constraints placed on net asset use are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors, and the like, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or voter initiative.

Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets which do not meet the definition of the two preceding categories. Unrestricted
net assets often have constraints on resources, which are imposed by management, but can be removed or modified.
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The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each function of the
State’s governmental activities, and its different business-type activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated
with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular program or function. The State does not allocate
indirect expenses to programs or functions.

Program revenues include:

i chargesto customers or applicantsfor goods, services, privileges provided, and fines or forfeitures
i operating grantsand contributions
i capital grants and contributions, including specia assessments

Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including internally dedicated resources and all taxes, are reported as
general revenues.

Interfund bal ances have been eliminated from the government-wide financial statementsto the extent that they occur within either
the governmenta or business-type activities. Balances between governmental and business-type activities are presented as
interna balances and are eliminated in the total column. Revenues and expenses associated with reciprocal transactions within
governmental or within business-type activities have not been eliminated.

Fund financial statements provide information about the State’s funds, including fiduciary funds. Separate statements are
presented for the governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary fund categories. The emphasis of fund financial statementsison major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are
aggregated and reported as non-major funds. Fiduciary funds are aggregated and reported by fund type.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal
activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values.
Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, adminidrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The State reports the following major governmenta funds:

The General Fund - is the State’s primary operating fund. It accounts for al financial resources of the general government,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Transportation and Aviation Planning, Highway Maintenance and Safety Fund — accounts for all financial transactions
applicable to the general operations of the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT). The ADOT builds and maintains the
State’s highway system and the Grand Canyon Airport.

The Land Endowments Fund — holds lands granted to the State by the Federal government for the benefit of public schools and
other public ingtitutions. Principal is maintained intact and investment earnings and |ease revenues are distributed to beneficiaries
in accordance with State statute.

The State reports the following major enterprise funds:

The Universities — account for transactions of the State’s three universities, which comprise the State’s university system.

Unemployment Compensation — pays claims for unemployment to eligible recipients from employer contributions and
reimbursements.

The Industrial Commission Special Fund (Special Fund) — accounts for the payment of workers’ compensation claims that are not
covered by the State Compensation Fund, the Risk Management Division of the Department of Administration, private insurance
carriers, and self-insured employers.

The Lottery — accounts for the activities of the Arizona State L ottery.
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Additionaly, the State reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds — account for insurance coverage, employee benefits, automotive maintenance and operation, highway
equipment rental's, and data processing and telecommunication services provided to State agencies on a cost-reimbursement basis.
It isthe paolicy of the State to classify immateria proprietary fund activities in governmenta funds. This policy helps to reduce
the number of funds reported in the financial statements to the minimum amount needed. These funds alocate a fixed rate
payroll processing charge among all agencies, allocate postage and mailing costs among all agencies, or arrange for the sale of the
State’s office equipment and motorized vehicles at public auctions.

Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds — account for the activities of the ASRS, the PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP,
for which the State acts as a trustee. These retirement and other post-employment benefit plans accumulate resources to pay
pension, hedlth insurance premium subsidies, and long-term disability benefits of State employees and employees of other
governmental entities participating in the plans.

Investment Trust Funds — account for transactions by local governments and palitical subdivisions that elect to participate in the
State Treasurer’s investment pools. The Treasurer acts as trustee for the original deposits made into the investment pools.

Agency Funds — account for the receipt and disbursement of various taxes, deposits, deductions, property collected by the State,
and payment of the health insurance subsidy by the PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP, where the State acts as an agent for
distribution to other governments and organizations.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The government-wide, proprietary fund, and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrua basis of accounting. However, the agency funds are custodial in nature and do not have a
measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless
of when therelated cash flowstake place. Grantsand donations are recognized as revenues as soon as all eigibility requirements
the provider imposed have been met.

Governmental fundsin the fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The State
considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within 31 days after year-
end, except for the Transportation and Aviation Planning, Highway Maintenance and Safety Major Fund, as well as certain non-
major governmental funds administered by the ADOT, which consider revenues to be available if collected within 60 days after
year-end. Those revenues susceptible to accrual are federal reimbursements, highway user revenue tax, and state sales tax.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on long-term debt, claims
and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they are due and payable. General
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of long-term debt and acquisitions under
capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the State funds certain programs through a combination of grants and general revenues.
Therefore, when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted resources available to finance the
program. The State’s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted resources is made on a case-by-case basis.
The State’s business-type activities and enterprise funds follow Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and
Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989; Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research
Bulletins, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements. The State has chosen the option not to follow
FASB Statements and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989.

D. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

On the Statement of Cash Flows, the amount reported as “Cash and Cash Equivalents” is equal to the total of the amounts on the
Statement of Net Assets “Cash”, “Cash with U.S. Treasury”, “Cash and pooled investments with State Treasurer”, “Cash held by
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trustee” and “Collateral investment pool”. For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the State considers only those highly
liquid debt instruments with an original maturity of ninety days or less to be cash equivalents.

i Cash (not with State Treasurer) — includes un-deposited receipts, petty cash, bank accounts, non-negotiable certificates of
deposit, and demand deposits with banking ingtitutions other than the State Treasurer.

i Cash with U.S. Treasury — consists of unemployment compensation contributions from Arizona employers that are deposited
in atrust fund maintained by the United States Treasury.

i Cash and pooled investments with State Treasurer — consists of a centralized management of most State cash resources
maintained by the State Treasurer. From the perspective of the various State funds, the pool functions as both a cash
management pool and a demand deposit account. The operations and investments of the State Treasurer’s pooled
investments are described in Note 2.

i Cash held by trustee — consists of capital projects and bond debt service funds invested by the trustee in accordance with the
applicable financing indenture, generally limited to United States Treasury securities and other Federal agency securities,
certificates of deposit, commercial paper, and money market funds.

i Collateral investment pool — consists of cash received as collateral on securities lending transactions and investments made
with that cash. The State records the collateral received as an asset. A corresponding liability is also recorded for such
securities lending transactions.

2. Investment Valuation

Investments maintained by the State Treasurer are reported at fair value using JP Morgan prices, as determined by independent,
industry recognized data vendors who provide values that are either exchange based or matrix based. Equities are priced utilizing
the primary exchange closing price. In the absence of a closing price, the mid/bid price will be utilized. If no pricing source is
available, the cost price or last available price from any source will be utilized. All bonds are priced using an evaluated market
price, the closing trade/bid price or the most recent mid/bid price, except securities with aremaining maturity of 90 days or less
are priced at amortized cost (amortizing premium/accreting discount on a straight-line to maturity method). If no pricing source
isavailable, the cost price or the last available price from any source will be utilized.

The ASRS’ publicly traded investments are reported at fair value determined by the custodial agents. The agents’ determination
of fair values includes, among other things, using pricing services or prices quoted by independent brokers at current exchange
rates. ASRS’ derivative instruments, which consist of futures, forward contracts, options, swaps, rights, and warrants, are
measured at fair value. Changes in fair values of derivative ingruments are reported as net increase (decrease) in fair value of
investments. Private real estate, private equity, and opportunistic partnership investments are valued based on the partnerships’
March 2010 financial statements adjusted for cash flows through June 30, 2010. Short-term investments are reported at cost plus
accrued interest, which approximates fair value. For investments where no readily ascertainable fair value exists, the ASRS, in
consultation with its investment advisors, has determined the fair values for the individual investments based on anticipated
maturity dates and current interest rates commensurate with the investment’s degree of risk. Security transactions and any
resulting gains or losses are accounted for on atrade date basis. Net investment income (loss) includes net increase (decrease) in
the fair value of investments, interest income, dividend income, real estate, private equity, and opportunistic investments income,
and total investment expense. This includes investment management, real estate, private equity, and opportunistic investment
expenses and al other significant investment related costs.

For the PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP, investments are reported at fair value. Short term investments are reported at fair
value, which approximates cost. Equity securities are valued at the last reported sales price. Fixed income securities are valued
using the last reported sales price or the estimated fair market value as determined by the fixed income broker/dealers. Directed
real estate and venture capital investments are reported at fair value using appraisals to estimate the fair market value. Appraisals
will be performed every three years on a rolling schedule unless circumstances warrant otherwise. Investment income is
recognized as earned.

-74-



STATE OF ARIZONA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

E. TAXES RECEIVABLE

Taxes receivable include amounts owed by taxpayers for prior periods including assessments for underpayments, penalties, and
interest. In the government-wide financial satements, a corresponding amount is recorded as revenue using the accrual basis of
accounting. In the governmental fund financial statements, revenue is recorded using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
The remainder isrecorded as deferred revenues.

The income tax receivable is composed of individua and corporate estimated payments, withholding payments, and payments
with final returns and assessments that relate to income earned through June 30, 2010. Sales and motor vehicle and fuel tax
receivables represent amounts that are earned by the State in the fiscal period ended June 30, 2010, but not collected until the
following month.

F. INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption in all funds and merchandise intended for sale to customers in
the proprietary funds. Inventories are stated at cost using the first-in, first-out method, weighted average, or lower of cost or
market. In the governmental funds, inventories are accounted for using the consumption method. Under this method, inventories
arerecorded as expenditures asthey are used.

G. PROPERTY TAX CALENDAR

Real property taxes are levied on or before the third Monday in August and become due and payable in two equal installments.
The first installment is due on the first day of October and becomes delinquent after the first business day of November. The
second installment is due on the first day of March of the next year and becomes delinquent after the first business day of May.
A lien attaches on thefirst day of January preceding assessment and levy.

H. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capitd assets are stated at cost at the date of acquisition or, if donated, at the estimated fair market value at the date received.
Interest incurred during the construction of capital assetsis only capitalized in the proprietary funds.

Most capital assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. However, the State reports most infrastructure assets using
the modified approach, as provided by GASB Statement No. 34. Under this approach, rather than being depreciated, costs to
maintain and preserve these assets are expensed. This approach is discussed further in the Required Supplementary Information
portion of this report. The State has adopted a general policy for capitalization thresholds, depreciation, and estimated useful
lives of capital assets. In addition, the State has approved alternative policies for some State agencies.

Depreciable capital assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis. Capitalization thresholds (the dollar values at which asset
acquisitions are added to the capital asset accounts) and estimated useful lives of capital assets being depreciated in the
government-wide financial statements and the proprietary funds are as follows:

General State Policy Other Authorized Agency Policies
Capitalization Estimated Useful Capitalization Estimated Useful
Asset Category Threshold Life (years) Threshold Life (years)

Land All capitalized Not depreciated All capitalized Not depreciated
Buildings All capitalized 25-40 $0-$100,000 10-50
Improvements other than buildings $5,000 15 $5,000-$100,000 20-50
Equipment $5,000 3-15 $5,000 3-25
Infrastructure All capitalized Not depreciated $0-$100,000 20-100
Software $1,000,000 5-10 $1,000,000 5-10
Other intangibles $100,000 Varied $100,000 Varied

Other intangibles include licenses and permits, patents, copyrights and trademarks, rights-of-way and easements, and natural
resource extraction rights. These are amortized over the shorter of the legal or estimated useful lifeif the useful lifeis definite or
limited. If thelifeisindefinite or unlimited, they are not amortized. In addition, rights-of-way and easements are amortized only
if the value is separable from the underlying land and natural resource extraction rights are not amortized unless the value of the
underlying asset isidentifiable.
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The State istrustee for approximately 9.3 million acres of land acquired through U.S. Government land grantsin the early 1900’s.
The State acquired a substantial portion of this land a no cost and its fair market value a acquisition has not been reliably
estimated. Accordingly, thisland is not reported in the accompanying financial statements.

The State has interest in and maintains significant special collections, works of art, and historical treasures. Except for ASU, all
special collections, works of art, and historical treasures which are held for financial gain are capitalized at fair market value at
the date of acquisition or donation. Those special collections, works of art, and higtorical treasures which are held for
educational, research, or public exhibition purposes are not capitalized, as they are not subject to disposal for financia gain or
encumbrance. Such items are inventoried for property control purposes. ASU capitalizes all works of art and higtorical treasures
with a unit cost of $5,000 or more.

Additiona disclosures related to capital assets and assets acquired through capital leases are provided in Notes 4 and 7,
respectively.

I.  INVESTMENT EARNINGS
Investment earnings are composed of interest, dividends, and net changes in fair value of applicable investments.
J. SCHOLARSHIP ALLOWANCES

Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues earned by the three State Universities are reported net of scholarship
discounts and allowances in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets. A scholarship discount and
allowance is the difference between the stated charge for goods and services provided and the amount that is paid by the student
or third party making payment on behalf of the student. Accordingly, some types of student financia aid such as Pell grants and
scholarships awarded by the Universities are considered to be scholarship allowances. These allowances are netted against
applicable revenues in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets.

K. DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue consists of payments to the State for goods and services not yet rendered, or taxes, grants, and other non-
exchange transactions for which related resources are not available to pay current liabilities. In the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements, revenue is deferred when cash, receivables, or other assets are received prior to their being
earned. In the governmental fund financial statements, revenue is deferred when that revenue is unearned or unavailable.

L. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, the State accrues liabilities for compensated absences as
required by the GASB. In the governmental fund financial statements, liabilities for compensated absences are not accrued,
because they are not considered due and payable.

In general, State employees accrue vested annual leave at a variable rate based on years of service. Except for uncovered State
employees and University employees, an employee generally forfeits accumulated annual leave in excess of 240 hours as of the
last day of the last pay period for a calendar year, unless the Director of the Department of Administration authorizes an
exception. Uncovered State employees shall forfeit accumulated annual leave in excess of 320 hours as of the end of each
calendar year, unless an exception is authorized. University employees may accumulate up to 264 hours of vacation, and any
vacation hoursin excess of the maximum amount that are unused at December 31 areforfeited. Except for University employees,
an employee who separates from State service is paid for all unused and unforfeited annual leave at the employee’s rate of pay at
the time of separation. University employees, upon termination of employment, are paid all unused vacation benefits not
exceeding 176 hours (annual accrual amount), depending on years of service and full-time equivalent employment status.

Some employees accumul ate compensatory leave for time worked over 40 hours per week. An employee may accumulate up to
240 hours of compensatory leave (480 if working in a public safety activity or an emergency response activity). An employee
who separates from State service is paid for all unused compensatory leave at either the employee’s average base salary during
the last three years of employment or final base salary, whichever ishigher.

For sick leave policy, see Note 11.C.
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M. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financia statements, long-term debt and long-term liabilities are reported as
liabilities. Amounts due within one year arereported as current liabilities, and amounts due thereafter are reported as non-current
liabilities. Premiums and discounts on revenue bonds and COPs are deferred and amortized over the life of the debt instrument
using the straight-line method. Bonds and COPs are reported net of the applicable premium or discount. Bond issuance costs and
deferred gains or losses on debt refundings are charged to expense in the period incurred unless those costs are deemed to be
material to the State’s financia statements by management, in which case, they are deferred and amortized using either the
straight-line method or the effective interest method.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize proceeds from revenue bonds, COPs, other issuances, and
premiums and discounts on debt as other financing sources and uses in the current period. Long-term liabilities are more fully
described in Note 7.

N. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS AND REPORTING ENTITY CHANGE

GASB Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets. The objective of this Statement is to
establish accounting and financial reporting requirements for intangible assets to reduce inconsistencies, thereby enhancing the
comparability of the accounting and financial reporting of such assets among state governments. This Statement requires that all
intangible assets not specifically excluded by its scope provisions be classified as capital assets. Accordingly, existing
authoritative guidance related to the accounting and financial reporting for capital assets should be applied to these intangible
assets, asapplicable. This Statement al so provides authoritative guidance that specifically addresses the nature of these intangible
assets. Such guidance should be applied in addition to the existing authoritative guidance for capital assets. The requirements of
this Statement are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2009. The State has implemented the requirements of this
standard.

GASB Statement No. 53. Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments. This Statement addresses the
recognition, measurement, and disclosure of information regarding derivative instruments entered into by the State. Governments
enter into derivative instruments as investments; as hedges of identified financial risks associated with assets or liabilities, or
expected transactions; or to lower the cost of borrowing. The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning
after June 15, 2009. The State hasimplemented the requirements of this standard.

GASB Statement No. 58, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Chapter 9 Bankruptcies. The objective of this Statement isto
provide accounting and financia reporting guidance for governments that have petitioned for protection from creditors by filing
for bankruptcy under Chapter 9 of the United States Bankruptcy Code. The requirements of this Statement are effective for
periods beginning after June 15, 2009. The State has implemented the requirements of this standard, but they had no effect on the
financial statements.

In prior years, the Rio Nuevo was reported in the financia statements of the City of Tucson as a discretely component unit and
separately issued financial statements were not prepared. In November 2009, the State Legidature passed Senate Bill 1003
which changed the configuration of the Rio Nuevo’s Board. The nine member Board is appointed as discussed earlier in Note
1(A). In March 2010, the newly recongtituted Board met for the first time. As a result of this change, it was determined that
ultimate financial accountability for the Rio Nuevo is now with the State, rather than with the City of Tucson. Therefore, the Rio
Nuevo will bereported in the financial statements of the State of Arizona beginning in fiscal year 2010.

|NOTE 2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENT POLICIES

The State’s deposits and investments are primarily under the control of the State Treasurer, the Retirement Systems, the
Universities, and the Industrial Commission (the Commission). These entities maintain the majority of the deposits and
investments of the primary government. The investment policies of these organizations are defined according to State statutes, or
agoverning board, or both and are described below.

ARS 835-312, §35-313, and 835-314 authorize the State Treasurer to invest operating, trust, and permanent endowment fund
monies. Monies deposited with the State Treasurer by State agencies are invested by the State Treasurer in a pooled fund. Any
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interest earned is allocated monthly into each respective fund based on average daily cash balances. There is no income from
investments associated with one fund that is assigned to another fund.

The State statutes and the State Treasurer’s investment policies designed to administer these statutes restrict investments to
obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies, obligations or other evidence of indebtedness of the State and certain local
government subdivisions, negotiable certificates of deposit, bonds, debentures and notes issued by U.S. corporations, commercia
paper issued by entities organized and doing business in the United States, bankers acceptances, collateralized repurchase
agreements, money market mutual funds, domestic equities, and other securities. The State Treasurer is not allowed to invest in
foreign investments.

The State Treasurer maintains external investment pools [the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), Local Government
Investment Pool - FF&C, Local Government Investment Pool — Medium Term, and Local Government Investment Pool —
Medium Term FF&C]. The pools are not required to register (and are not registered) with the Securities and Exchange
Commission under the 1940 Investment Advisors Act. The activity and performance of the pools are reviewed monthly by the
State Board of Investment in accordance with ARS 835-311. Please note that in prior years, the Local Government Investment
Pool — FF&C was the Local Government Investment Pool — Government and the Local Government Investment Pool — Medium
Term was the Local Government Investment Pool — Long Term. In addition, the Local Government Investment Pool — Medium
Term FF& C was created during fiscal year 2010 as an additional investment option.

In September of 2008, the State agencies’ and an external investment pool’s share of the Lehman Brothers bond value of $39.427
million was transferred to the Lehman Brothers Pool due to Lehman Brothers filing for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection on
September 15, 2008. Thetransfer was made to provide for the declinein fair value of the Lehman Brothers securities. As of June
30, 2010, the fair value of the pool was $7.693 million. The likelihood that these participant monies will be recovered is not
known.

The fair value of investments is measured on a monthly basis. Participant shares are purchased and sold based on the Net Asset
Value (NAV) of the shares. The NAV is determined by dividing the fair value of the portfolio by the total shares outstanding.
The State Treasurer does not contract with an outside insurer in order to guarantee the value of the portfolio or the price of shares
redeemed.

The Central Arizona Water Conservation District is an individual investment account.

State statutes authorize the retirement systems to make investments in accordance with the “Prudent Person” rule. As such,
investment management shall discharge the duties of their position with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence, under the
circumgtances then prevailing, that a “prudent person” acting in enterprise of a like character and with like aims as that of the
system, subject to certain satutory limitations and restrictions.

The ASRS invests in short-term securities, obligations of the U.S. government or agencies of the U.S. government, corporate
bonds, common and preferred stocks (domestic and foreign), mortgages, derivatives, real estate, private equity, and opportunistic
investments. Per ARS 838-719, no more than 80.00% of the ASRS’ total assets may be invested at any given time in corporate
stocks or equity equivalents, based on cost value of the stocks or equity equivalents irrespective of capital appreciation. No more
than 5.00% of the voting stock of any one corporation may be owned. No more than 30.00% of the ASRS’ assets may be
invested in foreign securities, and those investments shall be made only by investment managers with demonstrated expertise in
such investments. No more than 10.00% of the ASRS’ assets may be invested in bonds or other evidences of indebtedness of
those multinational development banksin which the U.S. isa member nation, including the International Bank for Reconstruction
and Devel opment, the African Development Bank, the Asian Development Bank, and the Inter-American Development Bank.
No more than 1.00% of the ASRS’ assets may be invested in economic development projects authorized as eligible for such
investment by the Arizona Department of Commerce. ARS 835-392 requires divestment from investments in companies that do
business in Sudan, Iran, or other State Sponsors of Terrorism countries under certain conditions. Subject to the limitations noted
above, the ASRS Board may authorize the ASRS Director to make investments that are designated by the ASRS Board and that
do not exceed 50.00% of the assets of the investment account measured at cost. The ASRS Board has not formally adopted more
restrictive policies for the various types of risks.

Per ARS §38-848, §38-803A(4), and §38-883A(4), the PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP, respectively, may not invest at any
given time more than 80.00% of the combined assets of the system or other plansthat the Board of Trustees manages in corporate
stocks, based on cost value of such stocks irrespective of capital appreciation. In addition, the PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP
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investments shall be restricted to stocks and exchange traded funds that, except for bank and insurance stocks and membership
interestsin limited liability companies, are either: 1) listed or approved on issuance for listing on an exchange registered under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, 2) designated or approved on notice of issuance for designation on the national
market system of a national securities association registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, 3) listed or
approved on issuance for liging on an exchange registered under the laws of this State or any other State, 4) listed or approved on
issuance for listing on an exchange registered of a foreign country with which the U.S. is maintaining diplomatic relations at the
time of purchase, except that no more than 20.00% of the combined assets of the system or other plans that the board manages
shall be invested in foreign securities, based on the cost value of the stocks irrespective of capital appreciation, or 5) an
exchanged traded fund that is recommended by the chief investment officer of the system, that is registered under the Investment
Company Act of 1940, and that is both traded on a public exchange and based on a publicly recognized index. Not more than
5.00% of the combined assets of the system or other plans that the board manages shall be invested in corporate stock issued by
any one corporation, other than corporate stock issued by corporations chartered by the U.S. government or corporate stock issued
by a bank or insurance company. Not more than 5.00% of the voting stock of any one corporation shall be owned by the system
and other plans that the board administers, except that this limitation does not apply to membership interests in limited liability
companies.

The ABOR governs the investment policies of the Universities. The Universities are generally limited to investing their pooled
operating funds in collateralized certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements, U.S. Treasury securities, Federal agency
securities, investment grade corporate bonds, or in the LGIP administered by the State Treasurer. Investment of capital project
funds is also governed by the financing indenture agreements. For endowment investments, ABOR policy dictates that these
funds are to be invested under the direction of an investment committee designated by the president of each university. The
investment committee is responsible for advising on the definition, development, and implementation of investment objectives,
policies, and restrictions. However, if donors restrict the investments, ABOR policy requires the University to invest those funds
separately as directed by the donor, and theindividual endowments bear al changesin value.

Per ARS §23-1065, the Commission’s investment committee is responsible for prescribing investment policies and supervising
the investment activities of the Commission. The Commission requires that their investment policy be responsive to the
unpredictable nature of the incidence and severity of claims, the long periods over which losses may be paid, and the effect on
both claims and losses of increases in treatment and rehabilitation costs. The investment committee may invest in any legal
investment authorized under ARS §38-719.

B. CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the deposits or
collateral securities may not be recovered from an outside party. The State Treasurer’s, the Retirement Systems’, and the
Universities’ deposits of State treasury monies with financial institutions are required by State statutes to be entirely covered by
the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or, alternatively, collateralized for amounts in excess of the amount
insured. Surety collateral for the Universities and the Retirement Systems must be equal to at least 100.00% of the bank balance
required to be collateralized (102.00% for the State Treasurer). Beyond this requirement, these organizations do not have a
formal policy specifically addressing custodial credit risk on deposits, except for the State Treasurer. The State statutes require
surety collateral for the State Treasurer to consist of either: 1) U.S. Government obligations, State obligations, or obligations of
counties or municipalities within the State, 2) State Treasurer’s warrant notes, or 3) the safekeeping receipt of the financial
ingtitution accepting the deposit. As of June 30, 2010, some State agencies have uncollateralized and uninsured deposits in the
amount of $467 thousand and $34.933 million in deposits collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial inditution’s
trust department or agent, but not in the State’s name.

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the value of the
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party may not be recovered. The State does not have a
formal policy in regards to custodial credit risk for investments. As of June 30, 2010, the State had $97.863 million in securities
that were uninsured, not registered in the State’s name, and held by either the counterparty or counterparty’s trust department or
agent, but not in the State’s name.
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C. INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest raterisk istherisk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The State manages
interest rate risk using the segmented time distribution, weighted average maturity, and effective duration methods.

The State Treasurer manages interest rate risk by incorporating ARS limitations into their investment policy and setting forth
various thresholds or parameters in accordance with each investment pool’s portfolio structure. The State Treasurer’s policy
provides either maturity or duration limitations for the various investment pools. The interest rate risk inherent in the portfolio is
monitored monthly by measuring the weighted average maturity and/or duration.

The ASU policy for operating funds limits the maximum maturity of any fixed rate issue to five years. The capital projects funds
portfolio is not limited as to the overall maturity of its investments, with funds invested per the financing indentures to coincide
with capital spending needs and debt service requirements, which are typically less than three years, with the additional limitation
that certificates of deposit and commercial paper have maximum maturities of 360 days and 270 days, respectively.

The Commission approves and contracts with different investment managers of fixed income equities in order to manage the
exposure to interest rate risk with each different fund manager focusing on different goals of yield periods or duration of
maturities of their particular portion of the investment pool.

The following table presents the State Treasurer’s, the ASU’s, and the Commission’s weighted average maturity in years by
investment type (expressed in thousands):

Weighted Average

Investment Type Fair Value Maturity (in years)
Asset backed securities $ 99,714 1.11
Commercial mortgage backed securities 10,020 28.09
Commercial paper 1,001,686 A1
Corporate notes & bonds 1,400,022 3.86
FDIC certificates of deposit 8,725 .67
Government bonds 10,324 12.22
Government mortgage backed securities 34,473 17.00
Index linked government bonds 11,034 6.23
Money market mutua funds 238,146 .10
Non-government backed collateralized mortgage
obligations (CMOs) 9,884 19.22
Repurchase agreements 2,384,724 0.02
U.S. agency securities 1,393,661 1.49
U.S. agency securities - full faith 26,196 2.70
U.S. agency mortgage backed securities 457,846 13.99
U.S. agency mortgage backed securities— full faith 287,557 19.10
U.S. Treasury securities 2,281,341 .88
Other 21,506 4.73

Total Debt Securities $ 9,676,859 2.39

The ASRS does not have a formal policy in regards to interest rate risk, but does manage interest rate risk using effective
duration. Effective duration measures the expected change in value of a fixed income security for a given change in interest rate.
This method takes into account the likely timing and amounts of variable cash flows for bonds with call options and prepayment
provisions. The following table presents ASRS’ effective duration by investment type (expressed in thousands):
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Effective
Duration
Investment Type Fair Value (in years)
Asset backed securities $ 318,016 2.40
CMOs of government agencies 8,596 (1.00)
Commercial mortgage backed securities 312,398 3.10
Corporate bonds 1,424,474 4.90
Government bonds 1,088,288 4.60
Government mortgage backed securities 1,397,129 1.70
Government rel ated bonds 884,248 3.40
Non-government backed CMOs 91,938 4.60
Total Debt Securities $ 5,525,087 3.53

The PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP do not have a formal policy in regards to interest raterisk. The NAU’sand theU of A’s
investment policies for their operating funds limit the maximum maturity of any fixed-rate or variable-rate security to five years
from the settlement date of purchase. The NAU’s and the U of A’s endowment funds have no such limitation. The following
table presents the interest rate risk for the PSPRS, the EORP, the CORP, the NAU, the U of A, and other State agencies utilizing
the segmented time distribution (expressed in thousands):

Investment Maturities (in years)

Investment Type Fair Value Lessthanl 1-5 6-10 11-15 16-20 More than 20
Corporate notes & bonds $1051580 $ 11,126 $ 27864 $ 29873 $ 11590 $ 6,183 $ 964,944
Collateralized bond obligations

(CBOs) 27,9% - - 12,321 - - 15,673
Collateralized debt obligations

(CDOs) 15,398 - - - - - 15,398
Money market mutua funds 542,883 542,883 - - - - -
U.S. agency securities 282,234 73,694 140,670 25,587 16,662 12,699 12,922
U.S. Treasury securities 25,956 20,048 5,589 319 - - -
Other investments 28,672 71 5,636 22,266 173 47 479

Tota Debt Securities $ 1974717 $ 647,822 $ 179759 $ 90366 $ 28425 $ 18929 $ 1,009,416

The following table presents the State’s investments at fair value that are considered to be highly sensitive to interest rate changes

(expressed in thousands):

Corporate
Notes & U.S. Agency
Interest Rate Terms Securities Securities Total

The London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus/minus a fixed

basi s point amount which resets from monthly to quarterly. $ 371,888 $ 134211 $ 506,099
Corporate asset backed securities with coupon tied to LIBOR

plus/minus a fixed basis point amount which resets monthly. 73,741 - 73,741
Mortgage backed securities (including full faith) - when interest rates

fall, mortgages are refinanced and paid off early and the reduced

stream of future interest payments diminishes fair value. - 780,499 780,499
U.S. Agency Securities - where on certain specified dates, theissuer

can call the security. If the security is not called, theinterest rateis

increased by a specified amount. Prevailing interest rates may go

up faster than the increases in the coupon interest rate. - 214,554 214,554
Other securities with high sensitivity to rate changes. ) 131,699 131,699

Total $ 445629 $ 126093 $ 1,706,592
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D. CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations to the holder of the
investment.

State statutes and the State Treasurer’s investment policy require that commercial paper must be rated by at least two nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs) and that the ratings assigned by at least two of the NRSROs be of the two
highest rating categories for short-term obligations. Corporate bonds, debentures, and notes must carry a minimum Baa or better
rating from Moody’s Investor Service (Moody’s) or a BBB or better rating from Standard and Poor’s Rating Service (S& P). For
investments not rated by Moody’s, Fitch rating information is used. Thereis no statute or investment policy on ratings or credit
quality for obligations issued by the U.S. Government or its agencies or repurchase agreements. The underlying securities for
repurchase agreements are assumed to be implicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government, as some are collateralized with U.S.
Agency securities.

The ASRS has not adopted a formal policy with respect to credit risk.

The PSPRS’, the EORP’s, and the CORP’s investment policies are specific as to permissible credit quality ranges, exposure
levels within individual quality tiers, and the average credit quality of the overall portfolios. The fixed income portfolio must
have a minimum weighted average quality rating of A3 by Moody’s and A- by S & P. Fixed income investments must have a
minimum quality rating of Baa3 by Moody’s and BBB- by S & P at the time of purchase. Commercial paper must have a
minimum quality rating of P-1 by Moody’s and A1 by S & P at the time of purchase. The portion of the bond portfolio in
investments rated Baa3 through Baal by Moody’s and BBB- through BBB+ by S & P must be 20.00% or less of the fair value of
the fixed income portfalio.

The Universities’ policies mirror that of the ABOR, which requires that negotiable certificates of deposit, corporate bonds,
debentures and notes, bankers acceptances, and State of Arizona bonds carry a minimum BBB or better rating by S & P or Baaor
better rating by Moody’s; and that commercial paper be rated by at least two NRSROs and must be of the two highest rating
categories for short-term obligations of at |east two of the NRSROs. Also, ASU’s capital projects and bond debt service funds are
invested by the bond trustee in accordance with the applicable financing indenture.

The Commission’s investment policy requires that purchases of fixed income securities will consist of U.S. Treasury or Federal
agency obligations or those bonds rated not less than Ba by Moody’s or BB by S & P, except for fixed income managers who
have been hired to manage funds in a specialized manner (high yield).

The following table presents the State’s investments which were rated by S & P and/or an equivalent national rating organization
as of June 30, 2010. Theratings are presented using S & P’srating scale (expressed in thousands):
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Fair CCC Not

Investment Type Value AAA AA A BBB BB B ThruD Al Rated
Asset backed securities 418434 $ 170060 $ 37942 $ 23268 $ 65006 $ 16604 $ 21572 $83176 $ - $ 806
Bond mutual funds 22,098 - - - - - - - - 22,098
CBOs 27,994 - - 23,262 - - - - - 4,732
CDOs 15,398 - - 15,398 - - - - - -
CMOs of government

sponsored entities 8,596 8,596 - - - - - - - -
Commercial mortgage

backed securities 322,418 251,329 9,774 41,320 10,158 3,020 - 2,543 - 4,274
Commercial paper 1,001,686 - - - - - - - 1,001,686 -
Corporate notes &

bonds 3,514,503 135,559 1,275,672 1,079,882 488,021 120,967 265,462 110,017 - 38,923
Government bonds 1,097,697 1,097,697 - - - - - - - -
Government mortgage

backed securities 1,397,129 1,397,129 - - - - - - - -
Government related

bonds 884,248 785,355 50,734 24,415 23,582 162 - - - -
Indexed linked

government bonds 10,763 10,763 - - - - - - - -
Money market

mutual funds 781,029 710,345 - - - - - - - 70,684
Non-government

backed CMOs 101,822 16,587 1,405 10,836 10,517 2,389 9,302 48,495 - 2,291
Repurchase agreements 310,240 310,240 - - - - - - - -
U.S. agency mortgage

backed securities 457,846 457,846 - - - - - - - -
U.S. agency securities 1,607,298 1,337,824 788 5,399 - - - - 263,279 8
Other investments 91,658 3,130 11 - - - - - - 88,517

Total $ 12,070,857 $6,692,460 $1,376,326 $1,223,780 $597,284 $143142  $296,336  $244,231 $1,264,965 $232,333

E. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Concentration of credit risk is therisk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment in a single issuer. The
State Treasurer’s, the ASRS’, the Universities’, and the Commission’s investment policies provide that no more than 5.00% of
thelr investments may be invested in securities issued by any one ingtitution, agency, or corporation, other than securities issued
as direct obligations of or are fully guaranteed by the U.S. Government or mortgage backed securities and agency debentures
issued by federal agencies. The State Treasurer aso exempts from this policy the purchase of Treasurer Warrant Notes for the
State Agencies Diversified pool, provided the maximum amount of the notes purchased shall not exceed 50.00% of the market
value of thepool. The PSPRS’, the EORP’s, and the CORP’sinvestment policies state that no more than 5.00% of the Fund or its
fixed income portfolio at fair value shal be invested in bonds issued by any one ingitution, agency, or corporation other than
bonds used as direct obligations of and fully guaranteed by the U.S. Government. At June 30, 2010, more than 5.00% of the
Governmental Activities’ total investments were held in the following single issues (expressed in thousands):

Issuer Description Fair Value Percentage
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation $ 564,873 9.20%
Federal National Mortgage Association 808,783 13.17%

At June 30, 2010, more than 5.00% of the Business-type Activities’ total investments were held in the following single issues
(expressed in thousands):

Issuer Description Fair Value Percentage

Federd Home Loan Bank $ 116,574 9.11%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 147,704 11.55%
Federal National Mortgage Association 152,103 11.89%
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F. FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Foreign currency risk istherisk that changes in the foreign exchange rate will adversely impact the fair value of an investment or
deposit. The State does not have a formal policy regarding foreign currency risk. The ASRSisthe primary State agency that has
foreign currency risk. Per ARS 838-719, no more than 30.00% of the ASRS’ assets may be invested in foreign equity securities
and those investments shall be made only by investment managers with demongrated expertise in those investments. The ASRS
has not adopted a formal policy that is more restrictive. The following table summarizes the State’s foreign currency risk as of
June 30, 2010 (expressed in thousands):

Foreign Currency Risk by Investment Type at Fair Value

Other

Currency Short Term  Fixed Income Equities Investments Total
Australian Dollar $ 192 % 413 $ 73,904 $ 49 $ 74,558
Bermudian Dollar - 2,232 - - 2,232
Brazilian Read 6 167 773 - 946
British Pound Sterling (42) 8,030 380,065 22,968 411,021
Canadian Dollar 696 27,986 20,465 133 49,280
Czech Koruna 63 - 4,719 - 4,782
Danish Krone 6 - 20,165 20 20,191
Euro Currency 8,464 9,265 662,396 54,027 734,152
Hong Kong Dollar 185 - 93,838 39 94,062
Israeli Shekel - - 503 76 579
Japanese Yen 4,934 - 406,279 922 412,135
Mexican Peso - - 606 - 606
New Zealand Dollar 5 - 5,037 7 5,049
Norwegian Krone 41 - 2,527 40 2,608
Singapore Dallar 14 - 24,292 25 24,331
South African Rand - - 13,272 - 13,272
South Korean Won - - 21,091 - 21,091
Swedish Krona 6 372 31,603 27 32,008
Swiss Franc 4 - 212,888 37 212,929
Thailand Baht - - 1,017 - 1,017
Various mutual funds - 1,272 43,769 642 45,683

Total $ 14574 $ 49737 $ 2,019,209 $ 79012 $ 2,162,532

G. UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION

Pursuant to Section 904 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 8§1104), unemployment insurance contributions from Arizona
employers are deposited in an unemployment trust fund account with the Secretary of the Treasury of the United States. The cash
on deposit in the trust fund account is pooled and invested. Interest earned from investments purchased with such pooled monies
is deposited in the trust fund account. The Unemployment Compensation Fund, reported as a major enterprise fund, has been
established for this purpose.

H. SECURITIES LENDING

Cash received as collateral on securities lending transactions and investments made with that cash are reported as assets. A
corresponding liability is also recorded for such securities lending transactions.

1. Industrial Commission

State statutes and the Commission’s policies permit the Commission to enter into securities lending transactions with its custodial
bank. Therewere no significant violations of legal or contractual provisions, and there were no borrower or lending agent default
losses to the securities lending agent. The custodial bank, Northern Trust, manages the securities lending operations through a
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contractual agreement with the Commission and splits the fees received with the Commission. There was no credit risk (i.e,
lender’s exposure to the borrowers of its securities) related to the securities lending transactions at June 30, 2010. Northern
Trust’s indemnification responsibilities include performing appropriate borrower and collateral investment credit analysis,
demanding adequate types and levels of collateral, and complying with applicable Department of Labor and Federa Financial
Ingtitutions Examinations Council regulations concerning securities lending. Securities are loaned for collateral that may include
cash, U.S. Government securities, and irrevocable letters of credit. Domestic securities are loaned for collateral valued at
102.00% of the market value of securities loaned plus accrued interest. International securities are loaned for collateral valued at
105.00% of the market value of securities loaned plus accrued interest. The market value at June 30, 2010 for loaned securities
collateralized by cash and non-cash collateral was $43.005 million and $0, respectively. As part of the securities lending
transactions, Northern Trust received cash and non-cash collatera valued at $44.180 million and $0, respectively at June 30,
2010. Non-cash collateral cannot be pledged or sold unless the borrower defaults.

All securities loans can be terminated on demand by either the lender or the borrower. The average term of the loans is 90 days
and cash open collatera is invested in a short-term investment pool, the Core USA Collateral Section, which had an interest
sensitivity of 24 days as of June 30, 2010. Cash collatera may also be invested separately in term loans, in which case the
investments match the loan term. Cash open loans can be terminated on demand by either the lender or the borrower and there
were no dividends or coupon payments owing on securities lent. Securities lending earnings are credited to participating clients
on approximately the fifteenth day of the following month. Investments made with cash collateral received are classified as an
asset on the Statement of Net Assets. A corresponding liahility is recorded as the Commission must return the cash collatera to
the borrower upon expiration of the loan. At June 30, 2010, the Commission had $44.180 million outstanding as payable for
securities lending. A maximum restriction on the amount of securities that can be lent out at any one time of $43.976 million was
set by the Commission on September 29, 2008.

2. Arizona State Retirement System

The ASRS is permitted by ARS 838-715(D) (3), to enter into securities lending transactions. The ASRS’ custodial bank enters
into agreements with counterparts to loan securities and have the same securities redelivered at a later date. All securities are
eligible for loan (U.S. fixed income securities, U.S. equities, and international equities) with a higher percentage of U.S.
Treasuries on loan than most other security types. The ASRS currently receives as collatera at least 102.00% of the market value
of the loaned securities and maintains collateral a no less than 100.00% for the duration of the loan. At year-end, the ASRS had
no counter party risk to borrowers because the amount the ASRS owes the borrowers exceeds the amount the borrowers owe the
ASRS. The ASRS records the collateral received as an asset and the same amount as an obligation for securities on loan. Cash
collateral received may be reinvested. The maturities of the investments are closely matched to those of the security loans to
avoid interest rate exposure. The ASRS receives a spread for its lending activities. Investments made with cash collateral
received are classified as an asset on the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets. A corresponding liability is recorded as the ASRS
must return the cash collateral to the borrower upon expiration of the loan. At June 30, 2010, the fair value of securities on loan
was $3.9 hillion; $2.3 billion in cash collateralized loans and $1.6 hillion in non-cash collateralized loans. Cash of $2.4 billion
received as collateral for securities loaned was reinvested and had a net asset value of $2.4 hillion, as of June 30, 2010. The
securities lending payable at June 30, 2010 was $2.4 billion. The ASRS is indemnified against gross negligence and borrower
default by the lending agents.

3. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System, Elected Officials’ Retirement Plan, and Corrections Officer Retirement
Plan

The PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP are permitted by ARS Title 38, Chapter 5, Articles 4, 3, and 6, respectively, to enter into
securities lending transactions. The PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP are parties to securities lending agreements with a bank.
The bank, on behalf of the PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP, entersinto agreements with brokersto loan securities and have the
same securities returned at a later date. The loans are fully collateralized, primarily by cash. Collateral is marked-to-market on a
daily basis. Non-cash collateral can be sold only upon borrower default. The PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP require collateral
of at least 102.00% of the fair value of the loaned U.S. Government or corporate security. The PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP
have no credit risk because the amounts owed to the borrowers exceed the amounts the borrowers owe to the retirement system or
plan. Securities on loan are carried at fair value. As of June 30, 2010, the fair values of securities on loan for the PSPRS, the
EORP, and the CORP were $481.292 million, $29.368 million, and $117.191 million, respectively. At June 30, 2010, the fair
value of the associated collatera for the PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP were $494.161 million, $30.153 million, and $120.325
million, respectively. The PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP are indemnified for broker default by the securities lending agent.
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I. DERIVATIVES
A derivative instrument is afinancial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characterigtics:

i It hasone or more underlyings and one or more notional amounts or payment provisions or both. Those terms determine the
amount of the settlement or settlements, and in some cases, whether or not a settlement isrequired.

i It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types of
contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors.

i Its terms require or permit net settlement, it can readily be settled net by means outside the contract, or it provides for
delivery of an asset that puts the recipient in a position not substantially different from net settlement.

The ASRS is the primary State agency that has investment derivatives. The ASRS’s derivatives are considered “Investment
Derivative Instruments’ as defined in GASB 53. All funds are considered fiduciary funds.

The ASRS’s derivative instruments, which consist of futures contracts, forward contracts, options, swaps, rights, and warrants,
are measured at fair value and reported on the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets. Changes in fair values of derivative
instruments are reported as net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments on the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net
Assets.

The fair value balances and notional amounts of derivative instruments outstanding at June 30, 2010, classified by type, and the

changes in fair value of derivative ingruments for the year then ended as reported in the June 30, 2010 financia statements are as
follows (expressed in thousands):

Investment Derivatives by Type

Changes in Fair Value

Fair Value at June 30, 2010

Investment Derivatives Classification Amount Classification Amount Notional
Net increase (decrease) in fair

Commodity futures value of investments $ 7,357 Forward contracts payable $ (579 $ 14,551
Net increase (decrease) infair Temporary investments, other

Credit default swaps written value of investments 30 investments 58 13,900
Net increase (decrease) infair

Fixed income futures value of investments 72,987 Forward contracts receivable 15,289  (22,064,950)
Net increase (decrease) infair Temporary investments, other

Fixed income options written value of investments 513 investments (749) (90,100)
Net increase (decrease) infair

Foreign currency futures value of investments 35,085 Forward contracts receivable 16,088 81,103
Net increase (decrease) infair

Foreign currency options written value of investments 40 Not applicable - -
Net increase (decrease) infair

Futures options written value of investments (137) Temporary investments (877) (570)
Net increase (decrease) infair

Foreign currency forwards value of investments 27,547 Forward contracts receivable 6,207 683,735
Net increase (decrease) infair

Index futures value of investments 26,949 Forward contracts payable (24,588) 7,405
Net increase (decrease) infair

Fixed interest rate swaps value of investments (207)  Other investments 167 34,000
Net increase (decrease) infair

Rights value of investments 1,111 Corporate stocks 74 1,334
Net increase (decrease) infair

Warrants value of investments (208) Corporate stocks 675 479

Total $171,067 $ 11,765 $(21,319,113)

The fair value of derivative instruments reported by the ASRS is based on quoted market prices off national exchanges. The fair
value of foreign currency forward contracts is based on mathematical models and is valued using a pricing service, which uses
published Reuter’s foreign currency rates as the primary source for the calculation.
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The credit quality ratings of counterparties as described by NRSROs and the counterparties related risk concentration, as of June
30, 2010, are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Counterparty Risk and Ratings

Risk
Counterparty Name Total Concentration S&P Fitch  Moody's
Bank of America $ 955 8.12% A+ A+ Aa3
Barclays 1,433 12.18% AA-  AA- Aa3
BNP Paribas SA 577 4.90% AA AA- Aa2
Citibank N.A. 459 3.90% A+ A+ Al
Credit Suisse London 580 4.93% A+  AA- Aal
Deutsche Bank London 987 8.39% A+  AA- Aa3
Goldman Sachs International 7 0.06% A A+ Al
HSBC Bank USA 36 0.31% AA AA Aa3
JP Morgan Securities, Inc. 167 1.42% A+ AA- Aa3
JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A. 914 7.77% AA-  AA- Aal
Royal Bank of Scotland PLC 1,206 10.25% A+ AA- Aa3
Standard Chartered Bank 646 5.49% A+ A+ A2
State Street Bank and Trust Co. 893 7.59% AA- A+ Aa2
USB AG 2,904 24.68% A+ A+ Aa3
Westpac Banking Corporation 1 0.01% AA AA Aal
Total $11,765 100.00%

The maximum amount of loss due to credit risk that the ASRS would incur if the counterparties to the derivative instrument failed
to perform according to the terms of the contract, without respect to any collateral or other security, or netting arrangement isthe
total unrealized gain of derivatives at the end of the reporting period.

The ASRS has no general investment policy requiring collateral or other security to support derivative ingruments. Each
investment manager hired has discretion with respect to derivative investments and risk control. Each investment manager is
governed by its Investment Manager Agreement.

The ASRS has no general investment policy with respect to netting arrangements. The ASRS’s investment managers have master
netting arrangements to allow net settlement with the same counterparty in the event the counterparty defaults on its obligations.

The ASRS’s derivatives do not have contingent features.

The aggregate fair value of investment derivative insruments in asset positions a June 30, 2010 was $38.600 million. This
represents the maximum loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if all counterparties fail to perform as contracted.
There was no collateral received or netting arrangements in place at June 30, 2010 with counterparties that would reduce this
exposure.

The ASRS has exposure to interest rate risk due to the investment in an interest rate swap agreement. The required risk
disclosures areincluded in the Interest Rate Risk schedulein Note 2.C. The fair value balance and notional amount of the interest
rate swap outstanding as of June 30, 2010, for the year then ended, as reported in the June 30, 2010 financial statements are as
follows (expressed in thousands):

Interest Rate Risk for Interest Rate Swap

Asset ID Asset Description Fair Value  Notional
SWuU058948 IRSBRL RF11.57000/ IRSBRL PV 0OMCETIP $ 167 $ 34,000

The ASRS is exposed to foreign currency risk on its foreign currency forward contracts and futures contracts. The required risk
disclosures areincluded in the Foreign Currency Risk schedulein Note 2.F.

Refer to Note 7.A.4.c. for information on debt derivatives utilized by ASU.
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J. STATE TREASURER’S SEPARATELY ISSUED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The State Treasurer issues a separately published Annual Financial Report. The report provides additiona information relating to
the State Treasurer’s total investing activities, including the investment trust funds. A copy of the State Treasurer’s Office
Annual Financial Report can be obtained from their office location or website at:

Arizona State Treasurer’s Office
1700 W. Washington S.
Phoenix, Arizona 85007

(602) 604-7800 or (877) 365-8310
Www.aztreasury.gov

The Treasurer’s financial statements are audited by the Office of the Auditor General.

NOTE 3. RECEIVABLES/DEFERRED REVENUE

A. TAXES RECEIVABLE

The following table summarizes taxes receivabl e at June 30, 2010 (expressed in thousands):

Transportation &
Aviation Planning,
Highway Unemployment Industrial Non-Major
Genera Maintenance Compensation ~ Commisson  Governmental ~ Government-wide
Type of Tax Fund & Safety Fund Fund Specia Fund Funds Tota

Sales $ 500811 $ - 3% - $ - % 43374 % 544,185
Income - individual and corporate 205,210 - - - - 205,210
Motor vehicleand fuel - 60,649 - - - 60,649
Luxury 6,052 - - - 17,807 23,859
Unemployment - - 82,736 - - 82,736
Other - - - 3,925 - 3,925
Grosstaxesreceivable 712,073 60,649 82,736 3,925 61,181 920,564
Allowance for uncollectible taxes (235,197) - - - - (235,197)
Net Taxes Receivable $ 476,876 $ 60649 $ 82,736 $ 3925 $ 61,181 $ 685,367
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B. DEFERRED REVENUE

At June 30, 2010, the components of deferred revenue, in terms of revenue unavailable and unearned, were as follows (expressed

in thousands):

Current Deferred Revenue for Governmental Funds:
General Fund:
Ddinquent salestax
Dédinquent income tax
Tobacco settlement
Child support admini strative reimbursements
Advance insurance premium taxes
Advance land lease payments
Public ass stance overpayments
Vaccine & commodity food supplement
Advance county acute and long term care payments
Federal grants
Other

Trangportation & Aviation Planning, Highway Maintenance & Safety Fund:

Loans & notes receivable for asset purchases and construction
Land Endowments Fund:

Land salesreceivable

Land leasesreceivable

Advance land | ease payments
Non-Major Funds:

Public ass stance overpayments

Advance payments for Hawaii/Arizona PMMIS Alliance

Other

Total Current Deferred Revenue for Governmental Funds

Noncurrent Deferred Revenue for Governmental Funds:
General Fund:

Advance land | ease payments
Land Endowments Fund:

Land sales receivable

Advance land | ease payments

Total Noncurrent Deferred Revenue for Governmental Funds

Total Current and Noncurrent Deferred Revenue for Governmental Funds

Current Deferred Revenue for Proprietary Funds:
Univerdties:
Unexpended cash advances received
Auxiliary salesand services
IBM leaseredated to acquisition of research park
Student tuition and fees
Deposits
Other
Non-Major Funds:
Policyholders' advance premiums
Magazine subscriptions
Other

Total Current Deferred Revenue for Proprietary Funds

Noncurrent Deferred Revenue for Proprietary Funds:
Universties:
IBM leaserelated to acquisition of research park
Total Noncurrent Deferred Revenue for Proprietary Funds
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Total Deferred

Unavailable Unearned Revenue
$ 120,150 $ - $ 120,150
102,750 - 102,750
54,106 - 54,106
4,334 - 4,334
- 40,681 40,681
- 291 291
826 - 826
- 1,176 1,176
- 19,334 19,334
351,982 - 351,982
2 - 2
8,461 - 8,461
240,697 - 240,697
8,429 - 8,429
- 19,429 19,429
940 - 940
- 955 955
- 5 5
892,677 81,871 974,548
- 4,843 4,843
588,010 - 588,010
- 77,113 77,113
588,010 81,956 669,966
$ 1,480,687 $ 163,827 $ 1644514
Unearned
$ 43,456
5,662
4,900
52,432
1,189
1,618
5,062
2,462
624
$ 117,405
$ 15,170
$ 15,170
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‘ NOTE 4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capitd asset activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 were as follows (expressed in thousands):

Governmental Activities:
Non-depreciabl e capital assets:
Land
Congtruction in progress
Development in progress
Infrastructure
Total Non-depreciable Capital Assets

Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Equipment
Software and other intangibles
Infrastructure

Total Depreciable Capital Assets

Lessaccumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Equipment
Software and other intangibles
Infrastructure

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Depreciable Capital Assets, Net

Total Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net

Business-type Activities:
Non-depreciabl e capital assets:
Land
Congtruction in progress
Collections
Total Non-depreciable Capital Assets

Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Equipment
Infrastructure
Total Depreciable Capital Assets

Lessaccumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Equipment
Infrastructure

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Depreciable Capital Assets, Net

Total Business-type Activities Capital Assets, Net

Primary Government

Beginning Adjustments & Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Reclassifications Balance
$ 2,488,112 $ 113,866 $ - $ 563 $ 2,602,541
3,199,253 944,748 (305,450) (15,441) 3,823,110
83,069 1,208 - - 84,277
10,631,789 420,342 (15,343) - 11,036,788
16,402,223 1,480,164 (320,793) (14,878) 17,546,716
1,754,959 154,910 (403) (13,468) 1,895,998
135,097 2,174 (243) 14,228 151,356
713,524 28,725 (39,642) 26,204 728,811
61,223 15,740 (1,100) 55,125 130,988
15,321 15 - 6,284 21,620
2,680,124 201,564 (41,288) 88,373 2,928,773
(591,563) (41,321) 185 8,768 (623,931)
(74,618) (7,074) 143 953 (80,596)
(522,210) (63,675) 37,885 (2,182) (550,182)
(27,492) (7,790) 1,100 (51,002) (85,184)
(6,907) (649) - (2,526) (10,082)
(1,222,790) (120,509) 39,313 (45,989) (1,349,975)
1,457,334 81,055 (1,975) 42,384 1,578,798
$ 17,859,557 $1,561,219 $ (322,768) $ 27,506 $ 19,125,514
Beginning Adjustments & Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Reclassifications Balance
$ 181,400 $ 4,276 $ (384) $ - $ 185,292
131,054 196,393 (1,148) (71,103) 255,196
17,882 8 (141) - 17,749
330,336 200,677 (1,673) (71,103) 458,237
3,877,636 59,196 (5,169) 50,745 3,982,408
4811 - - - 4811
1,345,615 93,932 (32,218) 6,093 1,413,422
367,408 1,982 (14) 14,507 383,883
5,595,470 155,110 (37,401) 71,345 5,784,524
(1,445,451) (119,636) 2,149 6 (1,562,932)
(2,688) (187) - (6) (2,881)
(943,624) (89,865) 28,798 (@) (1,004,693)
(129,430) (12,687) 3 - (142,114)
(2,521,193) (222,375) 30,950 (@) (2,712,620)
3,074,277 (67,265) (6,451) 71,343 3,071,904
$ 3,404,613 $ 133,412 $ (8,124) $ 240 $ 3,530,141
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The governmenta activities capital asset beginning balances for the year ended June 30, 2010 have been reclassified due to the
implementation of GASB Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets.

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows (expressed in thousands):

General government $ 24,453
Health and welfare 16,109
Inspection and regulation 1,814
Education 5,063
Protection and safety 43,905
Transportation 19,648
Natural resources 9,517
Total Governmental Activities $ 120,509

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities as foll ows (expressed in thousands):

Lottery $ 353
Industrial Commission Special Fund 1,339
Universties 218,577
Other 2,106
Total Business-type Activities $ 222375

NOTE 5. PENSION BENEFITS

The State participates in the ASRS, the PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP. Benefits are established by State statutes and provide
retirement, death, and survivor benefits to State employees, public school employees and employees of counties, municipalities,
and other State political subdivisions.

A. PARTICIPATING EMPLOYERS

The number of participating government employers as of June 30, 2010 is shown below:

Employer ASRS PSPRS EORP CORP
Cities and towns 78 143 21 1
Counties and county agencies 15 21 15 14
State 1 1 1 1
Specid districts 93 60 - -
School districts 243 - - -
Charter schools 156 - - -
Community college districts 10 - - -
Dispatchers - - - 8

B. CONTRIBUTIONS, BENEFITS, AND REFUND PAYMENTS

For the ASRS, contributions from employees and employers for service through June 30 are accrued. These contributions are
considered to be fully collectible and, accordingly, no allowance for uncollectible receivables is reflected in the financial
statements. Pension benefit and refund payments are recognized when due and payabl e in accordance with the terms of the plan.

For the PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP, member and employer contributions are recognized when due, pursuant to formal
commitments, as well as statutory or contractual requirements. Pension benefits are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of the plan. Refunds are due and payabl e by state law within 20 days of receipt of a written application
for arefund. Refunds arerecorded when paid.
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C. FUNDING POLICY

The contribution requirements of plan members and the State are established by Title 38, Chapter 5 of the ARS. These
contribution requirements may be amended by the Arizona State Legidature.

Cost-sharing plans

For the year ended June 30, 2010, active ASRS members and the State were each required by statute to contribute at the
actuarially determined rate of 9.00% and 8.34% of the members annual covered payroll, respectively. The State's contributions
to the ASRS for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008 were $155.349 million, $155.820 million, and $162.121 million,
respectively, for the primary government which were equal to the required contributions for these years.

In addition, active EORP members were required by statute to contribute 7.00% of the members annual covered payroll. The
State was required to contribute a designated portion of certain fees collected by the Supreme Court plus additiona contributions
of 24.36% of the members annual covered payroll, as determined by actuarial valuation. The State's contributions to EORP for
the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008 were $2.643 million, $2.830 million, and $2.230 million, respectively, which were
equal to therequired contributions for these years.

Agent plans

For the year ended June 30, 2010, active PSPRS members were required by statute to contribute 7.65% of the members annual
covered payroll and the participating State agencies were required to contribute at actuarialy determined rates of 9.84 - 42.86%.
Active CORP members were required by statute to contribute 8.41% of the members annual covered payroll and the participating
State agencies were required to contribute at actuarially determined rates of 7.44 - 8.12%.

D. ANNUAL PENSION COST

The State’s annual pension costs, required contributions, and excess other post-employment benefit (OPEB) contributions applied
to pensions (see Note 6.A. and B. for explanation) for each of the agent, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans for the
year ended June 30, 2010, is as follows (expressed in thousands):

Pension Contributions Made

Annual Required Excess OPEB

Pension Costs Contributions Contributions
PSPRS $ 29,008 $ 29,008 $ 417
CORP 33,251 33,251 2,161

The State’s annual pension cost, the percentage of annual pension cost contributed to the plan, and the net pension for the current
and preceding year follows for each of the agent, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans. (expressed in thousands)

Percentage of
Fiscal Year Annual Annual Cost
Ended Pension Costs Contributed Net Pension
PSPRS 6/30/10 $ 29,008 101% $ 1,691
6/30/09 30,588 102% 1,274
6/30/08 25,879 102% 600
CORP 6/30/10 33,251 106% 6,952
6/30/09 35,022 106% 4,791
6/30/08 26,405 110% 2,603

E. FUNDED STATUS AND FUNDING PROGRESS

The State’s funded status for each of the agent, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans, as of the most recent actuarial
valuation, is asfollows (expressed in thousands):

-02-



STATE OF ARIZONA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

(Unfunded)
AAL asa
Actuarid Actuarial Actuarid Annual Percentage
Valuation Value of Accrued (Unfunded) Funded Covered of Covered
Plan Date Plan Assets Liability (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
PSPRS 6/30/2010 $ 554,211 $ 891,215 $ (337,004) 62.2% $ 92,791 (363.2%
CORP 6/30/2010 838,549 980,676 (142,127) 85.5% 363,999 (39.0)%

The required schedule of funding progress immediately following the notes to the financial statements presents multi-year trend
information about whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuaria
accrued liability for benefits.

F. ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS
The State’s actuarial methods and significant assumptions for each of the agent, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans

for the most recent actuarial valuation as of 6/30/10 and actuaria valuation as of 6/30/08 that was used to determine the fisca
year 2010 annual required contribution are as follows:

PSPRS CORP PSPRS CORP
Actuarid valuation date 6/30/08 6/30/08 6/30/10 6/30/10
Actuarid cost method projected unit projected unit projected unit projected unit
credit credit credit credit
Actuarid assumptions:
Investment rate of return 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 8.50%
Projected sdary increases 5.50 - 8.50% 5.50 - 8.50% 5.50 - 8.50% 5.50 - 8.50%
includesinflation at 5.00% 5.00% 5.50% 5.50%
Cost-of-living adjustments None None None None
Amortization method level percent level percent level percent-of- level percent-of-
closed for closed for pay closed pay closed
unfunded actuaria unfunded actuaria
accrued liahility, accrued liahility,
open for excess open for excess
Remaining amortization 28 yearsfor 28 yearsfor 26 yearsfor 26 yearsfor
unfunded actuaria unfunded actuaria unfunded actuaria unfunded actuaria
accrued liahility, accrued liahility, accrued liahility, accrued liahility,

Asset valuation method

20 years for excess
smoothed market
value

20 yearsfor excess
smoothed market
value

20 yearsfor excess

7-year smoothed
market

20 yearsfor excess
7-year smoothed
market

G. UNIVERSITIES’ RETIREMENT PLANS

Faculty, academic professionals, service professionals, and adminidrative staff at the three universities (the ASU, the NAU, and
the U of A) may select one of four retirement plans: the Teachers Insurance Annuity Association/College Retirement Equities
Fund (TIAA/CREF), Variable Annuity Life Insurance Company (VALIC), Fiddity Investments Tax-Exempt Services Company
(Fidelity), or the ASRS. The ASRS is a defined benefit plan and the other three plans are defined contribution plans. The three
defined contribution plans are administered by independent insurance and annuity companies approved by the ABOR. In
addition, the U of A employees hired before July 1, 1972, have the option to participate in the defined contribution plan
adminigered by the ASRS. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus
investment earnings. Contributions made by employees vest immediately and the Universities contributions vest no later than
after five years of full-time employment. Employees and Universities contributions and associated returns earned on investments
may be withdrawn starting upon termination of employment, death, or retirement. The distribution of employee contributions and
associated investment earnings are made in accordance with the employee's contract with the applicable insurance and annuity
company. Universities contributions and associated investment earnings must be distributed to the employee in the form of an
annuity paid over the employee'slife.

The Arizona State Legidature establishes and may amend active plan members and the Universities contribution rates. For the
year ended June 30, 2010, plan members and the three Universities were each required by statute to contribute an amount equal to
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7.00% of an employee's compensation, except for a 7.40% member contribution and an 8.06% University contribution for the
ASRS defined contribution plan.

Contributions to these plans for the year ended June 30, 2010, were as follows (expressed in thousands):

University Employee Total
Plan Contributions Contributions Contributions
TIAA/CREF $ 30,139 $ 30,139 $ 60,278
VALIC 2,639 2,639 5,278
Fiddity 13,986 13,986 27,972
ASRS 19 18 37

NOTE 6. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

A. PLAN DESCRIPTION
Cost-sharing plans

In addition to the pension benefits described, the ASRS provides health insurance premium supplemental benefits and disability
benefits to retired members, disabled members, and eligible dependents through the Health Benefit Supplement Fund (HBS) and
the Long Term Disability Fund (LTD), which are cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit post-employment plans. Title
38, Chapter 5 of the ARS assigns the authority to establish and amend the benefit provisions of the HBS plan and the LTD plan to
the Arizona State Legidature. The ASRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial information and
disclosure requirements for the HBS plan and the LTD plan. Information on how to obtain thisreport isincluded in Note 1.A.

The EORP, by statute, is a cost-sharing, multiple employer plan. However, because of its statutory structure, in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, paragraphs 5 and
41, the EORP’s health insurance premium subsidy benefit (OPEB) is reported for such purposes as an agent, multiple-employer
plan. Information on how to obtain the EORP’s publicly available financia report is included in Note 1.A. However, the
EORP’s OPEB benefit isrelatively insignificant to the State’s financial statements and, therefore, is not further described in these
notes or the RS that follows.

Agent plans

In addition to pension benefits described, the PSPRS and the CORP each offer a health insurance premium subsidy benefit to
retired members and survivors, which are agent, multiple-employer defined benefit post-employment plans. Title 38, Chapter 5
of the ARS assigns the authority to establish and amend the health insurance subsidy benefit provisions to the Arizona State
Legidature. The PSPRS and the CORP do not administer a separate healthcare plan as defined under IRC 8§ 401(h) or an
equivalent agreement. In addition, the PSPRS and the CORP are not statutorily authorized to maintain a separate account for the
health insurance subsidy assets and benefits payments. Therefore, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 43, the health
insurance subsidy benefit is reported as an agency fund. There are no accumulated assets or liahilities, only contributions and
benefit distributions are presented in these funds. All assets of the PSPRS and the CORP are available to pay both pension
benefits and the health insurance subsidy benefits. The PSPRS and the CORP each issue publicly available financial reports that
include the financial information and disclosure requirements for the health insurance subsidy benefits. Information on how to
obtain thesereportsisincluded in Note 1.A.

B. CONTRIBUTIONS, BENEFITS, AND REFUND PAYMENTS
Cost-sharing plan

The ASRS recognition of contributions for the HBS plan and the LTD plan are the same as the penson benefit in Note 5.B.
Benefit and refund payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the HBS plan and LTD plan.
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Agent plans

The PSPRS and the CORP recognition of employer contributions and refunds for the health insurance subsidy benefit are the
same as the pension benefit in Note 5.B. Contributionsin excess of the health insurance subsidy payments are reported as excess
pension contributions in the pension benefit plan. Health insurance subsidy benefits are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of the plan.

C. FUNDING POLICY

The contribution requirements of plan members and the State are established by Title 38, Chapter 5 of the ARS. These
contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the Arizona State L egidlature.

Cost-sharing plan

For the year ended June 30, 2010, active ASRS members and the State were each required by statute to contribute at the
actuarially determined rate of 0.40% of the members annual covered payroll for LTD. In addition, the State also contributed
0.66% for the HBS. The State's contributions for LTD to the ASRS for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008 were
$7.451 million, $9.751 million, and $10.070 million, respectively, for the primary government which were equal to the required
contributions for these years. The State's contributions for the HBS to the ASRS for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and
2008 were $12.294 million, $18.722 million, and $21.146 million, respectively, for the primary government which were equal to
the required contributions for these years.

Agent plans

For the year ended June 30, 2010, the PSPRS participating State agencies were required to contribute at actuarially determined
rates of 1.16 - 3.53% of covered payroll. The CORP participating State agencies were required to contribute at actuarially
determined rates of 0.97 - 1.07% of covered payroll.

D. ANNUAL OPEB COST

The State’s annua OPEB costs, OPEB contributions made, and increase in OPEB obligation for each of the agent, multiple-
employer defined benefit post-employment plans for the year ended June 30, 2010, is as follows (expressed in thousands):

Annual OPEB Increase in OPEB
OPEB Costs Contributions Made Obligation
PSPRS $ 2,074 $ 1,657 $ 417
CORP 3,996 1,835 2,161

The State’s annual OPEB cogt, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for the
current and preceding year follows for each of the agent, multiple-employer defined benefit post-employment plans. (expressed in
thousands)

Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Percentage of Net OPEB

Ended Cost (AOC) AOC Contributed Obligation
PSPRS 6/30/10 $ 2,074 79.9% $ 1,691
6/30/09 2,401 71.9% 1,274
6/30/08 2,350 74.5% 600

CORP 6/30/10 3,99 45.9% 6,952
6/30/09 3,918 44.2% 4,791

6/30/08 4,301 39.5% 2,603
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E. FUNDED STATUS AND FUNDING PROGRESS

The State’s funded status for each of the agent, multiple-employer defined benefit post-employment plans, as of the year ended
June 30, 2010, is as follows (expressed in thousands):

(Unfunded)
AAL as
Actuarid Actuarial Actuarid Annual Percentage
Valuation Value of Accrued (Unfunded) Funded Covered of Covered
Plan Date Plan Assets Liability (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
PSPRS 6/30/2010 - $ 26,846 $ (26,846) 0.0% $ 92,791 (28.9)%
CORP 6/30/2010 - 46,868 (46,868) 0.0% 363,999 (12.9)%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability
of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcare
cost trends. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The required schedule of funding progress immediately following the
notes to the financial statements presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over timerelative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

F. ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the plan and include the types of benefits provided at the time
of each valuation. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.

The State’s actuarial methods and significant assumptions for each of the agent, multiple-employer defined benefit post-
employment plans for the most recent actuarial valuation as of 6/30/10 and actuaria valuation as of 6/30/08 that was used to
determine thefiscal year 2010 annual required contribution are as follows:

Actuaria valuation date
Actuaria cost method

Actuarid assumptions:
Investment rate of return
Projected sdary increases

includesinflation at
Cost-of-living adjustments
Amortization method

Remaining amortization

Asset valuation method

PSPRS CORP PSPRS CORP
6/30/08 6/30/08 6/30/10 6/30/10
projected unit projected unit projected unit projected unit
credit credit credit credit
8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 8.50%

5.50 - 8.50% 5.50 - 8.50% 5.50 - 8.50% 5.50 - 8.50%
5.00% 5.00% 5.50% 5.50%

None None None None

level percent level percent level percent-of- level percent-of-
closed for closed for pay closed pay closed
unfunded actuaria unfunded actuaria
accrued liahility, accrued liahility,
open for excess open for excess
28 yearsfor 28 yearsfor 26 yearsfor 26 yearsfor
unfunded actuaria unfunded actuaria unfunded actuaria unfunded actuaria
accrued liahility, accrued liahility, accrued liahility, accrued liahility,
20 years for excess 20 yearsfor excess 20 yearsfor excess 20 yearsfor excess
not applicable not applicable not applicable not applicable
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‘NOTE 7. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

A. REVENUE BONDS
Governmental Activities
1. Department of Administration

On June 15, 2010, the State sold State L ottery Revenue Bonds Series 2010A (2010A Bonds) for $425.420 million to (i) provide
monies to deposit in the State’s General Fund to pay appropriated expenditures of the State and (ii) pay costs of issuing the
2010A Bonds. The 2010A Bonds include $425.420 million of serial bonds with interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.00% and
maturity dates ranging from July 1, 2013 to July 1, 2029. The bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2021 are subject to optional
redemption, without premium, on or after January 1, 2020. The bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2017 are subject to mandatory
redemption prior to maturity, pursuant to the debt documents. The 2010A Bonds were sold with net original issue premium of
$30.187 million. The State Lottery realized net proceeds of $450.000 million, after payment of $5.607 million for issuance costs,
underwriter discounts, and bond insurance, and immediately transferred these monies to the State’s General Fund.

The State has pledged portions of its gross revenues towards the payment of debt service on the 2010A Bonds. These bonds
provide additional working capital to the State to pay appropriated expenditures of the State’s General Fund. The bonds are
payable solely from and secured by pledged revenues consisting of, until July 1, 2012, amounts distributable to the State’s
General Fund from the State Lottery pursuant to Lottery law, and from and after July 1, 2012, all Lottery revenues deposited to
the Lottery Fund net of operating expenses of the Lottery. At June 30, 2010, pledged revenues totaled $64.298 million, of which
3.5% ($2.255 million) was required to cover debt service. Future pledged revenues required to pay al remaining debt service for
the bonds through final maturity of July 1, 2029 is $677.598 million.

2. Arizona Department of Transportation

The ADOT hasissued Senior and Subordinated Lien Highway Revenue Bonds to provide funds for acquisition of right-of-way,
design, and construction of federal and state highways. The original amount of Highway Revenue Bonds issued in prior years
and outstanding at the start of the fiscal year was $1.7 billion.

The Highway Revenue Bonds are secured by a prior lien on and a pledge of motor vehicle and related fuel fees and taxes. On
September 21, 2006, House Bill 2206 became effective and eliminated the restriction that limited the principal amount of the
Highway Revenue Bonds that could be outstanding at any time to $1.3 billion. Also during fiscal year 2007, the ADOT received
legidative authority to begin issuing Highway Revenue Bonds with maturities of up to 30 years in length, replacing the 20 year
maturity requirement that has been in place since 1980.

The ADOT has pledged future motor vehicle and related fuel fees and taxes to repay $1.7 hillion in outstanding Highway
Revenue Bonds issued since 2001. Proceeds from the bonds finance portions of the ADOT’s Five Year Transportation Facilities
Construction Program. The bonds are payable solely from motor vehicle and related fuel fees and taxes and are payable through
2033. Thetota principa and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $2.5 billion. Principal and interest paid for the current
year and total pledged revenues were $155.800 million and $502.900 million, respectively. The annua principal and interest
payments on the bonds required 31.00% of the pledged revenues.

The Maricopa County Regional Area Road Fund is used to record al payments of principal and interest for Transportation Excise
Tax Revenue Bonds issued by the ADOT. The Bonds are secured by transportation excise taxes collected by the Arizona
Department of Revenue on behalf of Maricopa County. The original amount of Transportation Excise Tax Revenue Bonds issued
in prior years and outstanding at the start of the fiscal year was $777.130 million.

On September 21, 2007, the ADOT adopted a Master Resolution relating to Transportation Excise Tax Revenue Bonds. On April
17, 2009, the ADOT adopted the Second Supplemental Resolution authorizing the issuance of the second series of bonds under
the Master Resolution in an amount not to exceed $440.000 million. No debt service reserve is required for the outstanding
bonds.
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Trangportation Excise Tax Revenue Bonds aggregating $404.805 million are subject to redemption prior to their maturity dates at
the option of the ADOT in whole or in part, at any time, on or after July 1, 2017. These bonds may be redeemed at par, plus
accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption. Transportation Excise Tax Revenue Bonds aggregating $339.010 million are
not subject to redemption.

The ADOT has pledged future transportation excise taxes to repay $743.815 million in outstanding Transportation Excise Tax
Revenue Bonds issued since 2007. Proceeds from the bonds pay the costs of design, right-of-way purchase, or construction of
certain freeways and other routes within Maricopa County, Arizona. The bonds are payable solely from transportation excise
taxes and are payable through 2025. The total principa and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $1.1 billion. Principa
and interest paid for the current year and total pledged revenues were $71.500 million and $199.700 million, respectively. The
annual principal and interest payments on the bonds required 35.80% of the pledged revenues.

In prior fiscal years, the ADOT refinanced various bond issues through advance-refunding arrangements. Under the terms of the
refunding bond issues, sufficient assetsto pay all principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the refunded bond issues
have been placed in irrevocable trust accounts at commercial banks and invested in U.S. Government securities which, together
with interest earned thereon, will provide amounts sufficient for future payment of principal and interest of the issues refunded.
The assets, liabilities, and financial transactions of these trust accounts and the liability for the defeased bonds are not reflected in
the accompanying financia statements. Refunded bonds for the ADOT at June 30, 2010 totaled $134.765 million.

3. School Facilities Board

In prior fiscal years, the School Facilities Board (SFB) refinanced various bond issues through advance-refunding arrangements.
Under the terms of the refunding bond issues, sufficient assets to pay all principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest on
the refunded bond issues have been placed in irrevocable trust accounts at commercia banks and invested in U.S. Government
securities which, together with interest earned thereon, will provide amounts sufficient for future payment of principal and
interest of the issues refunded. The assets, liabilities, and financial transactions of these trust accounts and the liability for the
defeased bonds are not reflected in the accompanying financial statements. Refunded bonds for the SFB at June 30, 2010 totaled
$535.310 million.

The SFB has pledged portions of its gross revenues towards payment of debt related to State school improvement revenue bonds,
State school improvement revenue refunding bonds, State school trust revenue bonds, and State school trust revenue refunding
bonds outstanding at June 30, 2010. These bonds finance the correction of existing deficiencies in school facilitiesin the State of
Arizona. These pledged revenues include Education Transaction Privilege Taxes approved by voters as part of Proposition 301
and expendable State School Trust Revenues. Expendable State School Trust Revenues include State Trust Lands’ land lease
revenue, interest earnings on land sales financed over time, and a formula distribution from the State’s Permanent Fund
prescribed by the State’s Constitution. Pledged revenues do not include sales of State Trust Lands, sales of natural products
derived from State Trust Lands, or royalties from mineras extracted from State Trust Lands. These revenues are held in
perpetuity for the benefit of various beneficiaries of the State Land Trust and are not available to pay debt service. Expendable
State School Revenues in excess of $72.263 million are not available to pay debt service on the State school trust revenue bonds
and State school trust revenue refunding bonds per the debt documents. At June 30, 2010, pledged revenues totaled $542.538
million, of which 16.32% ($88.553 million) was required to cover current year debt service. Future pledged revenues required to
pay all future debt service on these bonds through final maturity of July 1, 2021 is $859.635 million.

Business-Type Activities

4. Universities

a. University of Arizona

The U of A’s bonded debt consists of various issues of system revenue bonds and Stimulus Plan for Economic and Educational
Development (SPEED) revenue bonds that are generally callable with interest payable semi-annually. Bond proceeds are used to
pay for acquiring or constructing capital facilities and infrastructure. Bond proceeds are also used for refunding obligations from

previously issued bonds.

On June 15, 2010, the U of A sold SPEED Revenue Bonds Taxable Series 2010 Build America Bonds for $147.475 million dated
June 23, 2010. The 2010 Bonds include $29.675 million of serial bonds with interest rates ranging from 4.31% to 6.06% and
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maturity dates ranging from 2016 to 2025. The 2010 Bonds also include two term bonds consisting of $63.580 million with an
interest rate of 6.42% due August 1, 2035; and $54.220 million with an interest rate of 6.64% due August 1, 2044. The seria
bonds with maturity on or after August 1, 2021, are subject to optiona redemption without premium. The term bonds are subject
to mandatory sinking fund redemption without premium. All of the 2010 bonds are subject to extraordinary optional redemption
should the Federad government fail to provide the interest subsidy described below. The U of A realized net proceeds of
$146.126 million after payment of $1.349 million for issuance costs and underwriter discounts. The net proceeds will be used to
finance the Health Science Education Building and building renewal projects. Under the bond resolution, up to 80% of the debt
service payments on the 2010 Bonds are payable from the U of A’s SPEED revenue bond account monies, which are derived
from certain revenues of the Arizona State Lottery. To the extent SPEED revenue bond account monies are not sufficient to
make debt service payments, the 2010 Bonds are secured by a pledge of certain gross revenues, such as student tuition and fees,
but that pledge is subordinate to the pledge of those gross revenues for the U of A’s system revenue bonds.

The 2010 SPEED Revenue Bonds were issued as designated Build America Bonds under the provisions of the American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA). As such, the U of A is dligible to receive direct payments from the U.S. Treasury
Department equal to 35% of the interest payments on such bonds on each interest payment date. In order to receive such
payments, the U of A must file certain required information with the Federal government between 90 and 45 days prior to the
interest payment date. The amount paid to the U of A by the Federal government may be reduced or eliminated due to such
issues as failure by the U of A to submit the required information, any amounts owed by the U of A to the Federal government,
or changes in the law that would reduce or diminate such payments. The U of A is currently not aware of any such issues that
may adversely affect the amount of payments to be received from the Federal government related to such designated Build
America Bonds.

The U of A has pledged portions of its gross revenues towards the payment of debt related to all system revenue, system revenue
refunding bonds, and SPEED revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 2010. The bonds generally provide financing for various
capital projects of the U of A. These pledged revenues incude student tuition and fees, auxiliary enterprise revenue, sales and
service revenue, and other operating revenues, such as indirect cost recovery and certain investment income. Pledged revenues
do not include State appropriations, gifts, endowment income, or other restricted revenues. At June 30, 2010, pledged revenues
totaled $783.300 million, of which 6.20% ($48.400 million) was required to cover current year debt service. Future annua
principal and interest payments on the bonds are expected to require approximately 4.00% of pledged revenues. Future pledged
revenues required to pay all remaining debt service for the bonds through final maturity of August 1, 2044 is $1.1 billion.

b. Northern Arizona University

On December 17, 2009, the NAU sold $108.860 million of Taxable Series 2009A System Revenue Bonds and $5.640 million of
Tax Exempt Series 2009B System Revenue Bonds for the purpose of construction and improvement of a new Health and
Learning Center, demalition and reconstruction of Lumberjack Stadium, improvements to utility extensions for the northeast
portion of the NAU Campus, and various other capital projects. The Taxable Series 2009A Bonds included serial bonds of
$27.290 million with interest rates ranging from 4.84% to 5.84% and two term bonds of $26.610 million and $54.960 million,
with interest rates of 6.59% and 6.69%, respectively, that mature on June 1, 2030 and 2039, respectively. The term bonds are
subject to annual sinking fund contributions. The Tax Exempt Series 2009B Bonds have an interest rate of 5.00%. Both bond
issues are generally subject to redemption prior to maturity. The 2009 System Revenue Bonds are secured by a firgt lien on
certain gross revenues of the University that primarily consist of student tuition and fees, and certain auxiliary revenues and are
on parity with the NAU’s previoudy issued System Revenue Bonds.

On April 28, 2010, the NAU sold $64.785 million of SPEED Revenue Bonds Taxable Series 2010 for the purpose of the
Skydome Renovation Project, Liberal Arts Building Renovation Project, Hotel and Restaurant Management School Renovation
Project, North Campus Utilities Upgrade Project, and the North Union Building Renovation Project. The Taxable Series 2010
Bonds included serial bonds of $38.930 million with interest rates ranging from 4.27% to 6.27%. The 2010 Bonds also included
a $25.855 million term bond, with an interest rate of 6.59% that matures on August 1, 2030, and is subject to annual sinking fund
contributions. The bonds are generally subject to redemption prior to maturity. The 2010 Taxable Bonds are limited obligations
that are payable solely from and secured soldly by a pledge from the NAU Account of the SPEED Fund which is derived from
certain revenues of the Arizona State Lottery not to exceed 80% of annual debt service and other NAU monies equal to at least
20%, and as much as 100% of annual debt service. To the extent monies of the SPEED Fund are not sufficient to make the debt
service payments, the 2010 Taxable Bonds are aso secured by a pledge of certain gross revenues, but that pledge is junior and
subordinate to the pledge of those gross revenues for the NAU’s system revenue bonds.
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The Series 2009A and 2010 Bonds were issued as designated Build America Bonds under the provisions of ARRA. As such, the
NAU is eligible to receive direct payments from the U.S. Treasury Department equal to 35% of the interest payments on such
bonds on each interest payment date. In order to receive such payments, the NAU must file certain required information with the
Federal government between 90 and 45 days prior to the interest payment date. The amount paid to the NAU by the Federa
government may be reduced or eiminated due to such issues as failure by the NAU to submit the required information, any
amounts owed by the NAU to the Federal government, or changes in the law that would reduce or eliminate such payments. The
NAU is currently not aware of any such issues that may adversely affect the amount of paymentsto be received from the Federal
government related to such designated Build America Bonds. For accounting purposes, any direct payments received from the
U.S. Treasury Department are recorded as nonoperating revenue.

In prior years, the NAU defeased certain revenue bonds by either placing the proceeds of new bonds, or cash and investments
accumulated in a sinking fund, in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds.
Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the accompanying financial
statements. At June 30, 2010, $41.130 million of such bonds outstanding are considered defeased.

The NAU has pledged portions of its gross revenues towards the payment of debt related to system revenue bonds, system
revenue refunding bonds, and SPEED revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 2010. The bonds generally provide financing for
various capital projects of the NAU. These pledged revenues include student tuition and fees, certain auxiliary enterprises
revenue, investment income, and indirect cost recovery revenue. Pledged revenues do not include State appropriations, gifts,
endowment income, or other restricted revenues. At June 30, 2010, pledged revenues totaled $198.200 million, of which 9.40%
($18.700 million) was required to cover current year debt service. Future pledged revenues required to pay all remaining debt
service for the bonds through final maturity of June 1, 2040 is $680.000 million.

c. Arizona State University

At June 30, 2010, the ASU held a combination of fixed and variable rate bonds. The ASU’s fixed rate bonded debt consists of
various issues of system revenue bonds that are generally callable at a prescribed date with interest payable semi-annually.
Certain system revenue bonds of the ASU were defeased through advance refundings by depositing sufficient U.S. Government
securities to pay all future debt service in an irrevocable trust. Accordingly, the liabilities for these defeased bonds are not
included in the accompanying financial statements. The principal amount of all such bonds outstanding at June 30, 2010 was
$36.100 million.

In April 2010, the ASU issued $178.350 million in system revenue bonds, Taxable Series 2010A and Tax-Exempt Series 2010B,
to fund construction of the Interdisciplinary Science and Technology Building 1VV. The Taxable Series 2010A bonds were issued
as Build America Bonds under the provisions of ARRA. As such, the ASU is eligible to receive Direct Payments from the U. S.
Treasury equal to 35.00% of the interest owing on such Bonds on each interest payment date. In order to receive such Direct
Payments, the ASU must file certain required information with the Federal government between 90 and 45 days prior to each
interest payment date. The amount paid to the ASU by the Federal government may be reduced or limited due to such issues as
failure by the ASU to submit the required information, offsets to reflect any amounts owed by the ASU to the Federal
government, or changes in the law that would reduce or eiminate such payments. The ASU is currently not aware of any issues
that may adversdly impact the receipt of Direct Payments from the Federa government related to such designated Build America
Bonds. For accounting purposes, the Direct Payments are recorded as nonoperating revenue and, as such, are not netted against
interest expense. The 2010A Build America Bonds were issued for $166.000 million with an average maturity of 19.5 years and
the 2010B Bonds wereissued for $12.400 million with an average maturity of 4.2 years, and the combined average interest rateis
5.99% gross of Direct Payments and 3.94% net of Direct Payments.

The ASU has outstanding two series of Variable Rate Demand System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008A and 2008B
(2008A& B Bonds), totaling $103.680 million with final maturities of July 1, 2034. Both series continue to bear interest at a
weekly rate not to exceed 12.00% per annum based upon prevailing market conditions, as determined by the respective
remarketing agents. The bonds are subject to conversion, at the option of the Arizona Board of Regents (ABOR) on behalf of the
ASU, to adifferent or aternate adjustable rate mode, or afixed rate pursuant to the bond indenture. The interest rate in effect on
June 30, 2010 was 0.18% for the Series 2008A and 0.17% for the Series 2008B bonds.

The variable rate bonds are subject to purchase on the demand of the holder at a price equal to principal plus accrued interest on
seven days’ notice to the remarketing agents. To provide credit and liquidity support for the Bonds, the ASU entered into an
Irrevocable Letter of Credit and Reimbursement Agreement (LOC) with Lloyds TSB Bank, PLC, upon execution of the refunding
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bonds. The LOC expires on June 15, 2012. Assuming all of the $51.800 million Series 2008A and $51.800 million Series 20088
bonds are not resold within 90 days, the ASU would be responsible to make quarterly installment principal payments of $5.200
million over a five-year period, plus interest to be calculated as established in the letter of credit. The ASU has agreed to pay
TSB Bank, PLC, an annual commitment fee for the letter of credit of 1.55% per annum on the stated amount which includes
outstanding principal of the bonds, plus 51 days of interest, at an assumed rate of 12.00% per annum.

Effective January 1, 2007, the ASU entered into a swap agreement (hedging derivative instrument) on $103.000 million, notional
amount, relating to the 2008A& B Bonds. The $103.000 million in bond principal is not exchanged; it is only the basis on which
the interest payments are calculated. The notional amount under the swap decreases as principal payments are made on the
2008A&B Bonds. The intention of the swap was to effectively change the variable rate interest on the 2008A&B Bonds to a
synthetic fixed rate. The swap agreement expires on July 1, 2034. Under the terms of the swap agreement, the ASU pays the
counterparty interest calculated at a fixed rate of 3.91% and receives payments from the counterparty based on the Securities
Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) Municipal Swap Index set weekly. The ASU is exposed to interest rate risk
based on the SIFMA indexed variable payment received from the counterparty and the variable rate paid to bondholders. The
SIFMA rate at June 30, 2010 was 0.25%. At June 30, 2010, the synthetic fixed interest rate on the bonds was:

Interest Rate Swap Terms Rates (%)
Fixed payment to counterparty Fixed 391
Variable payment from counterparty SIFMA (.25)
Net interest rate swap payments 3.66
Variable-rate bond coupon payments Spread to SIFMA A8
Synthetic fixed interest rate on bonds 3.84

As of June 30, 2010, the swap had a fair value of $(11.126) million, which represents the cost to the ASU to terminate the swap.
The June 30, 2009 fair value was $(5.700) million.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments (GASB 53), the fair
value of the ASU’s hedging derivative instrument will be reported on the Statement of Net Assets as an asset (deferred outflow)
and a liability (derivative insrument). In addition, in the year of implementation, GASB 53 requires retroactive restatement of
thefinancial statementsfor the effect of the hedging derivative instrument; however, asthe hedging derivative has been effective,
the ASU did not restate the financial statementsretroactively.

The fair value was developed by an independent third party, with no vested interest in the transaction, using the zero-coupon
discounting method. This method calculates the future payments required by the swap, assuming the current forward rates
implied by the yield curve are the market’s best estimate of future spot interest rates. These payments are then discounted using
the spot rates implied by the current yield curve for a hypothetical zero-coupon rate bond due on the date of each future net
settlement on the swaps.

As of June 30, 2010, the ASU was not exposed to credit risk because the swap had a negative fair value. However, should
interest rates change and the fair value of the swap becomes positive, the ASU would be exposed to credit risk in the amount of
the derivative’s fair value. The swap counterparty was rated A+ by Fitch, A by Standard & Poor’s and A2 by Moody’s Investor
Services as of June 30, 2010. Based on the current ratings, the counterparty was not required to provide collateral. In the event a
rating downgrade occurs, the counterparty may be required to provide collateral if the ASU’s overall exposure exceeds
predetermined levels. Collateral may be held by the ASU or athird party custodian.

The swap exposes the ASU to basis risk should the weekly SIFMA rate paid by the counterparty fall below the weekly interest
rate due on the bonds which is also a variable rate with a spread to SIFMA. This basis risk can be the result of a downgrade of
the ASU’srating or the pricing of the ASU’s bonds by the remarketing agent at rates higher than the SIFMA index.

The ASU continues to pay interest to the bondholders at the variable rate provided by the bonds. However, during the term of the
swap agreement, the ASU effectively pays a fixed rate on the debt. If a default occurs regarding the swap agreement, the non-
defaulting party may designate a date to terminate the agreement. The ASU will revert to a variable rate if the counterparty
defaults or if the swap is terminated. A termination of the swap agreement may also result in the ASU making or receiving a
termination payment.
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Securities and cash restricted for bonds debt service held by the trustee at June 30, 2010 total ed $54.300 million.

The ASU has pledged portions of its revenues towards the payment of debt related to various senior lien system revenue bonds
outstanding at June 30, 2010. The related revenue bonds are primarily for new academic and research facilities, academic and
laboratory renovations, and infrastructure improvements. These pledged revenues include student tuition and fees, certain
auxiliary enterprises revenue, investment income, and indirect cost recovery revenue. Pledged revenues do not include State
appropriations, gifts, endowment income, or other restricted revenues. For the year ended June 30, 2010, pledged revenues
totaled $782.700 million, of which 7.00% ($54.600 million) was required to cover current year debt service. Future pledged
revenues required to pay all remaining debt service for system revenue bonds through final maturity of July 1, 2039 is $1.2
billion. In addition, the ASU has pledged the same revenues on a subordinate basis to secure the Series 2006 Arizona State
University Research Park, Inc. Development Refunding Bonds. Research Park bonds outstanding at June 30, 2010 were $10.200
million with annual debt service requirements of approximately $1.200 million through July 1, 2021.

Summary of Revenue Bonds

The following schedule summarizes revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 2010 (expressed in thousands):

Outstanding
Revenue Bonds Dates Maturity Interest Balance at
Outstanding Issued Dates Rates June 30, 2010

Governmental Activities:

Department of Transportation 2001-2009 2011-2033 2.00-5.50% $2,416,440

School Facilities Board 2001-2008 2011-2021 .14-5.75% 680,745

Department of Administration 2010 2013-2029 3.00-5.00% 425,420
Proprietary Funds:

University Revenue Bonds 1992-2010  2011-2045 .18-6.64% 1,692,825

Principal and interest debt service payments on revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 2010 are as follows (expressed in
thousands):

Annual Debt Service

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Net Payments
(Receipts) on
Fiscal Total Total Total Total Swap
Y ear Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Agreement Total
2011 $ 162,520 $ 174,930 $ 337,450 $ 58,505 $ 81,185 $ 3,716 $ 143,406
2012 170,705 165,776 336,481 53,050 79,938 3,632 136,620
2013 196,225 157,083 353,308 58,850 77,466 3,544 139,860
2014 205,960 147,324 353,284 65,460 74,639 3,452 143,551
2015 215,325 136,972 352,297 68,735 71,601 3,355 143,691
2016-2020 1,218,525 515,051 1,733,576 321,385 312,375 15,141 648,901
2021-2025 895,465 247,322 1,142,787 310,080 238,464 11,884 560,428
2026-2030 334,975 75,242 410,217 318,275 157,220 7,732 483,227
2031-2035 122,905 12,484 135,389 237,405 89,574 2,440 329,419
2036-2040 - - - 168,435 34,060 - 202,495
2041-2045 - - - 32,645 5,604 - 38,249
Total $ 3,522,605 $ 1,632,184 $ 5,154,789 $ 1,692,825 $ 1,222,126 $ 54,896 $ 2,969,847

B. GRANT ANTICIPATION NOTES

Grant Anticipation Notes (GANS) are issued by the ADOT and secured by revenues received from the Federa Highway
Administration under grant agreements and certain other federal-aid revenues. The original amount of GANS issued in prior
years and outstanding at the start of the fiscal year was $329.650 million.

The ADOT has pledged federal revenues to repay $304.480 million in outstanding GANs issued since 2003. Proceeds from the
bonds pay the costs of design, right-of-way purchase, or construction of certain freeways and other routes within Arizona. The
bonds are payable solely from federal revenues and are payable through 2016. The total principal and interest remaining to be
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paid on the bonds is $353.289 million. Principal and interest paid for the current year and total pledged revenues were $41.540
million and $544.500 million, respectively. The annual principal and interest payments on the bonds required 7.60% of the
pledged revenues.

Grant Anticipation Notes currently outstanding are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Outstanding
Grant Anticipation Notes Dates Maturity Interest Balance at
Outstanding Issued Dates Rates June 30, 2010
Governmental Activities:
Department of Transportation 2004-2009 2011-2016 2.50-5.00% $ 304,480

Future debt service principal and interest payments on Grant Anticipation Notes issues for fiscal years ended June 30 are
summarized below (expressed in thousands):

Annual Debt Service
Governmental Activities

Total Total Total Debt
Fiscal Y ear Principal Interest Service
2011 $ 70,570 $ 14,834 $ 85,404
2012 43,885 11,405 55,290
2013 45,340 9,284 54,624
2014 55,265 7,121 62,386
2015 53,330 4,389 57,719
2016 36,090 1,776 37,866
Total $ 304,480 $ 48,809 $ 353,289

C. CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION
Governmental Activities
1. Department of Administration

The State has issued COPs to finance construction or improvements of various capital assets. Additionally, the State issued COPs
Series 2010A and 2010B to finance the acquisition of certain property from the State by the Trustee, with which the proceeds of
were deposited to the State’s General Fund to pay appropriated expenditures of the State. The COPs Series 2010A and 2010B
sale-leaseback transactions are nominal sales, with the State retaining al rights of ownership and control of the properties.
Accordingly, they are accounted for under the financing method since the State has such an extensive continuing involvement in
the properties for the entire duration of the agreement. The State’s obligation to make lease payments and any other obligations
of the State under the lease are subject to, and dependent upon, annual appropriations made by the State Legidature and annual
allocations of such appropriations being made by the Department of Administration for such purpose. The Department of
Administration agreesto use its best efforts to budget, obtain, allocate, and maintain sufficient appropriated monies to make lease
payments. In the event any such appropriation and allocation is not made, the leases will terminate and there can be no assurance
that the proceeds for the re-leasing or sale of the projects will be sufficient to pay principal and interest with respect to the then
outstanding COPs. The scheduled payments of principal and interest with respect to the COPs are guaranteed under certificate
insurance policies. The State’s obligation to make lease payments does not constitute a debt or liahility of the State within the
meaning of any constitutional or statutory limitation. Neither the full faith and credit nor the general taxing power of the State is
pledged to make payments of principal or interest due with respect to the COPs. Such payments will be made solely from
amounts derived under the terms of the lease, including lease payments, and amounts from time to time on deposit under the
terms of the declaration of trust.

On January 26, 2010, the State of Arizona, acting through the Director of the Department of Administration, issued COPs Series
2010A for $709.090 million. The 2010A COPs include $709.090 million of serial certificates with interest rates ranging from
2.00% to 5.25% and maturity dates ranging from 2013 to 2030. The 2010A certificates maturing on or after October 1, 2020 are
subject to optional redemption, prior to maturity, without premium. The 2010A certificates maturing on or after October 1, 2017
are subject to mandatory redemption pursuant to the COP documents. The State realized net proceeds of $735.419 million after
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receipt of $34.187 million net original issue premium and payment of $7.858 million of issuance costs, including underwriters’
discount. The 2010A COPs were issued to: (i) finance the acquisition of certain property from the State by the Trustee and (ii)
pay the costs of issuance. The net proceeds received by the Trustee were immediately transferred from the Proceeds Fund to the
State’s General Fund to pay appropriated expenditures of the State during fiscal year 2010.

On June 29, 2010, the State of Arizona, acting through the Director of the Department of Administration, issued COPs Series
2010B for $289.705 million. The 2010B COPs include $289.705 million of seria certificates with interest rates ranging from
2.00% to 5.00% and maturity dates ranging from 2013 to 2030. The 2010B certificates maturing on or after October 1, 2020 are
subject to optional redemption, prior to maturity, without premium. The 2010B certificates maturing on or after October 1, 2017
are subject to mandatory redemption pursuant to the COP documents. The State realized net proceeds of $300.000 million after
receipt of $13.335 million net original issue premium and payment of $3.040 million of issuance costs, including underwriters’
discount. The 2010B COPs were issued to: (i) finance the acquisition of certain property from the State by the Trustee and (ii)
pay the costs of issuance. The net proceeds received by the Trustee were immediately transferred from the Proceeds Fund to the
State’s General Fund to pay appropriated expenditures of the State.

2. School Facilities Board

In prior fiscal years, the SFB refinanced various COPs through advance-refunding arrangements. Under the terms of the
refundings, sufficient assets to pay all principal, redemption premiums, if any, and interest on the refunded COPs have been
placed in irrevocable trust accounts at commercial banks and invested in U.S. securities which, together with interest earned
thereon, will provide amounts sufficient for future payment of principal and interest of the issuesrefunded. The assets, liahilities,
and financial transactions of these trust accounts and the liability for the defeased COPs are not reflected in the accompanying
financial statements. Refunded COPs for the SFB at June 30, 2010 totaled $311.130 million.

Business-Type Activities
3. Universities
a. University of Arizona

The U of A utilizes COPs and various capital leases to acquire buildings, equipment, and land. The COPs are generally callable,
and the capital leases are subject to prepayment.

In fiscal year 2003, the U of A refunded, in advance of maturity, a portion of outstanding COPs Series 2001B. At June 30, 2010,
the outstanding principa balance for the COPs Series 2001B was $1.980 million, which will be paid by investments held in an
irrevocable trust with a fair market value of $2.121 million. Accordingly, the trust account assets and liability for these defeased
COPs are not included in the accompanying financial statements.

In fiscal year 2005, the U of A refunded, in advance of maturity, a portion of outstanding COPs Series 2001A. At June 30, 2010,
the total outstanding principal balance for the COPs Series 2001A was $8.730 million, which will be paid by investments held in
an irrevocable trust with a fair value of $8.832 million. Accordingly, the trust account assets and liability for these defeased
COPs are not included in the accompanying financial statements.

In fiscal year 2007, the U of A refunded, in advance of maturity, a portion of outstanding COPs Series 2001A, 2001B, and
2002A. At June 30, 2010, the total outstanding principal balance for the COPs Series 2001A, 2001B, and 2002A was $59.195
million, which will be paid by investments held in an irrevocable trust with afair value of $59.930 million. Accordingly, the trust
account assets and liability for these defeased COPs are not included in the accompanying financial statements.

b. Arizona State University

At June 30, 2010, the ASU has issued fixed rate COPs. The ASU’s non-bonded debt consists of various issues of COPs that are
generally callable at a prescribed date with interest payable semi-annually. Certain COPs of the ASU have been defeased through
advance refundings by depositing sufficient U.S. Government securities to pay all future debt service in an irrevocable trust.
Accordingly, the liabilities for these defeased COPs are not included in the accompanying financial statements. The principal
amount of all such COPs outstanding at June 30, 2010 was $65.400 million.

Securities and cash restricted for COP debt service held by the trustee at June 30, 2010 totaled $7.300 million.
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A summary of the COPs issued as of June 30, 2010 is asfollows (expressed in thousands):

Issue Final Original Outstanding Interest
Project Date Maturity Date Amount | ssued Balance Rates
Governmental Activities:
Department of Administration:
Refunding Certificates of 92A, 92C, & 1091 2001 2012 $ 57,930 $ 7,050 425-525
Health Lab/HRIS 2002A 2002 2023 63,270 35,800 425-550
Refunding Certificates of 92B 2003 2011 75,295 25,265 3.80-5.50
Refunding Certificates of 93B 2004 2012 16,725 4,530 3.75-5.00
1000 Bed Prison 2004B 2004 2019 31,965 22,865 4.00-5.25
4000 Bed Prison, Wastewater Upgrades, Forensic Unit 2008A 2008 2028 238,990 230,030 3.25-5.00
General Fund Budget Recongiliation 2010A 2010 2030 709,090 709,090 2.00-5.25
General Fund Budget Recongiliation 20108 2010 2030 289,705 289,705 2.00-5.00
School Facilities Board:
New School Construction 2003A 2003 2014 372,730 107,980 3.50-5.00
New School Construction 2003B 2004 2015 194,610 69,550 3.70-5.25
New School Construction 2004A 2004 2019 47,160 32,795 2.75-5.00
New School Construction 2004B 2005 2017 190,040 91,415 425-525
New School Construction 2004C 2005 2020 47,585 37,460 4.75-5.00
Refunding Certificates of 2003A 2005 2018 201,125 198,050 3.00-5.00
Refunding Certificates of 2003B 2005 2019 80,055 77,150 3.00-5.00
Refunding Certificates of 2004B 2005 2020 53,045 52,355 3.00-5.00
New School Construction 2008 2009 2024 580,035 580,035 4.00-5.75
Total Governmental Activities $ 3,249,355 $ 2,571,125
Business-Type Activities:
Arizona State University:
Towers Project 1991 2011 $ 4,500 $ 415 6.89
Downtown Center — 1999A 1999 2025 5,620 4,265 5.78
Downtown Center — 1999B 1999 2025 5,165 4,170 8.02
2002 Certificates of Participation 2002 2027 103,800 18,185 476
2004 West Campus— Refunding 2004 2010 22,495 - 2.36
2004 Certificates of Participation 2005 2031 80,275 74,350 4.89
2005A Certificates of Participation 2005 2031 110,115 101,550 4.36
2006 Certificates of Participation 2006 2031 15,810 14,450 452
2006 Refunding Certificates of Participation 2007 2027 65,890 64,580 415
University of Arizona:
Fixed Student Union A 1999 2020 21,607 4,364 513-5.30
Park Std. Union/Learning Svcs/6th St Garage/TEP Bldg. 2001 2012 31,695 1,990 430-4.45
Gittings Bldg/Highland Infra/Life Sci. 2001 2014 21,425 2,185 4.75-5.00
Student Housing, Health Bldg., UA North 2002 2022 76,965 11,640 438-5.50
Meind Bldg & Refund COPS 1994B 2002 2023 29,845 26,640 475-5.13
Refund COPS 1997 & Portion of Series 2001B 2003 2022 10,615 10,615 3.50-5.00
Med. Research. Bldg./Biomed Sci.&Biotech/Tech. Infra. 2004 2031 153,960 138,340 3.77-5.25
Chem.Bldg./Res.Life/Highland Pkg.Garage/Rfnd. COPS 1994A 2004 2029 42,020 30,510 450-5.25
Refund COPs 1999A 2005 2024 12,660 12,660 4.00-5.00
Refund COPs 1999 2005 2024 14,825 14,825 5.00
Refund COPs 2001A 2005 2022 16,330 16,330 413-5.00
Refund COPs 1999, 1999A& B, 2000A, 2001A&B, 2002A&B,
2003A&B, 2004A 2006 2025 29,460 26,565 3.63-5.00
Refund COPs 1999A& B, 2000A, 2001A& B, 2002A& B,
2003A&B, 2004A 2006 2025 58,650 57,120 3.75-5.00
Biomed Research Collaborative Bldg. Project 2006 2031 18,240 16,825 4.00-5.00
Refund COPs 2001A, 2001B, 2002A, 2004B 2007 2031 105,080 104,830 3.50-4.50
Northern Arizona University:
2004 Certificates of Participation 2005 2031 37,585 34,740 4.85
2005 Certificates of Participation 2006 2031 40,255 37,095 4.65
2006 Certificates of Participation 2006 2031 12,445 11,480 435
Total Business-Type Activities $ 1,147,332 $ 840,719
Total Certificates of Participation $ 4,396,687 $ 3,411,844
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Principal and interest debt service requirements on COPs outstanding at June 30, 2010 are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Annual Debt Service

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Total Total
Fiscal Total Total Amount Total Total Amount
Y ear Principal Interest Required Principal Interest Required
2011 $ 109,980 $ 128,358 $ 238,338 $ 28,605 $ 39,187 $ 67,792
2012 115,430 119,865 235,295 34,802 38,433 73,235
2013 156,705 113,455 270,160 36,506 36,959 73,465
2014 164,250 105,697 269,947 38,303 35,190 73,493
2015 172,290 97,451 269,741 38,314 33,914 72,228
2016-2020 858,630 352,923 1,211,553 244,614 132,242 376,856
2021-2025 577,525 176,110 753,635 225,125 73,396 298,521
2026-2030 416,315 52,327 468,642 160,690 27,241 187,931
2031-2035 - - - 33,760 839 34,599
Total $ 2,571,125 $ 1,146,186 $ 3,717,311 $ 840,719 $ 417401 $ 1,258,120
D. LEASES
1. Leases

The State has entered into capital |ease agreements for the acquisition of buildings, telephone systems, copy machines, and other
equipment. Capital lease assets and liabilities are reported on the government-wide Statement of Net Assets. A leaseis reported
asacapital lease if one or more of the following criteria are met:

i Titleto or ownership of the asset is transferred to the State at the end of the lease.

i Thelease containsabargain purchase option.

i The lease term is equal to 75.00% or more of the useful life of the leased asset. (This criterion does not apply if the
beginning lease term falls within the last 25.00% of the total useful life of the asset.)

i  The present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, excluding executory costs, equals at least
90.00% of the fair market value of the leased asset. (This criterion does not apply if the beginning lease term falls within the
last 25.00% of thetotal useful life of the asset.)
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The future minimum lease payments for long-term capital leases as of June 30, 2010 are summarized below (expressed in
thousands):

Annual Debt Service

Governmenta Business-type
Fiscal Year Activities Activities
2011 $ 45,955 $ 12,754
2012 45,648 13,107
2013 44,632 13,040
2014 44,941 12,551
2015 45,277 12,269
2016-2020 229,752 59,710
2021-2025 254,929 60,813
2026-2030 47,475 62,423
2031-2035 4,172 49,218
2036-2039 - 6,035
Total minimum |ease payments 762,781 301,920
Less: amount representing interest (266,237) (130,472)
Less: amount representing executory costs (83,625) -
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments $ 412,919 $ 171,448

2. Capital Assets Financed through Capital Leases

The following table summarizes the historical costs of assets acquired under capital |eases (expressed in thousands):

Governmentd Business-type
Activities Activities

Land $ 435 $ 1,763
Buildings 387,728 192,778
Infrastructure - 39
Software 1,745 -
Equipment 9,560 1,834

399,468 196,414
Less: accumul ated depreciation (36,105) (25,521)
Carrying Vaue $ 363,363 $ 170,893

E. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Compensated absences are paid from various funds in the same proportion that those funds pay payroll costs. The compensated
absence liability attributable to governmental activitieswill be liquidated primarily by the General Fund. During fiscal year 2010,
the State paid for compensated absences as follows: 81.29% from the General Fund, 12.14% from other funds, and 6.57% from

other major funds.
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F. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following isa summary of changesin Long-term Obligations (expressed in thousands):

Balance Balance Due Within Due
July 1, 2009 Increases Decreases June 30, 2010 OneY ear Thereafter

Governmental Activities:
Long-term Debt:

Revenue bonds $ 3251580 $ 425420 $ (154,395) $ 3522605 $ 162520 $ 3,360,085

Grant anticipation notes 329,650 - (25,170) 304,480 70,570 233,910

Certificates of participation 1,649,870 998,795 (77,540) 2,571,125 109,980 2,461,145

Capital leases 236,125 187,836 (11,042) 412,919 16,004 396,915

Ingtallment purchase contracts 6,343 - (5,442) 901 656 245

Notes payable 42,668 32,628 (14,584) 60,712 13,983 46,729

Premiums and di scounts on debt 285,613 77,709 (28,601) 334,721 30,979 303,742

Deferred amounts on refundings (9,171 - 3,974 (5,197) (3,976) (1,221)
Total Long-term Debt 5,792,678 1,722,388 (312,800) 7,202,266 400,716 6,801,550
Other Long-term Liabilities:

Compensated absences 280,413 220,635 (225,513) 275,535 169,869 105,666

Pollution remediation

obligations 22,813 - (1,623) 21,190 1,015 20,175

Total Other Long-term Liabilities 303,226 220,635 (227,136) 296,725 170,884 125,841
Total Long-term Obligations $ 6,095904 $ 1,943,023 $ (539,936) $ 7,498,991 $ 571,600 $ 6,927,391
Business-type Activities:
Long-term Debt:

Revenue bonds $ 1239675 $ 505,110 $  (51,960) $ 1,692,825 $ 58505 $ 1,634,320

Certificates of participation 872,829 205 (32,315) 840,719 28,605 812,114

Capital leases 175,453 12,043 (16,048) 171,448 4,515 166,933

Installment purchase contracts 16,418 1,471 (4,846) 13,043 3,655 9,388

Notes payable 674 - (314) 360 68 292

Premiums and di scounts on debt 43,112 1,047 (4,454) 39,705 1,922 37,783

Deferred amounts on refundings (25,294) - 2,194 (23,100) (1,630) (21,470)
Total Long-term Debt 2,322,867 519,876 (107,743) 2,735,000 95,640 2,639,360
Other Long-term Liabilities:

Compensated absences 70,269 80,384 (80,691) 69,962 15,472 54,490
Total Other Long-term Liabilities 70,269 80,384 (80,691) 69,962 15,472 54,490
Total Long-term Obligations $ 2393136 $ 600260 $ (188,434 $ 2804962 $ 111112 $ 2,693,850

The above long-term obligations relating to governmenta activities include internal service funds. Amounts for compensated
absences differ from thosein the Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets because
$112.437 million of compensated absences are atributable to internal service funds. These amounts are included in the
reconciliation as part of interna service fund net assets.
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‘ NOTE 8. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS
Interfund Receivables/Payables

Interfund balances as of June 30, 2010 are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Due To
Non-Major Non-Major Internal
General Governmental  Universties  Enterprise Service Total
Due From Fund Funds Fund Funds Funds DueTo
General Fund $ - $ 10370 $ 200,000 $ 10 $ 1615 $ 211,995
Transportation & Aviation Planning,

Highway Maintenance & Safety Fund 4,226 3,617 - 94 - 7,937
Land Endowments Fund 498 - - - 1,157 1,655
Non-Major Governmental Funds 13,609 2,050 - - 335 15,994
Unemployment Compensation Fund 11 212 - - - 223
Lottery Fund 14,243 2,828 - - - 17,071
Non-Major Enterprise Funds - - - - 1 1
Internal Service Funds 1,196 174 - - 7 1,377
Total Due From $ 33783 $ 19251 $ 200000 $ 104 $ 3115 $ 256,253

Interfund balances represent (1) amounts due to and from the internal service funds for goods and services rendered, and (2) cash
transferred between funds for various interfund activities subsequent to the balance sheet date. The cash is recorded in the fund
which initiated the transfer, and a corresponding liability is recorded. Thereceiving fund records an interfund receivable.

Interfund Transfers

Transfers for the year ended June 30, 2010 are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Transferred To

Transportation
& Aviation
Planning, Non-
Highway Land Non-Major Indugtrial Major Internal Total
Genera Maintenance Endowments Governmental — Universities Commisson Enterprise Service  Transfers
Transferred From Fund & Safety Fund Fund Funds Fund Special Fund  Funds Funds Out
General Fund $ -$ 661 $ 28 $ 90,669 $ 946,035 $ - $ -$ - $ 1,037,393
Transportation & Aviation
Planning, Highway
Maintenance & Safety Fund 188,567 - - 307,541 - - - 5,538 501,646
Land Endowments Fund 14 - - 24,740 - - - - 24,754
Non-Major Governmental
Funds 274,752 218 - 31,368 - 2,000 81 - 308,419
Unemployment Compensation
Fund 3,847 - - 1,817 - - - - 5,664
Lottery Fund 92,856 - - 26,924 - - - - 119,780
Non-Major Enterprise Funds 12,808 - - - - - - - 12,808
Internal Service Funds 48,410 1,000 - 30 - - - 500 49,940
Total Transfersin $ 621,254 $ 1879 $ 28 $ 483,089 $ 946,035 $ 2,000 $ 81 $ 6,038 $ 2,060,404

Interfund transfers represent legally authorized non-exchange transfers of funds. These transfers include: (1) legidative
appropriations from the General Fund, (2) other legidative transfers, (3) statutorily required transfers, (4) transfers related to the

elimination of funds, and (5) transfers for debt service.
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‘NOTE 9. FUND DEFICIT

A. GENERAL FUND

The Genera Fund deficit of $754.731 million is primarily due to the ongoing economic downturn. Continued slow economic
growth resulted in revenues falling short of budgeted levels. For fiscal year 2010, expenditures were $21.9 hillion, while
revenues were $21.0 hillion. Sales tax and income tax revenues continued to be significantly impacted by economic conditions
but did not experience the decline of previous years. Reported salestax and income tax decreased by $298.994 million, or 6.40%,
and $332.376 million, or 10.59%, as compared to fiscal year 2009, respectively.

B. INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION SPECIAL FUND

The fund deficit increased from $45.861 million at June 30, 2009 to $53.292 million at June 30, 2010, a total increase of $7.431
million, primarily due to the following factors. During the fiscal year, total investments increased $42.602 million due to the
economic recovery. This increase was offset by an increase in the actuarially determined insurance loss reserve of $36.764
million over the prior year, a decrease in no insurance settlement income of $8.287 million, and a decrease of $4.000 million in
the Commission’s Administrative Fund (Administrative Fund) transfers.

In 2005, ARS § 23-1081(B) was amended to permit a surplus in the Administrative Fund to be transferred to the Special Fund
when the Special Fund is not actuarially sound. During fiscal year 2009, $6.000 million was transferred from the Administrative
Fund to the Special Fund. During fiscal year 2010, $2.000 million was transferred, resulting in a $4.000 million decrease.

C. HEALTHCARE GROUP OF ARIZONA

In fiscal year 2010, the Healthcare Group of Arizona (HCG) reported operating income of $1.968 million and an increase in net
assets of $1.779 million. This continues a positive turn-around trend that began in fiscal year 2008 when the HCG began
successfully managing both program and administrative costs through a series of cuts, changes, realignments, and premium
adjustments to match revenues with expenses. Fiscal year 2010 isthe first year since fiscal year 1998 that the HCG has reported
income from operations without receiving General Fund subsidies to offset current or prior year losses. Additionaly, the HCG
made a cash transfer to the General Fund in the amount of $365 thousand mandated by Laws 2009, Chapter 11. Overall fiscal
year 2010 operating results decreased the HCG’s net deficit to $9.010 million a June 30, 2010 as compared to the $10.789
million net deficit balance at June 30, 2009.

Prior to fiscal year 2008, the HCG was unable to cover its costs due to net medical losses (medical costs exceeded premiums
received). Since ending fiscal year 2007 with aliability of $22.509 million, the HCG has reduced this balance by $10.127 million
using cash generated from operations, General Fund subsidies, reinsurance and other adjustments.

The following table summarizes the HCG’s reconciliation liahility activity for fiscal year 2010:

Reconciliation Period

FY 07 FY 08 FY 09 Total
Balance June 30, 2009 $ 9583 $ 3822 % -8 13,405
Payments made (680) (65) - (745)
Accruals and adjustments (220) (58) - (278)
Balance June 30, 2010 $ 8683 $ 369 $ - 8 12,382

The remaining reconciliation liability will be paid by allocating 2.00% of medical premium revenues for areconciliation reserve,
fromresidua earnings, and from any subsidies provided by the State L egidature.

There can be no assurance that operating improvements realized over the past three fiscal years will continue to occur or will
provide sufficient cash to fund operating expenses. Additionally, if there is an unexpected and adverse change in enrollment and
premium increases are not sufficient to fund the reserves for past losses, then the HCG will be required to further scale back
adminigrative expenditures to a level supported by actual enrollment. Should the HCG be required to accelerate payments for
prior year reconciliation liabilities before it has sufficient fundsto provide such payments and new terms are not negotiated, or the

- 110-



STATE OF ARIZONA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

Legidature does not provide the HCG with additional subsidies, it raises substantial doubt about the HCG’s ability to continue as
agoing concern.

In conclusion, even though the HCG has posted operating income for the last three fiscal years and management currently
projects that the positive trend will continue, $9.010 million remained as a net deficit at June 30, 2010 due to the outstanding
reconciliation liability owed to the HMOs for prior fiscal years. It isnot anticipated that operations will generate sufficient cash
flow in the near future to entirely pay off the remaining deficit.

The HCG plans to continue operations and to continue to pay down the outstanding liability. Accordingly, the accompanying
financial statements have been prepared assuming that the HCG will continue as a going concern. Thefinancial statements do not
include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of asset carrying amounts or the amount and classification
of liabilities that might result should the HCG be unable to continue as a going concern.

D. ARIZONA HIGHWAYS MAGAZINE

The Arizona Highways Magazine had a fund deficit of $574 thousand which resulted from legidatively mandated cash transfers
to the General Fund totaling $1.084 million in fiscal year 2010, and $1.483 million in fiscal year 2009. These transfers were
mandated by House Bill 2643 section 44, House Bill 2001 section 148A, and Senate Bill 1001 section 2, effective for fiscal year
2010. The fiscal year 2009 transfers were mandated by House Bill 2209, section 46, and Senate Bill 1001, sections 4, 5, and 7.

E. RISK MANAGEMENT FUND

The Risk Management Fund (RMF) deficit of $322.094 million is primarily due to the RMF recelving annua funding only for
expected paid claims (sdf-insured and excess insurance expenditures, legal and other claim related expenditures, and
adminigrative expenditures), and not being funded for non-current accrued insurance losses. Accrued insurance losses of the
RMF are not considered when determining funding for each fiscal year.

F. RETIREE SICK LEAVE FUND (RASL)

The RASL pays retirees for their accumulated sick leave upon retirement from State service when they meet certain criteria
Beginning with fiscal year 2008, the State applied the provisions of GASB Statement No. 16 — Accounting for Compensated
Absences to the RASL. Thisresultsin aliability in the RASL which is significantly greater than the actual funding of the RASL,
because the liability is based upon an estimate of the total RASL benefit earned by existing employees at the balance sheet date;
however, State agencies pay for only one year based on a 0.40% charge on gross payroll. The $105.322 million fund deficit is
primarily due to the above funding mechanism.

‘ NOTE 10. JOINT VENTURE

The U of A is a participant in the Large Binocular Telescope Corporation (LBT). The LBT was formally incorporated as a
nonprafit corporation in August 1992 pursuant to a Memorandum of Understanding, as amended, executed on February 24, 1989,
between the U of A and the Arcetri Astrophysical Observatory in Florence, Italy (Arcetri). The purpose of the joint ventureis to
design, devel op, construct, own, operate, and maintain a binocul ar telescope located in Arizona. The current members of the LBT
are the U of A, INAF Asdrophysical Observatory, Research Corporation, Ohio State University, and the LBT
Beteiligungsgesal | schaft.

The U of A has committed resources equivalent to 25.00% of the LBT’s construction costs and annual operating costs. As of
June 30, 2010, the U of A has made cash contributions of $18.159 million toward the project’s construction costs, which were
recorded as long-term investments on the Statement of Net Assets. The U of A’s financial interest represents its future
viewing/observation rights. As of December 31, 2007, the assets had been substantially completed and the telescope entered the
commissioning phase. During calendar year 2007, the tel escope became operational for research purposes; thus, depreciation of
the property and equipment has commenced. The U of A recorded its proportionate share of the use of the viewing/observation
rights, $750 thousand in calendar year 2009, as a reduction in its investment. At June 30, 2010, the investment totaled $16.007
million. According to the audited financial statements of the LBT for the year ended December 31, 2009, assets, liabilities,
revenues, and expenses totaled $129.000 million, $4.000 million, $14.000 million, and $11.000 million, respectively.
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The LBT’s separate audited financial statements can be obtained from the University of Arizona Comptroller at the University of
Arizona, Financial Services, P.O. Box 3310, Tucson, AZ 85722-3310.

NOTE 11. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, AND COMPLIANCE

A. INSURANCE LOSSES

The Department of Administration — Risk Management Division manages the State’s property, environmental, general liability,
and workers’ compensation losses. The State has determined that the management of these losses can be performed effectively
and efficiently through the Risk Management Division. Consequently, all agencies are required to participate in this program.
The State’s Risk Management Division evaluates the proper mix of purchased commercial insurance and self-insurance annually.

The Commission’s Special Fund provides payment of workers’ compensation losses which are not covered by the State
Compensation Fund, the Department of Administration — Risk Management Division, private insurance carriers, or self-insured
employers. The workers’ compensation claims paid by the Special Fund encompass claims against uninsured or underinsured
employers and insolvent insurance carriers and would include payments for vocational rehabilitation, medical conditionsincurred
prior to 1973, apportionment claims for pre-existing industrial and non-industrial related physical impairments, and compensation
for loss of earnings associated with the disability.

The State records claims liability when the reported loss is probable and reasonably estimated. On an annual basis, independent
actuarial firms are engaged to estimate the State’s total year-end outstanding claims liability, which takes into account recorded
claims and related allocated claims adjustment expenditures, loss development factors, and an estimate for incurred but not
reported claims. There were no non-incremental claims adjustment expenses included in the liability for claims and adjustments.

The management and payment of these losses is accomplished through the funding mechanism of the Risk Management Fund
(internal service fund) and the Special Fund (enterprise fund). As discussed in the above paragraph, an independent annual
actuarial analysisis performed to eval uate the needed funding. The Risk Management Division will assess each agency an annual
portion of the necessary funding for the Risk Management Fund based on their exposures and prior loss experience. Investment
earnings (including interest, dividends, and securities lending income) and assessments on gross premium revenues primarily
fund the Special Fund. To provide funding for workers’ compensation claims, the Special Fund may direct payment to the State
Treasurer an amount not to exceed one and one-half percent of all premiums received by the State Compensation Fund, private
carriers, and self-insured plans during the immediately preceding calendar year. Beginning in calendar year 2004, this 1.50%
assessment was levied under ARS 823-1065(A) because of a deficit net assets balance.

AMI Risk Consultants, Inc. was retained to evaluate the medical and compensation related liabilities of the Special Fund as of
June 30, 2010. The estimated loss reserve of $415.284 million is $36.764 million greater than the $378.520 million reserve
estimate at June 30, 2009. The primary reason for this change was a change in actuarial assumptions by AMI Risk Consultants,
Inc. In prior years, a confidence level of 50.00% was used in calculating medical and compensation related liabilities. However,
current industry standard is 75.00% and this method was adopted for June 30, 2010. In future years, the current industry standard
will be applied when calculating medical and compensation related liabilities. A confidence level of 75.00% indicates a
confidence that the estimated liability will be adequate to cover actual costs 7.5 out of 10 years. The reserves were discounted at
an assumed rate of 2.89% for the compensation claims and zero percent for the medical claims. For medica benefits, it was
assumed that the inflation in medical costswill equal the investment return earned by the Special Fund on those reserves.

The Special Fund levied the following assessment taxes for calendar year 2010: 1.50% assessment under ARS 823-1065(A),
.50% assessment under ARS §23-966(D) based on insolvent carrier losses, and .50% assessment under ARS §23-1065(F), based
on the total apportionment liability. The ARS 823-966(D) and ARS §23-1065(F) assessments were not levied during calendar
year 2009. The Special Fund has filed pending proof of claim requests with ancillary receivers and liquidators holding deposits
and surety bonds of several insolvent companies. Since the actual amount that will ultimately be received cannot be determined,
the Special Fund will continue to recognize receipt of insolvent carrier deposits (“settlement income”) as revenue at the time
received rather than recording areceivable.

Occasionally, the Risk Management Division agrees with claimants to purchase an annuity contract to settle specific claims when
it is determined that it isin the best interest of the State to do so. In these instances, the State requires the claimant to sign an
agreement releasing the State from any further obligation. As aresult of these requirements, the likelihood that the State will be
required to make future payments on these claimsis remote.
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There have been no significant reductionsin the current fiscal year insurance coverage. There have been no settlements that have
exceeded insurance premium coverage in the last three years.

The following table presents the changes in claims liahilities balances (short- and long-term combined) during fiscal years ended
June 30, 2009 and June 30, 2010 (expressed in thousands):

Current Year
Clamsand
Beginning Changesin Clams Ending
Fiscal Year Balance Estimates Payments Balance
Risk Management Fund:
2009 $ 363,927 $ 61,179 $ 65,293 $ 359,813
2010 359,813 70,637 56,733 373,717
Industrial Commission Specia Fund:
2009 382,138 24,467 28,085 378,520
2010 378,520 63,284 26,520 415,284

B. LITIGATION

In Roosevelt Elementary School District No. 66 vs. State of Arizona and Somerton Elementary School District No. 11 vs. State of
Arizona, plaintiffs were seeking a declaration that Arizona’s funding of the Building Renewa Fund for school district capital
resources under ARS 815-2031 is unconstitutional. The actions were originally commenced in 1999 and 2002, but they were
remanded by the Arizona Court of Appeals after its decision in Roosevelt Elem. Sch. Dist. v. State of Arizona, 205 Ariz. 594, 74
P.3d 258 (App. 2003). On remand, plaintiffs substituted some parties, leaving the plaintiff school districts as Globe Unified
School District, Williams Unified School Didgtrict, and Sierra Vista Unified School District, and discovery recommenced. In
October, 2006, the court granted the State summary judgment, finding that the named school districts had failed to seek
emergency funding under ARS §15-2022. The court indicated that if the districts proved subsequently that they had sought
emergency funding and been rejected, and had exhausted all sources of State funding available to them for their facility needs,
they might reinstate their claims. Plaintiff Globe Unified School District isno longer a party. The court later agreed to stay the
judgment againg plaintiffs through June 1, 2007, and plaintiffs successfully sought even further continuance on the inactive
calendar. The plaintiffs moved to add a new plaintiff district, Tempe Union High School District, and to transfer the case to the
active calendar and set it for trial. The State objected, and sought dismissal of the cases. The motions were argued in September,
2008, and the court issued an order requiring a further evidentiary hearing on the status of the plaintiff districts’ alleged capita
needs and financial resources for late February, 2009. In the meantime, plaintiff, Williams Unified School District decided not to
continue as a plaintiff in the case. The evidentiary hearing commenced in February, 2009, was continued for another afternoon of
hearing in March, 2009, and had a final day of hearing on June 30, 2009. The Superior Court ultimately ruled in favor of the
State and dismissed the pending claims. However, the Court further ordered that “[s|hould Flaintiffs in the future establish that
they have exhausted all appropriate sources of State funding and yet have been denied emergency funds, their claims may be
reinstated” and that the “case be placed on the inactive calendar for dismissal without further notice on December 20, 2010.”
This resulted in the Plaintiff Tempe District seeking to continue its claims on the inactive calendar for an additional six months
because it has pending requests for emergency funding that have not yet been determined by the State School Facilities Board.

In Rumery v. Martin, the plaintiff has filed a special action challenging the constitutionality of a state law that would allow
administrative expenses of the Land Department to be paid from proceeds of the trust. The legidation allows $10.000 million of
trust proceeds from sale transactions to be transferred into a trust land management account for payment of administrative
expenses. The Superior Court ruled against the State on summary judgment. The State received a stay and intends to appeal the
decision. The potential outcomeis uncertain at thistime. If this case were to have an unfavorable outcome, it is possible that the
State would have to transfer to the Land Endowments Fund between $11.546 million to $18.020 million.

The State has a variety of claims pending against it that arose during the normal course of its activities. Management believes,
based on advice of legal counsel, losses, if any, resulting from settlement of these claims will not have a materia effect on the
financial position of the State. All losses for any unsettled litigation or contingencies involving workers’ compensation, medical
malpractice, construction and design, highway operations, employment practices, crimina justice, fideity and surety,
environmental property damage, general liability, environmental liability, building and contracts, auto liability, or auto physical
damage are determined on an actuarial basis and included in the Accrued Insurance Losses of the interna service funds and the
Industrial Commission Special Fund.
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C. ACCUMULATED SICK LEAVE

Sick leave includes any approved period of paid absence granted an employee due to illness, injury, or disability. Most State
employees accrue sick leave at the rate of eight hours per month without an accumulation limit. State employees are eligible to
receive payment for an accumulated sick leave balance of at least 500 hours, with a maximum of 1,500 hours, upon retirement
directly from State service. The benefit value is calculated by taking the State employee’s hourly rate of pay at the retirement
date, multiplied by the number of sick hours at the retirement date times the digibility percentage. The digibility percentage
varies based upon the number of accumulated sick hours from 25.00% for 500 hours to a maximum of 50.00% for 1,500 hours.
The maximum benefit value is $30 thousand. The benefit is paid out in annual installments over three years. The RASL Fund is
accounted for in the financial gatements as an internal service fund and accounts for the retiree accumulated sick leave liability of
$110.861 million at June 30, 2010.

D. UNCLAIMED PROPERTY

The State of Arizona’s Uniform Unclaimed Property Act requires the deposit of certain unclaimed assets into a managed agency
fund. A total of approximately $789.744 million (net of refunds issued) has been collected since the inception of the fund. The
State is aso holding securities valued at $45.806 million and mutual funds valued at $5.398 million. In accordance with ARS
844-313 and ARS 844-314, for fiscal year 2010, $24.500 million was deposited in the Department of Revenue Administrative
Fund, $10.500 million was deposited in the Department of Commerce Housing Fund, $101.669 million was deposited in the
General Fund, and $986 thousand was deposited in other funds as required by State statute. The remittances to the General Fund
and the holdings by the State represent contingencies, as claims for refunds can be made by the owners of the property. The
GASB requires that a liability be reported to the extent that it is probable that escheat property will be reclaimed and paid to
claimants. Thisliability isalso reported as areduction of revenue. At June 30, 2010, $183.183 million of thisliahility is reported
in the General Fund because it isthe fund to which the property ultimately escheats in Arizona.

E. CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS
The ADOT had outstanding commitments under construction contracts of $872.259 million at June 30, 2010.

(in thousands)

Expenditures Remaining

to Date Commitments

Construction contracts:
Rural roadways $ 342,338 $ 151,459
Small urban roadways 205,522 69,585
Urban roadways 78,926 60,169
Large urban roadways 491,815 160,957
Sub-total 1,118,601 442,170
Design contracts 743,505 72,657
Other commitments 554,898 357,432
Total $ 2417,004 $ 872,259

F. ARIZONA STATE LOTTERY

Annuities are purchased for all prizes over $400 thousand for which winners will receive the jackpot in annual installments for
The Pick online game. These annuities are purchased from qualifying insurance companies which have the highest ratings from
among A.M. Best Company, Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s, Duff & Phelps, or Weiss. The Lottery may incur future liabilities on
these annuities. Aggregate future payments to prize winners on existing annuities totaled $65.802 million at June 30, 2010.
Approximately $42.528 million of the total aggregate future payments at June 30, 2010 relate to annuities purchased from five
separate insurance companies, of which approximately $11.732 million relates to a single insurance company.
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‘ NOTE 12. TOBACCO SETTLEMENT

The State is one of many states participating in the settlement of litigation with the tobacco industry over the reimbursement of
healthcare costs. The settlement money is intended to compensate the State for costs it has incurred in providing health and other

Services to its citizens that were necessitated by the use of tobacco products. The State expects to receive settlement payments
through 2025.

The State recorded tobacco settlement revenue of $105.394 million and $100.360 million in the fund statements and the
government-wide statements in fiscal year 2010, respectively. Future settlement payments are subject to several adjustments, but
the amounts are not presently determinable. These adjustments include a volume adjustment, which could reflect any decreasing
cigarette production under a formulathat also takes into account increased operating income from sales. Other factors that might
affect the amounts of future payments include ongoing and future litigation against the tobacco industry and the future financial
health of the tobacco manufacturers. Because the net realizable value of the future settlement payments is not measurable and
thereisno obligation for the tobacco companies to make settlement payments until cigarettes are shipped, the State did not record
areceivable for the future payments related to cigarette sales after June 30, 2010.

NOTE 13. PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP

The State of Arizona has entered into a partnership agreement with Accenture. The purpose of this partnership is to fund the
Department of Revenue’s technology needs. The agreement stipulates that Accenture will be paid 85.00% of the new revenue
generated from the system enhancements, even if this amount is insufficient to cover the total contract cost. Accordingly,
Accenture had created a system that increases the State’s efficiency in collecting tax revenues. As of June 30, 2010, the State has
paid Accenture $153.137 million towards the $160.936 million contract cost. Included in the $160.936 million contract cost is
capitalized interest charges of $7.000 million and application support charges of $54.610 million.

NOTE 14. TREASURER’S WARRANT NOTES

Pursuant to ARS 835-185.01 and 835-185.02, the State Treasurer issued Treasurer’s Warrant Notes (TWNS) during the current
fiscal year. The TWNs were issued in lieu of immediate payment of warrants presented to the State Treasurer for authorized
General Fund expenditures. The TWNs were sold to both the State’s internal investment pools and a TWNs facility that
established a line of credit up to a maximum of $700.000 million with a financial ingtitution for the purpose of purchasing TWNSs.
TWNs are issued only in the event the State Treasurer has insufficient funds to redeem warrants presented for payment of
authorized expenditures of the State’s General Fund. TWNs are issued daily depending on cash flow needs, and are redeemed the
next business day. Each TWN issued is numbered consecutively, must be redeemed in numerical order, and can be issued in
exchange for a previoudy issued TWN. Any time TWNSs are outstanding, all monies which would normally be deposited into the
State General Fund, except amounts sufficient to pay constitutional officers of the State, shall be deposited into the TWN

Redemption Fund to redeem outstanding TWNs. TWNs activities for the year ended June 30, 2010 were as follows (expressed in
thousands):

Number Of Daily
Days TWNs Minimum Maximum Cumulative Average Of
Purchaser Were Issued TWNslssued IssueDate  TWNSs Issued Issue Date TWNs Totd TWNs Issued
Internal investment pools 93 3 7,044 9/18/2009 $ 537,061 11/23/2009 $ 19,676,420 $ 211,574
TWNs facility 132 16,889 6/9/2010 700,000 12/1/2009 74,971,935 567,969
Combined activity 208 7,044 9/18/2009 904,938 12/14/2009 94,648,355 455,040

There were no TWNs outstanding at July 1, 2009. The State’s internal investment pools purchased TWNs during the period from
July 15, 2009 to January 11, 2010, in dailly amounts ranging from $7.044 million to $537.061 million. The TWNSs facility
purchased TWNs during the period from November 24, 2009 to June 11, 2010, in daily amounts ranging from $16.889 million to
$700.000 million. For 17 days during the period from December 1, 2009 to January 11, 2010, TWNs were purchased by both the
TWNs facility (maximum line of credit utilized) and the internal investment pools. The maximum combined TWNs outstanding
during fiscal year 2010 were $904.938 million. The combined daily average of TWNs outstanding during fiscal year 2010 was
$455.040 million. The cumulative total of daily TWNs issued during fiscal year 2010 was $94.6 hillion. The State paid $3.886
million in interest and fees on the TWNs for fiscal year 2010. No TWNs were outstanding at June 30, 2010.
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‘ NOTE 15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On August 3, 2010, the SFB issued Refunding COPs Series 2010A-1, 2010A-2, and 2010A-3 for $11.100 million, $10.000
million and $37.685 million, respectively. The 2010A-1 COPs include $11.100 million of serial certificates with interest rates
ranging from 3.00% to 3.50% and maturity dates ranging from 2019 to 2020. The 2010A-2 COPs include $10.000 million of
seria certificates with interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.00% and maturity dates ranging from 2019 to 2020. The 2010A-3
COPs include $37.685 million of serid certificates with interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.00% and maturity dates ranging
from 2019 to 2020. The 2010A-1, 2010A-2, and 2010A-3 COPs are not subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities.
The SFB realized net proceeds from the 2010A-1, 2010A-2, and 2010A-3 COPs of $61.415 million after receipt of $3.415 million
net original issue premium and payment of $785 thousand for issuance costs. The SFB net proceeds were used to pay the
September 1, 2010 principal amounts of $52.815 million due on the COPs Series 2003B, 2004B, and 2008. In addition, net
proceeds were used to pay $8.600 million of the total September 1, 2010 scheduled interest payment of $15.179 million on the
Series 2008 COPs. The net proceeds were deposited in the respective certificate funds of the COPs Series 2003B, 2004B, and
2008 for payment of the September 1, 2010 amounts due.

In August 2010, the ASU issued $33.800 million in SPEED bonds, which were also issued on a subordinate lien basis, Taxable
Series 2010A and Tax-Exempt Series 2010B, to fund building renewal projects across the ASU’s campuses. The Taxable Series
2010A bonds were issued as Build America Bonds for $26.400 million with an average maturity of 15.4 years and an average
interest rate of 3.87%, net of the federal direct payments. The Tax-Exempt Series 2010B bonds were issued for $7.400 million
with an average maturity of 7.5 years and an average interest rate of 2.90%. Up to 80% of the related debt service of these
subordinate lien bonds will be paid from the Arizona State Lottery revenues, with the balance being the responsibility of the
ASU.

On October 7, 2010 the SFB, through The Bank of New Y ork Melon Trust Company, NA, issued COPs Series 2010 for $91.325
million. The 2010 COPs include $91.325 million of term certificates with an interest rate of 6.00% and a maturity date of
September 1, 2027. The 2010 COPs are subject to mandatory and optional prepayment pursuant to the COP documents. Sinking
Fund deposits will be made as part of the base rent under the lease to provide funding for principa retirement at maturity. The
State redlized net proceeds of $90.432 million after payment of $893 thousand of issuance costs, including underwriters’
discount. The 2010 COPs wereissued to: (i) finance the costs of acquiring leasehold interests in school sites and certain school
facilities, which will be subleased to various schools districts within the State, and (i) pay the costs of issuance.

On October 14, 2010, the ADOT issued $180.000 million in Transportation Excise Tax Revenue Bonds (Maricopa County
Regiona Area Road Fund) 2010 Seriesto: (i) pay the costs of design, right-of-way purchase, or construction of certain freeways
and other routes within Maricopa County, Arizona and (ii) pay the costs of issuance. The 2010 Series Bonds were issued as
senior lien bonds and mature from July 1, 2011 through July 1, 2025. Net proceeds totaled $205.288 million (after receipt of
$26.424 million reoffering premium and payment of $1.136 million in underwriting fees and costs of issuance). The bonds were
rated AA+ and Aal by S& P and Moody's, respectively.

On January 12, 2011, the ADOT issued $158.585 million in Grant Anticipation Notes Series 2011A (2011A GANS) to: (i) pay a
portion of the costs of certain controlled-access highways, U.S. highways, and State routes within the State and (ii) pay the costs
of issuance. The 2011A GANSs are limited obligations of the ADOT, with maturity dates of July 1, 2016 through July 1, 2026,
and interest rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.25%. The 2011A GANs maturing on or after July 1, 2021 are subject to optional
redemption at the discretion of the ADOT. The 2011A GANs arerated AA, Aa2, and AA by Fitch Ratings, Moody's, and S& P,
respectively.

In February 2011, the ASU issued $51.200 million in System Revenue Bonds to fund the acquisition of the Centerpoint building
(in downtown Tempe), renovation and expansion of Student Health Services, building renewal and academic renovations, lab and
research space renovations, and safety improvements. The bonds were issued with an average maturity of 10.1 years and an
average interest rate of 4.51%.

‘ NOTE 16. DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT DISCLOSURES

The accounting policies of the State’s component units conform to U.S. GAAP applicable to governmenta units adopted by the
GASB, except for those component units affiliated with the State's Universities. Because the component units affiliated with the
Universities are not governmental entities, they follow FASB statements for not-for-profit organizations for financial reporting
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purposes. Each component unit has a June 30 year-end with the exception of the Law College Association, which has a May 31
year-end.

A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The State's component units and component units affiliated with the Universities are presented using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The State’s component units follow FASB Statements and
Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989; Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research
Bulletins, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements. The State has chosen the option not to follow
FASB Statements and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989, except for the UMC, which has elected to apply the
provisions of all relevant pronouncements of the FASB, including those issued after November 30, 1989, unless those
pronouncements conflict or contradict GASB pronouncements.

2. Net Assets

Component units affiliated with the Universities classify net assets, revenues, expenses, gains and |osses based on the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions.  Accordingly, the net assets of the component units affiliated with the Universities and
changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

i Unrestricted net assets include assets and contributions that are not restricted by donors or for which such restrictions
have expired.

i Temporarily restricted net assets include contributions for which donor imposed restrictions have not been met (either
by the passage of time or by actions of the Foundations), charitable remainder unitrusts, pooled income funds, gift
annuities, and pledges receivable for which the ultimate purpose of the proceeds is not permanently restricted. Donor-
restricted contributions are classified as temporarily restricted if therestrictions are satisfied in the same reporting period
in which the contributions are received; however, the component units affiliated with the ASU, other than the ASU
Foundation, classify such contributions as unrestricted.

i Permanently restricted net assets include contributions, charitable remainder unitrusts, pooled income funds, gift
annuities, and pledges receivable which require by donor restriction that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and only
the board-approved payout be made available for program operations in accordance with donor restrictions.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes monies held in certificates of deposit, overnight money market accounts, and U.S.
Government or U.S. Treasury money market fundswith original maturities of three monthsor less. Cash and cash equivalentsare
stated at cost, which approximates fair value.

4, Investments

Investments are recorded in accordance with Statements of Financia Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 124, Accounting for
Certain Investments Held by Not-for-Profit Organizations. The fair values of publicly traded securities are based on quoted
market prices and exchange rates, if applicable. Absolute return limited partnership interests are recorded at fair value based on
guoted market prices (where the underlying investment is a mutual fund) or as determined by the fund manager. Purchases and
sales of investment securities are reflected on a trade-date basis. Realized gains and losses are calculated using the average cost
for securities sold. Investment securities, in general, are exposed to various risks, such asinterest rate, credit, and overall market
volatility. Investment income or loss (including realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments, interest, and dividends)
isincluded in the increases or decreases in net assets in the Statement of Activities.

5. Income Taxes
The Foundations qualify as tax-exempt organizations under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and, accordingly,

there is no provision for income taxes in the accompanying financial statements, except for the Collegiate Golf Foundation and
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the ACFFC. In addition, they qualify for the charitable contribution deduction and have been classified as organizations that are
not private foundations. Any income determined to be unrelated business taxable income would be taxable. The ACFFC and
NACFFC are exempt from taxes under the provisions of Section 501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code. The ACFFC does not
qualify for the charitable contribution deduction.

6. Annuities Payable and Other Trust Liabilities

Annuities payable and other trust liabilities for the U of A Foundation are stated at the actuarially computed present value of
future payments to the annuitants, which approximates fair value. The excess of the fair values of assets received (classified
according to their nature in the Statement of Financial Position) pursuant to annuity agreements over the actuarially computed
annuities payable (using market rates in effect on the contribution date) is recorded as contributionsin the year received.

7. Contributions

Contributions are recorded in accordance with SFAS No. 116, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made.
Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support depending on the
existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions. All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or
permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restriction.

8. Net Assets Released from Restriction

Expenses are not incurred in the temporarily restricted or permanently restricted net asset categories. Asthe restrictions on these
net assets are met, the net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets. The total net assets reclassified are reported as net
assets released from restriction in the accompanying Statement of Activities.

9. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Universities-affiliated component units financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financia statements, and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual resultscould differ from those estimates.

B. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

1. Component Units

a. Deposits and Investment Policies

The investments of the WIFA are stated at fair value, except guaranteed investment contracts, which are stated at cost since they
are non-participating contracts. Theinvestments of the UMC are stated at fair value.

b. Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits and Investments

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the deposits or
collateral securities may not be recovered from the outside party. The WIFA and the UMC do not have aformal policy regarding
custodial credit risk for deposits.

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the value of the
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party may not be recovered. The WIFA and the UMC
do not have a formal policy regarding custodial credit risk for investments. The investments of the UMC are uninsured,
unregistered, and held by brokersin the UMC’s name.
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c. Interest Rate Risk

Interest raterisk istherisk that changes in interest rates will adversdly affect the fair value of an investment. The WIFA does not
have a formal policy regarding interest rate risk. The following table presents the interest rate risk for the WIFA utilizing the
segmented time distribution method as of June 30, 2010 (expressed in thousands):

Investment Maturities (in years)

Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1-5 6-10 More than 10
Commercial paper $ 15000 $ 15000 $ - $ - $ -
Corporate asset backed securities 2,640 2,640 - - -
Corporate notes 12,297 12,297 - - -
Guaranteed investment contracts 105,257 - - 105,257 -
Money market mutua funds 4,703 4,703 - - -
Repurchase agreements 7,916 7,916 - - -
U.S. agency securities 21,581 21,581 - - -
U.S. agency securities— full faith 141 - 141 - -
U.S. agency mortgage backed securities 606 - - - 606
U.S. agency mortgage backed securities
-full faith 16 - - - 16
U.S. Treasury securities 4,613 4,613 - - -
Total $ 174770 $ 68,750 $ 141 $ 105257 $ 622

The UMC’s investment policy limits the portfolio duration related to debt securities to the Lehman Brothers Intermediate
Government/Credit Index. Thisis an index based on all publicly issued intermediate government and corporate debt securities
with average maturities of four to five years. The following table presents the estimated maturities of the UMC’s investments,
utilizing the segmented time distribution method as of June 30, 2010 (expressed in thousands):

Investment Maturities (in years)

Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1-5 6-10 More than 10
Bond mutual funds $ 698 $ - 3 698 % - 0% -
Commercial paper 15,617 15,617 - - -
Guaranteed investment contracts 8,615 4,372 - - 4,243
Money market mutua funds 51,686 51,686 - - -
U.S. Treasury securities 8,442 8,442 - - -

Total $ 91,348 $ 80,117 $ 6988 $ - $ 4,243

d. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations to the holder of the
investment. The WIFA does not have a forma policy regarding credit risk. The following table presents the WIFA’s
investments which were rated by S & P’s and/or an equivalent national rating organization. The ratings are presented usng S &

P’srating scale as of June 30, 2010 (expressed in thousands):

Investment Type Fair Value AAA AA A Al BB Not Rated
Commercial paper $ 15000 $ - 3 - $ - $ 15000 $ - $ -
Corporate asset backed
securities 2,640 2,640 - - - - -
Corporate notes 10,311 156 2,924 6,610 - 621 -
Guaranteed investment contracts 105,257 105,257 - - - - -
Money market mutua funds 4,703 - - - - - 4,703
U.S. agency securities 21,581 16,990 - - 4,591 - -
U.S. agency mortgage backed
securities 606 606 - - - - -
Totd $ 160098 $125649 $ 2924 $ 6610 $ 19591 $ 621 $ 4,703
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The UMC’s investment policy establishes ranges which limit the level of investments held in domestic and international equities,
fixed income securities, and aternative investment strategies. Investment in fixed income securities is limited to investment
grade securities with a credit rating of BBB, or equivalent, or better. The portfolio of fixed income securities must maintain an
average rating of A or better at all times. The following table presents the UMC’s investments which were rated by S & P’s
and/or an equivalent national rating organization. The ratings are presented using S & P’s rating scale as of June 30, 2010
(expressed in thousands):

Investment Type Fair Value AAA AA A Not Rated
Bond mutual funds $ 6988 $ 5499 $ 1489 $ -8 -
Commercial paper 15,617 - - - 15,617
Guaranteed investment contracts 8,615 - - 4,243 4,372
Hedge fund of funds 33,043 - - - 33,043
Money market mutua funds 51,686 - - - 51,686
Private equity 3,697 - - - 3,697
Other 51,216 - - - 51,216
Total $ 170862 $ 5499 $ 1489 $ 4243 $ 159,631

e. Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is therisk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment in a single issuer. The
WIFA’s investment policy contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any oneissuer. As of June 30, 2010, an
investment in Bayerische Landesbank (fair value of $40.586 million) was approximately 23.22% of the WIFA’s total
investments, an investment in AIG Matched Funding Corp. (fair value of $25.153 million) was approximately 14.39% of the
WIFA’s total investments, an investment in Royal Bank of Canada (fair value of $31.374 million) was approximately 17.95% of
the WIFA’s total investments, and an investment in GE Funding Capital Market Services, Inc. (fair value of $8.145 million) was
approximately 4.66% of the WIFA’s total investments.

f.  Foreign Currency Risk
The UMC’s investment policy permitsit to invest a portion of its holdingsin international equities, private equity, and hedge fund
investments. The UMC’s current holdings in international securities totaled approximately $22.608 million, or 15.60% of total

investments not held by trustee. The following table summarizes the UMC’s foreign currency risk as of June 30, 2010 (expressed
in thousands):

Foreign Currency Risk by Investment Type at Fair Value

Currency Fixed Income Equities Total
Euro Currency $ (293) $ 3,865 $ 3,572
Hong Kong Dallar - 1,362 1,362
Indonesian Rupiah 93 1,207 1,300
Japanese Yen (248) 7,495 7,247
Russian Ruble - 828 828
South African Rand (49) 1,680 1,631
Other 1,911 4,757 6,668
Total $ 1,414 $ 21,194 $ 22,608

- 120 -



STATE OF ARIZONA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

2. Universities-Affiliated Component Units

Investments of the Universities-affiliated component units include the following amounts at June 30, 2010. Investments are
stated at fair value (expressed in thousands):

ASU Uof A NAU
Foundation Foundation Foundation
Money market funds and cash equivalents $ 47,468 $ -8 122
Domestic/international equity securities and mutual funds 322,544 126,983 41,014
Fixed income 110,266 89,708 23,761
Absolute return limited partnerships and funds - 113,629 -
Other investments 53,971 46,763 -
Total Investments $ 534,249 $ 377,083 $ 64,897

C. PROGRAM LOANS

The WIFA has made loans to local governments and othersin Arizona to finance various projects pursuant to the requirements of
the Clean Water and Safe Drinking Water Acts. The loans are generally payable in semi-annual installments due January 1 and
July 1 of each year, including interest. However, several loans are payable monthly or quarterly. Changesin the program loans
during fiscal year 2010 are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Clean Water Fund $ 681,426 $ 168,128 $ (49,461) $ 800,093
Drinking Water Fund 311,215 76,123 (29,294) 358,044
Total $ 992,641 $ 244251 $ (78,755) $1,158,137

Repayment of these loans will be made from pledged property taxes, net revenues from the systems, transaction privilege taxes,
or from special assessments. Most loans have a .30% to 4.00% annua administrative fee.

Some program loans require a monthly or quarterly payment into a debt service reserve to assure payments of the loans. The debt
service reserveis aliability of the WIFA to the borrowers and interest on the reserve accruesto the borrowers.

D. PLEDGES RECEIVABLE

Pledges recei vable (unconditional promises to give) are recorded at their net realizable value, which is net of a discount and any
applicable loss allowance. The ASU Foundation’s pledges are discounted using the applicable risk free rate at the date the pledge
was recognized. The discount rates range from 2.80% to 10.90%. An allowance for uncollectible pledges is estimated based on
the ASU Foundation’s collection history and is recorded as a reduction to contribution support and revenue and an increase in the
allowance for uncollectible pledges. The Sun Angel Foundation’s pledges receivable are recorded using a 5.14% discount rate
for the year ended June 30, 2010.

Pledges receivabl e, as of June 30, 2010, include the following (expressed in thousands):

ASU Sun Angel
Foundation Foundation
Gross pledgesreceivable $ 155,337 $ 9,068
Present value discount (15,073) (608)
Allowance for uncollectible pledges (47,684) -
Net Pledges Receivable $ 92,580 $ 8,460

E. DIRECT FINANCING LEASE AGREEMENTS
1. ASU Foundation

The ASU Foundation leases a portion of the Fulton Center building (the ASU Foundation's headquarters) to the ASU under a
direct financing lease. At the end of lease, the ASU Foundation and affiliates will gift their portion of the building to the ASU
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and the ASU will receive title to the building. The ASU Foundation's net investment in this direct financing lease at June 30,
2010is $26.975 million.

2. ACFFC

Pursuant to a sublease agreement, dated April 7, 2004 and amended on April 1, 2009 (the Sublease), Nanotechnol ogy Research,
LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ACFFC, leases its interest in the Research Park to the ASU. The ASU will make lease
payments at times in amounts sufficient to pay all principal and interest on the Series 2009A and 2009B Bonds. The Sublease has
successive annua renewals without action from either party through the period ending March 31, 2034. The Sublease is subject
to early termination by Nanotechnology or the ASU upon the payment in full of the Series 2009A and 2009B Bonds. Upon
termination or expiration of the Sublease, the ACFFC's interest in the premises, including al buildings and improvements on the
leased premises, transfers to the ASU without further consideration. ACFFC's net investment in the Nanotechnology facility
direct financing lease is $34.200 million at June 30, 2010.

Pursuant to the ASU Lease Agreement, dated July 1, 2005, McAllister Academic Village, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
ACFFC, leases its interest in the non-residential portion of Hassayampa Academic Village (Hassayampa, HAV) to the ASU
which consigts of the academic, tutoria, retail, and food service facilities. The lease was amended effective September 1, 2008 to
change the annual renewal period through June 30, 2039 to correspond with the maturity of the Hassayampa 2008 Bonds. Any
right, title, or interest of Hassayampa in and to the academic portions of the Hassayampa project will pass to the ASU without
further cost upon payment in full of the Hassayampa 2008 Bonds. Lease payments are based on the fixed interest rates
determined by the Hassayampa 2008 Bonds maturity schedule. ACFFC's net investment in the McAllister (HAV) direct
financing lease is $12.400 million at June 30, 2010.

3. NACFFC

On May 19, 2005, the NAU entered into a lease purchase agreement with NACFFC. During the 28 year lease term, the NAU will
make |ease payments on two apartment style student housing complexes, Pine Ridge Village and McKay Village. The NACFFC
recorded a sales-type lease receivable of $13.225 million in fiscal year 2005 for the Pine Ridge complex. The agreement aso
provided for the NAU's |ease purchase agreement of the McKay Village complex for $22.685 million in fiscal year 2007. Upon
expiration of the lease, thereal property will become the sole property of the NAU without further cost.

On September 1, 2006, the NAU entered into a lease purchase agreement with NACFFC. During the 30 year lease term, the

agreement provides for the NAU lease purchase of the convention center/parking garage complex for $12.400 million in fiscal
year 2008. Upon expiration of the lease, therea property will become the sole property of the NAU without further cost.
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F. CAPITAL ASSETS
Capitd asset activity for the UMC for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows (expressed in thousands):

University Medical Center

Beginning Adjustments & Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Reclassifications Balance
Non-depreciabl e capital assets:
Land $ 11,692 $ - $ - $ 165 $ 11,857
Congruction in progress 102,756 56,517 - (143,645) 15,628
Total Non-depreciable Capital Assets 114,448 56,517 - (143,480) 27,485
Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings 241,389 3,900 - 121,456 366,745
Improvements other than buildings 864 17 (22) (162) 697
Equipment 156,970 8,420 (6,089) 22,186 181,487
Total Depreciable Capital Assets 399,223 12,337 (6,111) 143,480 548,929
Lessaccumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (121,864) (10,123) - - (131,987)
Improvements other than buildings (412) (43) - - (455)
Equipment (121,845) (15,048) 6,040 - (130,853)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (244,121) (25,214) 6,040 - (263,295)
Total Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 155,102 (12,877) (71) 143,480 285,634
Total UMC Capital Assets, Net $ 269,550 $ 43,640 $ (71) $ - $ 313119

Capital assets for the Universities-affiliated component units for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 include the following
(expressed in thousands):

ASU Downtown Phoenix
Foundation ACFFC Student Housing
Buildings and improvements $ 17,397 $ 202,983 $ 113,900
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 7,860 52,795 10,280
Congtruction in progress - 23,263 -
Other property and equipment - 729 -
Total cost or donated value 25,257 279,770 124,180
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (6,501) (46,629) (7,017)
Total Property and Equipment, Net $ 18,756 $ 233141 $ 117,163

G. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
1. Component Units
a. Water Infrastructure Finance Authority

The WIFA’s bonds are callable and interest is payable semiannually. The bonds are special obligations of the WIFA payable
solely from and secured by the WIFA’s assets. The bonds are not obligations, general, specific, or otherwise, of the State or any
other political subdivision, thereof, other than the WIFA.

During fiscal year 2010, the WIFA issued Water Quality Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A (2009A Bonds) for $148.785 million.
The 2009A Bonds include $148.785 million of serial bonds due in annual installments through final maturity of fiscal year 2030,
with interest rates ranging from 2.00% to 5.00%. The 2009A Bonds were sold to provide financial assistance to entities
throughout the State for various wastewater treatment facilities pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act of 1972, as
amended by the Water Quality Act of 1987. The 2009A Bonds were sold at anet original issue premium of $12.228 million.

In July 2009, the WIFA issued $39.655 million of Water Quality Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2009A to do an advance
refunding on the remainder of the 1996A and 1999A bonds. Under the terms of the refunding issue, sufficient assets to pay all
principal and interest on the refunded bond issues have been placed in irrevocable trust accounts at commercial banks and
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invested in U.S. Government Securities which, together with interest earned thereon, will provide amounts sufficient for future
payment of principal and interest of the issues refunded. The redemption date was September and October 2009, so the amount
outstanding on those defeased bonds, as of June 30, 2010, is zero. The advance refunding was done in order to reduce debt
payments. The refunding issue decreased the WIFA’s total debt service payments by approximately $3.600 million. The
transaction resulted in an economic loss of approximately $499 thousand.

In prior fiscal years, the WIFA refinanced various bond issues through advance-refunding arrangements. Under the terms of the
refunding bond issues, sufficient assetsto pay all principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the refunded bond issues
have been placed in irrevocable trust accounts at commercial banks and invested in U.S. Government securities which, together
with interest earned thereon, will provide amounts sufficient for future payment of principal and interest of the issues refunded.
The assets, liabilities, and financial transactions of these trust accounts and the liability for the defeased bonds are not reflected in
the accompanying financial satements. The amount outstanding on the refunded bonds for the WIFA at June 30, 2010 totaled
$62.995 million.

The $6.317 million deferred amount on retirement of bonds is being amortized over the lives of the defeased bonds on a straight-
line basis. The amortization for the year ended June 30, 2010 is $554 thousand. Amortization has been offset againg interest
expense.

Bond premiums are being amortized over the life of the bonds. The amortization for the year ended June 30, 2010 is $4.516
million. Further, bond issuance costs are amortized over the life of the bond and offset to interest expense. The amortization for
the ended June 30, 2010 is $760 thousand.

b. University Medical Center

The UMC is subject to certain financial covenants under the Master Trugt Indenture (the Indenture). In addition, the Indenture
places certain restrictions on the incurrence of additional indebtedness and the sale or acquisition of property.

The UMC has established and maintains separate funds as a bond reserve fund on outstanding bonds payable. These funds,
which totaled $20.072 million at June 30, 2010, are held by the trustee and are reflected as restricted investments held by trustee
in the accompanying financial statements. These principally consist of money market investments, collateralized by U.S.
government securities.

The bonds or other obligations of the UMC do not constitute general obligations of the Arizona Board of Regents, the U of A, the
State, or any political subdivision thereof.
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Summary of Revenue Bonds

The following schedule summarizes revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 2010 (expressed in thousands):

Outstanding
Revenue Bonds Balance at
Outsgtanding Dates | ssued Maturity Dates  Interest Rates June 30, 2010
Component Units:
Water | nfrastructure Finance Authority 2001-2010 2011-2030 2.00-5.38% $ 857,910
University Medical Center 1993-2009 2011-2040 4.82-6.48% 282,745
Arizona Power Authority 2001-2004 2011-2018 5.00-5.25% 41,750
Rio Nuevo Multipurpose Facilities Dist 2006-2009 2011-2025 4.90-6.6% 83,010

Principal and interest debt service payments on revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 2010 are as follows (expressed in
thousands):

Annual Debt Service Annual Debt Service
Water Infrastructure Finance Authority University Medical Center
Fiscal Y ear Principal Interest Tota Fiscal Y ear Principal Interest Tota
2011 $ 36,995 $ 40,094 $ 77,089 2011 $ 4295 $ 15,059 $ 19,354
2012 45,125 38,353 83,478 2012 4,515 14,846 19,361
2013 41,470 36,458 77,928 2013 5,555 14,621 20,176
2014 42,250 34,547 76,797 2014 5,845 14,365 20,210
2015 43,495 32,578 76,073 2015 6,145 14,075 20,220
2016-2020 246,950 129,240 376,190 2016-2020 36,165 65,439 101,604
2021-2025 269,535 65,238 334,773 2021-2025 47,640 55,251 102,891
2026-2030 132,090 13,138 145,228 2026-2030 61,435 41,818 103,253
Total $ 857,910 $ 389,646 $ 1,247,556 2031-2035 79,435 24,284 103,719
2036-2040 31,715 4,986 36,701
Total $ 282,745 $ 264,744 $ 547,489
Annual Debt Service Annual Debt Service
Arizona Power Authority Rio Nuevo Multipurpose Facilities District
Fiscal Y ear Principal Interest Tota Fiscal Y ear Principal Interest Tota
2011 $ 4,220 $ 2,064 $ 6,284 2011 $ 3120 $ 4974 $ 8,094
2012 4,585 1,845 6,430 2012 3,290 4,812 8,102
2013 4,810 1,603 6,413 2013 5,295 4,641 9,936
2014 5,065 1,344 6,409 2014 3,870 4,349 8,219
2015 5,330 1,071 6,401 2015 4,020 4,137 8,157
2016-2018 17,740 1,429 19,169 2016-2020 23,750 17,210 40,960
Total $ 41,750 $9,356 $ 51,106 2021-2025 39,665 9,031 48,696
Total $ 83,010 $49,154 $ 132,164
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c. Changes in Long-Term Obligations

The following isa summary of changesin long-term obligations for the component units (expressed in thousands):

Water Infrastructure Finance Authority:

Long-term Debt:
Revenue bonds
Revenue bond premium
Deferred amounts, net

Total Long-term Debt

Other Long-term Liabilities:
Compensated absences
Total Other Long-term Liabilities

Total Long-term Obligations

University Medical Center:
Long-term Debt:

Revenue bonds

Revenue bond premium and discounts
Total Long-term Debt

Other Long-term Liabilities:
Compensated absences
Other

Total Other Long-term Liabilities

Total Long-term Obligations

Arizona Power Authority:

Long-term Debt:
Revenue bonds
Revenue bond premium and discounts
Deferred amounts, net

Total Long-term Debt

Other Long-term Liabilities:
Compensated absences
Total Other Long-term Liabilities

Total Long-term Obligations

Rio Nuevo Multipurpose Facilities
District:

Long-term Debt:
Revenue bonds
Certificates of participation
City of Tucson loan
Premiums and discounts on debt

Total Long-term Obligations

Balance Balance Due Within Due
July 1, 2009 Increases Decreases June 30, 2010 OneYear Thereafter
$ 742,840 $ 188,440 $ (73,370) $ 857,910 $ 36,995 $ 820,915

48,603 13,921 (4,516) 58,008 - 58,008
(6,372) (498) 554 (6,316) - (6,316)
785,071 201,863 (77,332) 909,602 36,995 872,607
65 76 (56) 85 85 -

65 76 (56) 85 85 -

$ 785136 $201,939 $ (77,388) $ 909,687 $ 37,080 $ 872,607
$ 286,890 $ - $ (4,145) $ 282,745 $ 4,295 $ 278,450
(2,902) - 69 (2,833) - (2,833)
283,988 - (4,076) 279,912 4,295 275,617
14,569 10,166 (9,574) 15,161 9,036 6,125
4,693 468 (2,399) 2,762 - 2,762
19,262 10,634 (11,973) 17,923 9,036 8,887

$ 303,250 $ 10,634 $ (16,049) $ 297,835 $ 13,331 $ 284,504
$ 45565 $ - $ (3815) $ 41,750 $ 4220 $ 37,530
1,457 - (293) 1,164 - 1,164
(994 - 200 (794) - (794)
46,028 - (3,908) 42,120 4,220 37,900

71 51 (61) 61 61 -

71 51 (61) 61 61 -

$ 46,099 $ 51 $  (3,969) $ 42,181 $ 4281 $ 37,900
$ 83610 $ - $ (600) $ 83,010 $ 3120 $ 79,890
10,085 12,560 (3,200) 19,445 3,360 16,085
6,752 - (5,036) 1,716 1,716 -
(1,062) (147) 4 (1,205) - (1,205)

$ 99,385 $ 12,413 $ (8832 $ 102,966 $ 8,196 $ 94,770
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2. Universities-Affiliated Component Units
A summary of bonds payable as of June 30, 2010 include the following (expressed in thousands):

Final Maturity Amount

ASU Foundation:

Series 2004A Variable Rate Revenue Bonds 2034 $ 22,420
Series 2004B Variable Rate Revenue Bonds 2022 9,855
Series 2003 L ease Revenue Bonds 2034 45,810
Capital Lease 2011 1,469
ACFFC:
Series 2009 Revenue Bonds 2024 41,240
Series 2009A L ease Revenue Refunding Bonds 2034 22,955
Series 2009B L ease Revenue Refunding Bonds 2022 11,490
Series 2008 Revenue Bonds 2028 16,315
Series 2008 Revenue Refunding Bonds 2039 145,180
Series 2008 Variable Rate Demand Revenue Refunding Bonds 2030 51,005
Series 2005 Tax-Exempt Refunding Bonds 2035 16,005
Series 2003 Revenue Bonds 2035 13,120
Series 2002 Revenue Bonds 2018 22,760
Series 2000 Revenue Bonds 2032 9,885
Unamortized Bond Discount (3,467)
Downtown Phoenix Student Housing:
Series 2007A& C Revenue Bonds 2042 119,040
Series 2007B Revenue Bonds 2012 785
Series 2007D Tax-Exempt Revenue Bonds 2042 22,700
Unamorti zed Bond Discount (1,221)
NACFFC:
Series 2008 Refunding Bonds 2033 35,845
North Campus Lease Revenue Serial and Term Bonds 2036 11,930
Unamorti zed Bond Discount (34)

Schedul ed future maturities of Universities-affiliated component units bonds payable are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Downtown
Phoenix Student
Fiscal Y ear ASU Foundation ACFFC Housing NACFFC
2011 $ 1875 % 5795 $ - $ 850
2012 1,988 8,455 600 915
2013 1,755 8,995 655 985
2014 1,835 9,580 430 1,060
2015 1,940 10,225 610 1,135
Thereafter 70,161 303,438 140,230 42,830
Total $ 79554 $ 346488 $ 142525 $ 47,775

H. CONDUIT DEBT

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Greater Arizona Development Authority (GADA) issued $23.370 million of Bonds,
Series 2010A for public infrastructure projects in the City of Flagstaff and the City of Maricopa. The GADA’s bond structure
allows it to lower borrowing costs for Arizona’s communities by issuing and selling bonds tax-exempt and by sharing financing
costs among several borrowers. Eligible applicants include cities, towns, counties, Indian tribes, and certain special districts.
Principal and interest are payable semiannually. Loans are secured by the Pledged Collateral Reserve Fund, arequirement that is
calculated and deposited by the GADA from the GADA Fund, which is hdd by the State Treasurer. Some borrowers also have
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separate, additional reserve funds, which are held by the Trustee. An intercept mechanism of state-shared revenues for political
subdivisions enhances the security of the GADA bonds.

In previous years, the State appropriated atotal of $20.000 million to the GADA for the express purpose of securing bonds issued
by the GADA. As of June 30, 2010, the remaining balance in the appropriations account was $12.483 million including interest
earned. Although issued in the name of the GADA, loans funded through the GADA bonds are solely the obligation of the
underlying borrowers and are documented by |oan repayment agreements. Pursuant to ARS 841-1554.08, the GADA’s bonds do
not constitute nor create a general, special, or other obligation or other indebtedness of the State or any governmental unit within
the meaning of any congtitutional or statutory debt limitation. The bonds do not constitute a legal debt of the State and are not
enforceable againg the State. The only exposure to the State is related to the restricted net assets of $10.465 million in the
Pledged Collateral Reserve Fund. As such, the Series 2010A bonds do not congtitute a legal debt of the State and are not
enforceable against the State. At June 30, 2010, the total outstanding face value of all bonds issued by the GADA was $379.465
million.

I.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The UMC and the U of A both provide and receive services from each other under various contracts. Paymentsto the U of A by
the UMC include mission and program support, resident and intern salaries, utilities, leases, ground maintenance, and various
adminigtrative functions. Amounts paid to the U of A for these services were approximately $28.853 million for the year ended
June 30, 2010. At June 30, 2010, the amount outstanding for mission support agreements is $2.500 million.

The UMC has entered into contractual agreements with the U of A to provide support for the academic mission of the U of A.
Chargesto the U of A for such services and facilities provided by the UMC were approximately $8.552 million for the year ended
June 30, 2010. Thisamount isincluded in sales and chargesfor services in the accompanying financial statements.

The UMC also has an agreement to provide health care services to members of an AHCCCS health plan owned by University
Physicians Healthcare (UPH) called University Family Care (UFC). UFC, an AHCCCS-funded health maintenance organization
(HMO), manages approximately 15,000 members. The UMC provides health care services to UFC membersin the normal course
of business. The UMC operates under a contract with UFC at rates that are substantially the same as rates received from other
unaffiliated AHCCCS HMOs. Such rates are generally at or below the maximum rates established by AHCCCS and do not cover
the UMC’s costs of providing care to UFC members. Sales and charges for services include $40.033 million from this payor,
based on negotiated rates.

During fiscal year 2010, AHCCCS committed approximately $31.000 million to the UMC related to the UMC’s digible
unreimbursed Indirect Medical Education (IME) costs. The availability of these funds was made possible due to the UMC’s
unreimbursed IME costs and facilitated by matching funds made available by the U of A and Pima County. Pursuant to a
separate but related agreement, the UMC agreed to pay $20.000 million of the funds in fiscal year 2010 to UPH in support of
unreimbursed costs of residents and fellows incurred by UPH. At June 30, 2010, areceivable in the amount of $31.000 million is
recorded in the accompanying financial statements. At June 30, 2010, accounts payable included $20.000 million due to UPH
under this agreement.

J.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In June 2010, the ABOR created UA Healthcare, Inc. and approved a change in the UMC’s bylaws designating the newly formed
UA Healthcare, Inc. asthe UMC’s sole member and granting UA Healthcare certain reserved power and authority. Effective July
1, 2010, UA Heslthcare, Inc. aso controlsthe UPH. The UPH is a not-for-profit corporation created by the U of A in 1985 asthe
medical practice for physicians at the U of A’s College of Medicine. In connection with the establishment of UA Healthcare, Inc.
as the sole member of the UMC and the controlling member of the UPH, the UMC and the UPH will be devel oping an integration
plan to enhance the existing rel ationshi ps between the UMC and the UPH.

In July 2010, the WIFA issued $138.665 million of Water Quality Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A due in annual principal
installments ranging from $2.500 million to $75.175 million, plus semi annual interest ranging from 2.00% to 5.00% through
October 1, 2030. The WIFA also issued $42.325 million of Water Quality Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2010A due in
annual principa installments beginning in October, 2017 and ranging from $7.765 million to $12.485 million, plus semi annual
interest of 5.00% through October 1, 2020.
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE, EXPENDITURES

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
(Expressed in Dallars)

ADMINISTRATION, ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS

ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS

ARIZONA FINANCIAL INFORMATION SYSTEM
BUILDING RENEWAL FYQ0- 01

BUILDING RENEWAL FY05 - 06

BUILDING RENEWAL FY06 - 07

BUILDING RENEWAL FY06 - 07

BUILDING RENEWAL FY(Q7 - 08

BUILDING RENEWAL FY(08- 09

BUILDING RENEWAL FY(Q9- 10

CAPITOL MALL FIRE SYSTEM REPLACE

CASH TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND

CASH TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND

CASH TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND

CASH TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND

CASH TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND

COUNTY ATTORNEY SIMMIGRATION ENFORCEMENT
DJC HVAC AND ELECTRICAL RENOVATIONS
ENSCO

FEDERAL GOVERNMENT REPAYMENT

HB1464 PERSONNEL REFORM

HRIS CERTIFICATE OF PARTICIPATION
OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION
OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION
OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION
OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION
OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION - COSF
OPERATING LUMP SUM OPERATING - FED SURP
PLTO 1 BACKFILL AGENCY RELOCATIONS
PLTO 1 BACKFILL SPACE RENOVATIONS

PLTO 1 BACKFILL SPACE RENOVATIONS

PLTO 1 PROJECT MANAGEMENT

PRISON CELL LOCKS/DOOR REPLACEMENT GF
RELOCATION

RELOCATION

The Notesto Required Supplementary Information are an integral part of this schedule.

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL
BUDGET BUDGET EXPENDITURE
(Appropriations) (Appropriations) AMOUNTS
0 103,142 103,142
0 278,123 278,123
0 205 205
0 1,276 1,276
1,120,500 1,120,500 1,113,760
10,186 10,186 0
4,714 4,714 0
36,907 36,907 0
53,241 53,241 26,769
1,212,841 1,212,841 1,205,765
193,216 164,735 118,415
1,000,000 960,000 238,555
490,931 490,931 44,042
0 400,300 400,300
0 647,600 647,600
0 3,600,900 3,600,900
0 1,867,200 1,867,200
1,279,700 1,279,700 1,279,700
2,430,000 1,216,800 715,000
189,752 189,752 1,876
2,867,300 2,867,300 2,867,300
0 1,700,000 1,700,000
273,045 273,045 0
4,354,000 4,354,000 4,318,381
5,590,700 4,801,200 3,052,384
14,064,000 10,530,700 8,241,570
19,214,300 11,133,300 10,831,946
1,258,000 1,266,100 982,021
5,200,700 5,200,700 5,200,536
449,300 453,300 99,905
243,490 243,490 0
106,402 106,402 0
348,161 348,161 0
55,659 55,659 0
88,022 88,022 0
0 58,149 0
60,000 60,000 0
(Continued)
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RELOCATION

RELOCATION FY00- 01

RELOCATION FYO01 - 02

RELOCATION FY 99 - 00

STATE BOARDSLUMP SUM APPROPRIATION

STATE SURPLUS PROPERTY SALES PROCEEDS

SW TELECOMMUNICATIONS MGT CONTRACT LEASE
UTILITIES

UTILITIES

ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS, OFFICE OF
OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION

OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION

AGRICULTURE, ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS

AG CONSULTING AND TRAINING PARI-MUTUAL
AGRICULTURAL EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS BOARD
ANIMAL DAMAGE CONTROL

OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION

RED IMPORTED FIRE ANT

AHCCCS - ARIZONA HEALTH CARE COST CONTAINMENT SYSTEM
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS

ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
BREAST AND CERVICAL CANCER
BREAST AND CERVICAL CANCER
BUDGET NEUTRALITY COMPLIANCE FUND
CAPITATION

CAPITATION

CASH REVERSION TO GENERAL FUND
CASH TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND

The Notesto Required Supplementary Information are an integral part of this schedule.

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL
BUDGET BUDGET EXPENDITURE
(Appropriations) (Appropriations) AMOUNTS
60,000 60,000 53,587
0 60,000 0
0 59,026 0
46,526 46,526 0
284,200 285,200 208,425
3,000,000 2,352,400 587,330
851,800 851,800 851,739
7,349,900 7,349,900 6,686,028
625,700 625,700 625,700
999,700 933,300 933,300
14,500 14,500 14,500
0 6,465 6,465
128,500 128,500 126,609
23,300 19,805 19,805
65,000 65,000 65,000
11,528,900 8,341,295 8,335,179
23,200 23,200 23,200
0 7,996,389 7,996,389
0 710,250 710,250
0 24,764,557 24,764,557
0 402,956 402,956
0 316 316
0 18,641 18,641
0 17,197,343 17,197,343
0 533,482 533,482
0 163,123 163,123
0 2,452 2,452
0 25,338,611 25,338,611
0 9,663 9,663
407,400 226,900 218,016
1,292,200 1,292,200 711,113
2,993,500 2,993,500 2,235,579
1,642,435,400 1,480,890,700 1,479,836,591
722,107,400 454,680,059 453,377,673
0 112,607 112,607
0 1,426,000 1,426,000
(Continued)
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CHIP - PARENTS

CHIP - PARENTS

CHIP - SERVICES

CHIP - SERVICES

CRITICAL ACCESSHOSPITALS
CRITICAL ACCESSHOSPITALS
DESELIGIBILITY

DESELIGIBILITY

DESTITLE XIX PASS THROUGH
DESTITLE XIX PASS THROUGH
DISPROPORTIONATE SHARE PAYMENTS
DISPROPORTIONATE SHARE PAYMENTS
DOA DATA CENTER CHARGES

DOA DATA CENTER CHARGES

FEE FOR SERVICE

FEE FOR SERVICE

GRADUATE MEDICAL EDUCATION
GRADUATE MEDICAL EDUCATION
INDIAN ADVISORY COUNCIL

INDIAN ADVISORY COUNCIL

KIDSCARE ADMINISTRATION
KIDSCARE ADMINISTRATION

LONG TERM CARE BOARD OF NURSING
LONG TERM CARE BOARD OF NURSING
MEDICAL CLAWBACK PAYMENTS - ACUTE CARE
MEDICAL CLAWBACK PAYMENTS-LTC
MEDICAL CLAWBACK PAYMENTS-LTC
MEDICARE PREMIUMS

MEDICARE PREMIUMS

MENTAL HEALTH - ADULTS

NEW AND EXPANDED GRADUATE MED ED PROGRAM
NEW AND EXPANDED GRADUATE MED ED PROGRAM
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS
OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION
OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION
OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION
OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION
OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION

The Notesto Required Supplementary Information are an integral part of this schedule.

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL
BUDGET BUDGET EXPENDITURE
(Appropriations) (Appropriations) AMOUNTS
1,670,100 1,670,100 1,505,922
5,297,400 5,297,400 4,879,134
30,483,700 18,204,600 17,819,492
104,032,800 67,941,500 67,590,695
1,117,700 1,117,700 558,875
582,300 409,240 204,595
26,467,600 26,320,700 21,816,653
29,220,700 29,323,600 17,862,153
154,000 262,700 147,700
203,800 319,800 166,491
8,954,300 171,250 0
21,395,700 4,552,300 0
1,724,700 2,483,300 2,430,326
3,992,800 5,874,400 5,769,823
416,918,100 445,193,500 436,851,725
105,858,600 96,131,030 80,717,626
14,470,700 0 0
27,604,600 0 0
116,300 117,100 98,585
116,600 104,900 101,078
5,595,600 6,428,500 5,347,572
1,764,100 1,733,600 1,639,307
104,800 104,800 104,800
104,900 104,900 104,800
31,925,600 20,965,952 20,965,952
12,501,700 8,216,936 8,216,935
10,454,600 6,860,011 6,860,010
73,242,700 75,992,700 75,825,360
31,307,300 22,458,842 22,454,529
45,368 45,368 0
958,535 958,535 0
4,494,824 4,494,824 0
271,300 272,700 229,951
0 29 0
41,521,800 38,635,900 30,835,300
28,560,600 24,305,550 24,191,474
1,098,657,600 1,098,619,089 1,000,916,515
168,052,400 114,305,941 114,305,941
(Continued)
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PROP 204 ADMIN OPER 100% FPL EXPANSION
PROP 204 ADMIN OPER 100% FPL EXPANSION
PROP 204 ADMIN OPER 100% FPL EXPANSION
PROP 204 CAPITATION

PROP 204 CAPITATION

PROP 204 CAPITATION

PROP 204 CAPITATION

PROP 204 COUNTY HOLD HARMLESS

PROP 204 FEE-FOR-SERVICE

PROP 204 FEE-FOR-SERVICE

PROP 204 MEDICARE

PROP 204 PASS THROUGH ADMIN

PROP 204 PASS THROUGH ADMIN

PROP 204 REINSURANCE

PROP 204 REINSURANCE

REINSURANCE

REINSURANCE

RURAL HOSPITAL REIMBURSEMENT

RURAL HOSPITAL REIMBURSEMENT
TICKET TO WORK

TICKET TO WORK

ARIZONA STATE UNIVERSITY
BIOMEDICAL INFORMATICS

DOWNTOWN PHOENIX CAMPUS

OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION - MAIN
OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION-EAST
OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION-WEST
RESEARCH INFRASTRUCTURE LEASE-PURCH PYMT
RESEARCH INFRASTRUCTURE LPP-POLYTECHNIC

ARTS, ARIZONA COMMISSION ON THE
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS

CASH TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND
COMMUNITY SERVICE PROJECTS
OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION

ATTORNEY GENERAL - DEPARTMENT OF LAW
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT
MILITARY INSTALLATION/PLANNING
MILITARY INSTALLATION/PLANNING FY08-09

The Notesto Required Supplementary Information are an integral part of this schedule.

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL
BUDGET BUDGET EXPENDITURE
(Appropriations) (Appropriations) AMOUNTS
4,678,100 5,224,100 4,761,914
0 5 0
4,724,800 3,937,000 3,594,300
48,996,700 40,367,900 40,367,900
1,411,264,200 1,314,690,000 1,308,327,487
118,280,200 108,211,300 105,394,083
555,523,900 312,373,058 306,145,090
4,825,600 4,825,600 4,825,600
47,238,800 45,582,814 37,697,912
183,312,600 223,812,600 222,871,924
21,732,900 22,982,900 22,927,375
21,854,900 18,036,800 18,036,300
18,737,300 18,895,500 15,774,600
29,998,400 30,872,521 20,532,178
57,603,500 62,603,500 59,502,417
44,389,000 56,716,600 42,597,235
85,232,800 124,132,800 107,837,167
7,994,600 7,994,600 0
4,163,500 2,926,400 0
4,566,200 4,566,200 4,115,758
2,378,100 1,470,416 1,456,407
3,472,679 2,766,172 2,766,172
35,657,491 27,670,791 27,670,791
379,025,264 246,063,198 246,063,197
32,305,307 21,382,636 21,382,636
58,305,716 38,898,202 38,898,202
0 12,481,636 12,481,636
0 844,387 844,387
0 212 212
0 115,400 115,400
1,263,100 287,700 287,700
667,700 534,800 534,793
0 57,062 57,062
100,000 100,000 0
0 99,900 99,900
25,525 25,525 25,525
(Continued)
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OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION
OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION
STATE GRAND JURY

AUDITOR GENERAL
OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION

OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION FY07-08
OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION FY08-09

CAPITAL POSTCONVICTION PUBLIC DEFENDER OFFICE, STATE
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS

OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION

CHARTER SCHOOLS, STATE BOARD FOR
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS

OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION

CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS, STATE BOARD OF
GENERAL FUND TRANSFER TOAGENCY FUND

COMMERCE, DEPARTMENT OF
AGRICULTURE PRESERVATION DISTRICT

APPRENTICESHIP SERVICES OFFICE

AZ 21ST CENTURY COMPETITIVE INITIAT FUND
CASH TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND
COMMERCE AND ECON DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION
INTERNATIONAL TRADE OFFICES

MILITARY BASE ECONOMIC RESEARCH STUDY
MILITARY INSTALLATION GF TRANSFER
MILITARY INSTALLATION OPERATING
MILITARY INSTALLATION OPERATING FY 05-06
MILITARY INSTALLATION OPERATING FY 06-07
MILITARY INSTALLATION OPERATING FY07-08
MILITARY INSTALLATION OPERATING FY 08-09
MOTION PICTURE PROD TAX INCENTIVE ADMIN
OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION
OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION

RURAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION COMMISSION
OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION

OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION
RAILROAD WARNING SYSTEMS

CORRECTIONS, STATE DEPARTMENT OF
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS

ALL OTHER PSAND ERE

The Notesto Required Supplementary Information are an integral part of this schedule.

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL
BUDGET BUDGET EXPENDITURE
(Appropriations) (Appropriations) AMOUNTS
22,828,400 17,690,000 17,495,777
13,378,800 13,440,400 11,330,076
179,000 178,900 178,900
17,502,600 16,533,100 14,333,681
190,889 190,889 0
276,872 276,872 0
0 2,000 2,000
680,600 646,300 645,687
0 4,265 4,265
823,900 823,100 720,745
148,000 148,000 148,000
26,747 26,747 0
189,900 189,900 187,155
0 18,474,923 18,474,923
0 803,900 803,900
866,122 866,122 0
749,800 749,800 606,569
50,000 50,000 0
0 1,879,500 1,879,500
0 75,000 74,929
6,172 6,172 0
5114 5114 0
6,820 6,820 0
813 813 0
0 337,700 0
144,700 145,400 0
3,392,900 499,300 496,716
340,100 340,100 325,860
1,343,600 589,100 588,797
51,100 51,800 47,703
47,510 47,510 0
0 4,103,064 4,103,064
177,000 157,600 124,000
(Continued)

- 137 -



STATE OF ARIZONA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE, EXPENDITURES

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
(Expressed in Dallars)

ALL OTHER PSAND ERE

ALL OTHER PSAND ERE

CASH TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND

CASH TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND
CORRECTIONAL OFFICER EMPLOY EE RELATED EXPENDITURES
CORRECTIONAL OFFICER PERSONAL SERVICES
COUNTY JAIL BEDS

EMPLOY EE RELATED EXPENDITURES

HEALTH CARE ALL OTHER OPERATING EXP

HEALTH CARE EMPLOY EE RELATED EXPENDITURES
HEALTH CARE PERSONAL SERVICES

NEW STATE PRISONS BEDS

NON-HEALTH CARE ALL OTHER OPERATING EXP
NON-HEALTH CARE ALL OTHER OPERATING EXP
OVERTIME COMPENSATORY TIME

PERSONAL SERVICES

PRIVATE PRISON PER DIEM

PROVISIONAL BEDS

COSMETOLOGY, BOARD OF
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS

COURT OF APPEALS DIVISION |
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS

OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION - DIV |

COURT OF APPEALS DIVISION 11
OPERATING LUMP SUM - DIVISION |1

DEAF AND BLIND, ARIZONA SCHOOLS FOR THE
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS

OPERATING LUMP SUM - ADMIN/STATEWIDE
OPERATING LUMP SUM - PHOENIX

OPERATING LUMP SUM - PRESCHOOL/OUTREACH
OPERATING LUMP SUM - REGIONAL COOPERATIVES
OPERATING LUMP SUM - TUCSON

SCHOOL BUS REPLACEMENT-PHOENIX

ECONOMIC SECURITY, DEPARTMENT OF
ADM ATTORNEY GENERAL LEGAL SERVICES

ADM ATTORNEY GENERAL LEGAL SERVICES
ADM ATTORNEY GENERAL LEGAL SERVICES
ADM FINGER IMAGING
ADM FINGER IMAGING

The Notesto Required Supplementary Information are an integral part of this schedule.

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL
BUDGET BUDGET EXPENDITURE
(Appropriations) (Appropriations) AMOUNTS
200 200 200
403,000 349,700 348,930
0 171,300 171,300
0 135,700 135,700
128,135,500 130,849,900 130,332,529
253,382,100 249,362,100 245,988,835
866,200 366,200 364,620
27,913,300 27,769,700 26,714,037
59,038,400 70,168,200 63,962,650
14,851,900 14,166,300 13,414,357
41,393,000 39,179,000 37,922,924
16,064,100 16,064,100 16,064,100
180,000 180,000 0
123,309,400 123,309,400 120,781,395
13,420,100 9,441,700 8,511,923
66,324,000 62,880,900 61,719,468
64,790,000 62,150,600 61,092,645
101,388,900 84,682,600 84,401,279
0 252,000 252,000
0 3,319 3,319
9,873,800 9,739,400 9,738,844
4,377,000 4,319,200 4,319,200
0 1,457,909 1,457,909
4,707,700 4,134,017 4,061,266
3,671,200 3,418,222 3,190,030
1,503,100 1,431,002 1,430,518
1,008,700 1,073,000 1,071,053
10,383,000 10,466,759 9,631,702
738,000 738,000 738,000
17,300 17,300 10,330
747,900 626,200 626,200
168,000 168,900 115,704
461,300 461,600 461,600
277,500 127,800 61,880
(Continued)
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ADM OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION 823,600 837,500 407,346
ADM OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION 4,271,400 4,272,800 4,272,800
ADM OPERATING LUMP SUM APPROPRIATION 26,540,900 22,109,900 22,109,900
ADM STATEWIDE COST ALLOCATION PLAN FUND 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
ADM TRIAGENCY DISASTER RECOVERY 271,500 271,500 0
ADM WIA OPERATING LUMP SUM 0 225,000 0
ADM-HIGH PERFORMANCE BONUS 21,489 21,489 21,489
ADMIN FED REED ACT GRANT 4050 259,200 259,200 259,200
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 4,544 4544
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 2,860,791 2,860,791
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 1,527,546 1,527,546
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 9,216 9,216
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 26,897 26,897
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 5,381,177 5,381,177
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 335,948 335,948
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 433,075 433,075
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 19,713,904 19,713,904
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 207,120 207,120
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 2,309,051 2,309,051
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 39,120 39,120
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 6,056,925 6,056,925
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 1,394,002 1,394,002
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 16,617 16,617
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 2,000,465 2,000,465
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 13,261 13,261
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 271,500 271,500
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 33,071 33,071
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 1,844,202 1,844,202
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 8,210,163 8,210,163
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 165,454 165,454
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 3,469,371 3,469,371
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 556,569 556,569
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 259,200 259,200
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 3,236,500 3,236,500
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 1,498,319 1,498,319
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 299,820 299,820
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 1,394,179 1,394,179
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS 0 13,010 13,010
The Notesto Required Supplementary Information are an integral part of this schedule. (Continued)
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ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS
ADMINI